
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page 

(New schools that were not open for instruction for 

the 2018-19 school year are not required to complete 

or submit an annual report this year). 
Created: 07/01/2019 • Last updated: 09/06/2019 

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the 

other tasks assigned to you by your authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this cover 
page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2019) or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

BASIC INFORMATION 

a. SCHOOL NAME 

(Select name from the drop down menu) 

a1. Popular School Name 

(Optional) 

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of 
June 30th, 2019) 

Please select the correct authorizer as of 
June 30, 2019 or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

c. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION 

d. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER 

e. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR 

INSTRUCTION 

h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL) 

BROOKLYN ASCEND CHARTER SCHOOL 

(No response) 

SUNY Authorized Charter School 

NYC CSD 18 

01/2008 

09/2008 

https://www.ascendlearning.org/ 
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i. TOTAL MAX APPROVED 1502 

ENROLLMENT FOR THE 2018-19 

SCHOOL YEAR (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

j. TOTAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT 

ON JUNE 30, 2019 (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

1499 

k. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2018-19 (does not include Pre-K program 

students) 
Check all that apply 

Grades Served K, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12 

l1. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT Yes 

WITH A CHARTER OR 

EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT 

ORGANIZATION? 

l2. NAME OF CMO/EMO AND ADDRESS 

NAME OF CMO/EMO Ascend Learning, Inc. 

PHYSICAL STREET ADDRESS 205 Rockaway Parkway 

CITY Brooklyn 

STATE NY 

ZIP CODE 11212 

EMAIL ADDRESS 

CONTACT PERSON NAME Susan Pollock 

FACILITIES INFORMATION 

m. FACILITIES 

Will the school maintain or operate multiple sites in 2019-20? 

Yes, 3 sites 

2 / 8 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	
	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	
	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	

	

	

	

	

	 	

School Site 1 (Primary) 

m1. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide information on Site 1 for the upcoming school year. 

Physical Address 

205 Rockaway
Parkway,Site 1 Brooklyn, NY
11212 

Phone Number 

718 907 9150 

m1a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1. 

School 
Leader 

Operati
onal 
Leader 

Complia 
nce 
Contact 

Complai 
nt 
Contact 

DASA 
Coordin 
ator 

Phone 
Contact 
for After 
Hours 
Emerge
ncies 

Name 

Elena Strauss 

Genevieve de 
Gaillande 

Brandon Sorlie 

Jennifer Young 

Carl Watson 

Work Phone 

District/CSD Grades to be Receives Rental 
Served at Site Assistance for 
for coming year Which Grades (If
(K 5, 6 9, etc.) yes, enter the

NYC CSD 18 K 4 

Alternate Phone 

appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No). 

no 

Email Address 

Camille McQueen 

m1b. Is site 1 in public (co- Private Space 

located) space or in private 

space? 

3 / 8 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	
	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	
	 	

	
	

	 	

IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m1d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection 

Report for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/93473367/yFPTXS6fVy/ 

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/93473367/nBJtmqxAKU/ 

School Site 2 

m2. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide information on Site 2 for the upcoming school year. 

Physical Address Phone Number District/CSD 

123 East 98th 
Site 2 Street, Brooklyn,

NY 11212 
347 289 9000 NYC CSD 17 

Grades to be Receives Rental 
Served at Site Assistance for 
for coming year Which Grades (If
(K 5, 6 9, etc.) yes, enter the

appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No). 

5 8 8 
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m3. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide information on site 3 for the upcoming school year. 

Physical Address 

1501 Pitkin 
Avenue, Site 3 Brooklyn, NY
11212 

Phone Number 

347 294 2600 

m3a. Please provide the contact information for Site 3. 

School 
Leader 

Operati
onal 
Leader 

Complia 
nce 
Contact 

Complai 
nt 
Contact 

DASA 
Coordin 
ator 

Phone 
Contact 
for After 
Hours 
Emerge
ncies 

Name 

Livia Angiolillo 

Genevieve de 
Gaillande 

Brandon Sorlie 

Jennifer Young 

Carl Watson 

Work Phone 

District/CSD Grades to be Receives Rental 
Served at Site Assistance for 
for coming year Which Grades (If
(K 5, 6 9, etc.) yes, enter the

NYC CSD 23 9 12 

Alternate Phone 

appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No). 

9 12 

Email Address 

Eleni Mara 

m3b. Is site 3 in public (co- Private Space 

located) space or in private 

space? 

6 / 8 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	

IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m3d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection 

Report for school site 3 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Site 3 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/93473367/grgnexJqqo/ 

Site 3 Fire Inspection Report 

(No response) 

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2018-19 SCHOOL YEAR 

n1. Were there any revisions to No 

the school’s charter during the 

2018-19 school year? (Please 

include approved or pending 

material and non-material 
charter revisions). 

ATTESTATION 

o. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report. 

Name Genevieve de Gaillande 

Position Director of School Operations 

Phone/Extension 

Email 

7 / 8 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	

p. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board 

President) below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and 

accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, 
and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We 

understand that if any information in any part of this report is found to have been 

deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds for the revocation of our 

charter. Check YES if you agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the stylist on 

your mobile device to sign your name). 

No Responses Selected 

Signature, Head of Charter School 

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees 

Date 2019/07/30 

Thank you. 
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FIRE DEPARTMENT 
9 METROTECH CENTER BROOKLYN, N.Y. 11201-3857 

BUREAU OF FIRE PREVENTION 

Public Buildings Unit 
DATE: 08.09.2019. 

PREMISES 

Ascend Public Charter Schools Brooklyn Ascend Charter School 

205 Rockaway Parkway 123 East 98
th 

Street 

Brooklyn NY 11212 Brooklyn NY 11212 

To Whom It May Concern: 

The New York City Fire Department (“FDNY”), Bureau of Fire Prevention, Public Buildings Unit conducted an 

inspection of the above-referenced premises on 02.15.2019. 

The inspection did not reveal any violations that FDNY’s Public Buildings Unit is authorized 
to inspect and enforce. 

XXX The inspection resulted in issuance of violations of the Fire Code or other laws, rules or regulations 
that FDNY’s Public Buildings Unit is authorized to inspect and enforce. 

Note: Violation Orders E564289,E564288,E564287,E564286 and E564285 issued. 

As of XXXXXXX documents were submitted to FDNY as proof of correction, and such correction was deemed 

acceptable to FDNY 

The inspection, and a review of premises records, has disclosed that the premises may not be in compliance with 
the lawful occupancy established by the New York City Department of Buildings. 

This letter shall not be construed to be a permit for, or an approval of the premises. FDNY does not certify that the 

premises is free from any violation for which it has not inspected, in accordance with its standard inspection protocols. 
This letter shall not prevent FDNY from inspecting the premises at a later date, requiring the correction of any 

deficiencies its finds at the premises, and/or issuing violations against the premises for conditions that do not comply with 

the Fire Code or other laws, rules or regulations. 

Examined by: _________________________________________ 
Tomasz Korbas, Supervising Inspector, PBU 



      

   
 

     
   

 

  

  
  

 

  

   

 

  

 

 

Page 1 of 3 

Certificate of Occupancy 
CO Number: 

This  certifies that the premises  described  herein conforms substantially  to the approved plans and specifications and to the 
requirements of all applicable laws, rules and regulations for the uses and occupancies specified. No change of use or occupancy 
shall be made unless a new Certificate of Occupancy is issued. This document  or a copy shall be available for inspection at  the 
building at all reasonable times. 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

E. 

Borough: Brooklyn 

1501 PITKIN AVENUE Address: 

Building Identification Number (BIN): 3080697 

Block Number: 03492 

Lot Number(s): 1 

Building Type: 
Altered 

Certificate Type: Temporary 

Effective Date: 07/18/2019 

Expiration Date: 10/16/2019 

This building is subject to this Building Code:  1968 Code 

For zoning lot metes & bounds, please see BISWeb. 

Construction classification: 1-B (1968 Code designation) 

Building Occupancy Group classification: E (2014/2008 Code) 

Multiple Dwelling Law Classification: None 

No. of stories: 6 Height in feet: 88  No. of dwelling units: 0 

Fire Protection Equipment: 
Standpipe system, Fire alarm system, Sprinkler system 

Type and number of open spaces: 
Loading berths (3), Loading berths (1250 square feet) 

This Certificate is issued with the following legal limitations: 
None 

Outstanding requirements for obtaining Final Certificate of Occupancy: 

There are 9 outstanding requirements. Please refer to BISWeb for further detail. 

Borough Comments: 

OK TO RENEW TCO#33 FOR 90 AYS AS PREVIOUSLY ISSUED. 

Borough Commissioner Commissioner 

DOCUMENT CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE 



              
       

 

          
 

 

 

          
 

 

                  
        

 
 

 

                                                                 
                                                                 
                                                            

 

 

   

 
 

  
 

 

 

 

 

Page 2 of 3 

Certificate of Occupancy 
CO Number: 

Permissible Use and Occupancy 
All Building Code occupancy group designations below are 2008 designations. 

Floor 
From To 

Maximum 
persons 
permitted 

Live load 
lbs per 
sq. ft. 

Building 
Code 
occupancy 
group 

Dwelling or 
Rooming 
Units 

Zoning 
use group Description of use 

CEL 331 OG A-3 3, 10, 3 CAFETERIA (INCIDENTAL USE TO CHARTER 
B SCHOOL) 
E 

001 200 125 E 3 VESTIBULE, LOWER SCHOOL LOBBY, MIDDLE 
SCHOOL LOBBY, SCHOOL LOBBY, 
RECEPTION AREA, LOWER AND MIDDLE 
SCHOOL CLASSROOMS, GALLERY, TRASH 
ROOM, FIRE ALARM ROOM, SCHOOL 
STORAGE 

001 001 350 125 M 6 RETAIL SPACES 

002 002 290 125 E 3, 10 CHARTER SCHOOL 

003 003 509 100 E 3 CLASSROOMS, TOILETS, OFFICES, WARMING 
PANTRY (INCIDENTAL USE TO CHARTER 
SCHOOL) 

003 003 94 100 A-3 3 MULTI-PURPOSE ROOM 

004 564 100 E 3 CLASSROOMS, TOILETS, OFFICES 
(INCIDENTAL USE TO CHARTER SCHOOL) 

004 004 55 100 A-3 3 ROOFTOP RECREATION AREA 

005 005 622 100 E 3 CLASSROOMS, TOILETS, OFFICES 
(INCIDENTAL USE TO CHARTER SCHOOL) 

006 006 450 100 A-4 3 CAFETERIA/GYMNASIUM 

006 006 475 100 E 3 CLASSROOMS, TOILETS, 
LOCKERS/SHOWERS, KITCHEN 

RO 
F 

65 100 E 3 CHILDRENS PLAYGROUND (INCIDENTAL USE 
TO CHARTER SCHOOL) 

Borough Commissioner Commissioner 

DOCUMENT CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE 



Page 3 of 3 

Certificate of Occupancy 
CO Number: 

END OF SECTION 

CRFN #2010000187672 

Borough Commissioner Commissioner 

END OF DOCUMENT 7/18/2019 12:12:26 PM 



 

 
       

  

  
  

                       
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

                                                                                                    

 
    

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

      

 
             

           

    

             
    

 

                   
        

    

 
                           

    
 

                     
                          
  

 

 

 

                   

               
                

              

        
 

 

     
   

                                
 

 

   

  

  

 

 

    

   

  

 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
9 METROTECH CENTER BROOKLYN, N.Y. 11201-3857 

BUREAU OF FIRE PREVENTION 

Public Buildings Unit 
DATE: 08.09.2019. 

PREMISES 

Ascend Public Charter Schools 

205 Rockaway Parkway 

Brooklyn NY 11212 

Brooklyn Ascend Charter School 

205 Rockaway Parkway 

Brooklyn NY 11212 

To Whom It May Concern: 

The New York City Fire Department (“FDNY”), Bureau of Fire Prevention, Public Buildings Unit conducted an 

inspection of the above-referenced premises on 04.04.2019. 

The inspection did not reveal any violations that FDNY’s Public Buildings Unit is authorized 
to inspect and enforce. 

XXX The inspection resulted in issuance of violations of the Fire Code or other laws, rules or regulations 
that FDNY’s Public Buildings Unit is authorized to inspect and enforce. 

Note: Violation Order E564811 issued. 

As of XXXXXXX documents were submitted to FDNY as proof of correction, and such correction was deemed 

acceptable to FDNY 

The inspection, and a review of premises records, has disclosed that the premises may not be in compliance with 
the lawful occupancy established by the New York City Department of Buildings. 

This letter shall not be construed to be a permit for, or an approval of the premises. FDNY does not certify that the 

premises is free from any violation for which it has not inspected, in accordance with its standard inspection protocols. 
This letter shall not prevent FDNY from inspecting the premises at a later date, requiring the correction of any 

deficiencies its finds at the premises, and/or issuing violations against the premises for conditions that do not comply with 

the Fire Code or other laws, rules or regulations. 

Examined by: _________________________________________ 
Tomasz Korbas, Supervising Inspector, PBU 



 

             

  
 

       
   

  

 

   

 

 

  

Page 1 of 2 

Certificate of Occupancy 
CO Number:     

This  certifies that the premises  described  herein conforms  substantially to the  approved  plans and specifications and to the 
requirements of all applicable laws, rules and regulations for the uses and occupancies specified.  No change of use or occupancy 
shall be made unless a new Certificate of Occupancy is issued. This document  or a copy shall be available for inspection at  the 
building at all reasonable times. 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

E. 

Borough: Brooklyn 

123 EAST   98 STREET Address: 

Building Identification Number (BIN): 3081158 

Block Number: 03531 

Lot Number(s): 1 

Building Type: Altered 

Certificate Type: Final 

Effective Date: 08/30/2011 

For zoning lot metes & bounds, please see BISWeb. 

Construction classification: 1-C (1968 Code) 

Building Occupancy Group classification: C (1968 Code) 

Multiple Dwelling Law Classification: None 

No. of stories: 4 Height in feet: 42  No. of dwelling units: 0 

Fire Protection Equipment: 
None associated with this filing. 

Type and number of open spaces: 
None associated with this filing. 

This Certificate is issued with the following legal limitations: 
None 

Borough Comments: None 

Borough Commissioner Commissioner 

DOCUMENT CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE 



 

              
       

 

          
 

 

           
 

                  
        

 

 

 

                                                                 
                                                                 
                                                            

  
  

Page 2 of 2 

Certificate of Occupancy 
CO Number:    

Permissible Use and Occupancy 
All Building Code occupancy group designations are 1968 designations, except RES, COM, or PUB which 

are 1938 Building Code occupancy group designations. 

Floor 
From To 

Maximum 
persons 
permitted 

Live load 
lbs per 
sq. ft. 

Building 
Code 
occupancy 
group 

Dwelling or 
Rooming 
Units 

Zoning 
use group Description of use 

CEL OG B-2 UTILITY ROOM 

001 275 100 G 3 SCHOOL 

002 260 100 G 3, 3 SCHOOL 
G 

003 260 100 G 3 SCHOOL 

004 275 100 G 3 SCHOOL 

ROF 300 100 G 3 PLAY AREA 

END OF SECTION 

Borough Commissioner Commissioner 

END OF DOCUMENT 8/30/2011 10:51:09 AM 



 

             

  
 

       
   

  

 

   

 

 

  

Page 1 of 2 

Certificate of Occupancy 
CO Number:    

This  certifies that the premises  described  herein conforms  substantially to the  approved  plans and specifications and to the 
requirements of all applicable laws, rules and regulations for the uses and occupancies specified.  No change of use or occupancy 
shall be made unless a new Certificate of Occupancy is issued. This document  or a copy shall be available for inspection at  the 
building at all reasonable times. 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

E. 

Borough: Brooklyn 

205 ROCKAWAY PARKWAY Address: 

Building Identification Number (BIN): 3825841 

Block Number: 04633 

Lot Number(s): 50 

Building Type: New 

Certificate Type: Final 

Effective Date: 02/19/2009 

For zoning lot metes & bounds, please see BISWeb. 

Construction classification: 1-C (1968 Code) 

Building Occupancy Group classification: E (1968 Code) 

Multiple Dwelling Law Classification: None 

No. of stories: 6 Height in feet: 60  No. of dwelling units: 0 

Fire Protection Equipment: 
None associated with this filing. 

Type and number of open spaces: 
None associated with this filing. 

This Certificate is issued with the following legal limitations: 
None 

Borough Comments: None 

Borough Commissioner Commissioner 

DOCUMENT CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE 



 

              
       

 

          
 

 

           
 

                  
        

 

 

 

                                                                 
                                                                 
                                                            

  
  

  

  

Page 2 of 2 

Certificate of Occupancy 
CO Number:   

Permissible Use and Occupancy 
All Building Code occupancy group designations are 1968 designations, except RES, COM, or PUB which 

are 1938 Building Code occupancy group designations. 

Floor 
From To 

Maximum 
persons 
permitted 

Live load 
lbs per 
sq. ft. 

Building 
Code 
occupancy 
group 

Dwelling or 
Rooming 
Units 

Zoning 
use group Description of use 

CEL 90 OG E 4 NON PROFI INSTITUTION WITH NO SLEEPING 
ACCOMMODATION 

OSP OG B-1 ACCESSORY PARKING FOR 98 CARS 

001 250 100 E 4 NON PROFIT INSTITUTION WITH NO 
F-4 SLEEPING ACCOMMODATION 

002 006 120 100 E 3 SCHOOL 

ROF 3 PLAY GROUND 

END OF SECTION 

Borough Commissioner Commissioner 

END OF DOCUMENT  2/19/2009 10:51:17 AM 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	

Entry 2 NYS School Report Card Link 
Last updated: 07/31/2019 

BROOKLYN ASCEND CHARTER SCHOOL 

1. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of 
June 30th, 2019) 

(For technical reasons, please re select 
authorizer name from the drop down 

menu). 

2. NEW YORK STATE REPORT 

CARD 

Provide a direct URL or web link 

to the most recent New York 

State School Report Card for the 

charter school (See 

https://reportcards.nysed.gov/). 

(Charter schools completing year 
one will not yet have a School 
Report Card or link to one. Please 

type "URL is not available" in the 

space provided.) 

SUNY Authorized Charter School 

https://data.nyse.dgov/essa.php? 

year=2018&instid=800000061080 

1 / 1 





      

        
       

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

         

         

         

Dylan Schaffer, planning and external affairs manager for Ascend Learning, prepared this 2018-19 
Accountability Progress Report on behalf of the school’s board of trustees: 

Trustee’s Name Board Position 

Stephanie Mauterstock Chair 

Shelly Cleary Treasurer 

Christine Schlendorf Secretary 

Kwaku Andoh Trustee 

Amanda Craft Trustee 

Glenn Hopps Trustee 

Nadine Sylvester Trustee 

Oral Walcott Trustee 

Elena Strauss has served as lower school director since January 2019. 

Crystal Lane has served as middle school director since July 2018. 

Livia Angiolillo has served as high school director since July 2019. 

Brooklyn Ascend Charter School 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress Report Page 1 of 52 



 

      

 

           
         

       
       

      
             

      
    

          
        

         
       

            
          

        
       

  

 

    

 
              

               

               

               

               

               

 

 

           
         

        
     
           

                                                        
  

 
 

The mission of all Ascend schools is to equip our students with the knowledge, confidence, and 
character to succeed in college and beyond. By offering a rich liberal arts education in a supportive 
environment, we animate children’s natural sense of curiosity and prepare students to think on 
their own, thrive on their own, and engage the world as informed, responsible citizens. 

At Ascend, our mission is to provide an extraordinary education to the children of Brooklyn, placing 
them firmly on a path to success in college and beyond. Our model focuses on developing in our 
students critical thinking skills and a sense of agency and independence. Ascend’s value proposition 
rests on three pillars. 

1. A rich and rigorous liberal arts curriculum that drives student achievement 
2. A warm, joyful school culture built on Responsive Classroom and, in the high school, a 

restorative practices model, both of which foster student independence and agency 
3. A commitment to operate truly public schools 

Brooklyn Ascend opened in September 2008 and has since grown to serve students in kindergarten 
through grade 12. Brooklyn Ascend is located in Community School District 18 in Brooklyn.1 In 
school year (SY) 2018-19, 86 percent of students were eligible for free and reduced-priced lunch, 98 
percent were black or Latino, 14 percent were special education students, and one percent were 
English language learners. 

School Enrollment by Grade Level and School Year 

School 
Year 

K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 Total 

2014-15 134 137 133 136 113 110 81 80 52 976 

2015-16 140 139 143 144 142 106 107 78 82 69 1150 

2016-17 146 147 142 148 132 121 103 108 79 72 63 1261 

2017-18 143 145 147 143 135 109 111 107 108 111 65 60 1384 

2018-19 149 148 144 142 148 112 113 115 109 139 99 57 61 1536 

HIGH SCHOOL COHORTS 

ACCOUNTABILITY COHORT 

The state’s Accountability Cohort consists specifically of students who are in their fourth year of 
high school after entering the 9th grade. For example, the 2015 state Accountability Cohort consists 
of students who entered the 9th grade anywhere sometime during the 2015-16 school year, were 
enrolled in the school on the state’s annual enrollment-determination day (i.e., BEDS day) in the 
2018-19 school year, and either remained in the school for the rest of the year or left for an 

1 Brooklyn Ascend Lower School is located in Community School District (CSD) 18. Brooklyn Ascend Middle School’s 
site is located in CSD 17, and Brooklyn Ascend High School in CSD 23. For accountability purposes, Brooklyn Ascend 
is compared to CSD 18. 

Brooklyn Ascend Charter School 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress Report Page 2 of 62 



 

      

 

        
    

          
              

   

 

    

 
 

 

 
  

 
 

 
 
 

  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

      

      

      

 

  

      
      

             
     

        
      

       
        

 

   

 
  

 

 
 

  
 

 

 

 
    

 
 

  
 
 

  
   

  
 

 
 
 

      

      

      

 

   

 
  

 

 
 

  
 

 

 
 

 
  

  

 
 
 

   
   

 
 
 

acceptable reason. (See New York State Education Department’s SIRS Manual for more details 
about cohort eligibility and acceptable exit reasons: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/irs/sirs/ht) 

The following table indicates the number of students in the Accountability Cohorts who are in their 
fourth year of high school and were enrolled at the school on BEDS Day in October and remained in 
the school until June 30th of that year. 

Fourth Year High School Accountability Cohorts 

Fourth 
Year 

Cohort 

Year Entered 
9th Grade 
Anywhere 

Cohort 
Designation 

Number of Students 
Enrolled on BEDS Day in 
October of the Cohort’s 

Fourth Year 

Number 
Leaving 

During the 
School Year 

Number in 
Accountability 
Cohort as of 

June 30th 

2016-17 2013-14 2013 0 0 0 

2017-18 2014-15 2014 0 0 0 

2018-19 2015-16 2015 63 1 62 

TOTAL COHORT FOR GRADUATION 

Students are also included in the Total Cohort for Graduation (referred to as the Graduation Cohort, 
Total Graduation Cohort, or Total Cohort interchangeably throughout this report) based on the year 
they first enter the 9th grade. Students enrolled for at least one day in the school after entering the 
9th grade are part of the school’s Graduation Cohort. The school may remove students from the 
Graduation Cohort if the school has discharged those students for an acceptable reason listed in the 
SIRS manual, including the following: if they transfer to another public or private diploma-granting 
program with documentation, transfer to home schooling by a parent or guardian, transfer to 
another district or school, transfer by court order, leave the U.S., or are deceased. 

Fourth Year Total Cohort for Graduation 

Fourth 
Year 

Cohort 

Year 
Entered 

9th Grade 
Anywhere 

Cohort 
Designation 

Number of Students 
Graduated or 

Enrolled on June 
30th of the Cohort’s 

Fourth Year 
(a) 

Number of Students No Longer 
at the School Who Had Been 
Enrolled for at Least One Day 

Prior to Leaving the School and 
Who Were Not Discharged for 

an Acceptable Reason 
(b) 

Total 
Graduation 

Cohort 
(a) + (b) 

2016-17 2013-14 2013 0 0 0 

2017-18 2014-15 2014 0 0 0 

2018-19 2015-16 2015 62 0 62 

Fifth Year Total Cohort for Graduation 

Fifth 
Year 

Cohort 

Year 
Entered 

9th Grade 
Anywhere 

Cohort 
Designation 

Number of 
Students 

Graduated or 
Enrolled on June 

30th of the Cohort’s 
Fifth Year 

Number of Students No Longer 
at the School Who Had Been 
Enrolled for at Least One Day 

Prior to Leaving the School and 
Who Were Not Discharged for 

an Acceptable Reason 

Total 
Graduation 

Cohort 
(a) + (b) 
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(a) (b) 

2016-17 2012-13 2012 0 0 0 

2017-18 2013-14 2013 0 0 0 

2018-19 2014-15 2014 0 0 0 

GOAL 1: HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION 

GOAL 1: HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION 

Brooklyn Ascend Charter School students will remain on the path to graduation from high school. 

Goal 1: Leading Indicator 

Each year, 75 percent of students in first and second year high school Total Graduation Cohorts will 
earn at least ten credits (if 44 needed for graduation) or five credits (if 22 needed for graduation) 
each year. 

METHOD 

This measure serves as a leading indicator of the performance of the high school cohort and 
examines students’ progress toward graduation based on annual credit accumulation.  The measure 
requires that, based on the school’s promotion requirements, 75 percent of the first and second 
year high school Total Graduation Cohorts will earn the required number of credits. 

As a college-preparatory school, Brooklyn Ascend High School expects its students to exceed 
minimum state requirements for graduation: 

- 44 credits (one credit is earned per semester for each full-time course that receives a passing 
grade of 65 or higher, and students are expected to earn a specific number of credits in each 
subject area.) 

- Regents 4+1 requirements 

- 50 hours of community service 

The following courses were offered were offered for credit in SY 2018-19: 

• English I 

• English II 

• English III 

• English IV 

• AP Literature 

• AP Language 

• Algebra I 

• Geometry 

• Algebra II 

• Pre-calculus 
Brooklyn Ascend Charter School 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress Report Page 4 of 62 



 

      

 

   

  

  

   

  

   

   

  

    

    

   

   

   

   

   

  

  

   

  

   

   

  

  

   

    

   

  

  

 

        
        
      

  

  

  

  

  

 

• AP Statistics 

• Physics 

• Chemistry 

• AP Biology 

• Maker 

• Global History I 

• Global History II 

• US History 

• AP US History I 

• Government and Economics 

• Spanish I 

• Spanish II 

• Spanish III 

• The Spectrum of Art 

• College Seminar 9/10/11/12 

• Health 

• Physical Education 

• Critical Reading and Math 

• Advanced Art 

• The Components of Arts 

• Contemporary Media Analysis 

• Weight Training 

• Sociology 

• Mock Trial 

• Student Justice Panel Training 

• History of Hip-hop 

• eCybermission 

• Financial Literacy 

Students at risk of not meeting promotion standards will be notified in January or February. 
Students who do not meet promotion requirements in June have the opportunity to attend 
summer school and be promoted in August if promotion standards are met at that time. 

Grade level Minimum credits 

9 8 

10 20 

11 30 

12 44 
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RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

In SY 2017-18, 97 percent of Brooklyn Ascend students in the 2017 Total Cohort (students in their 
second year) earned the required number of credits; 96 percent of students in the 2018 Total 
Cohort (students in their first year) earned the required number. The school met the measure. 

Percent of Students in First and Second Year Cohorts 

Earning the Required Number of Credits in 2018 19 

Number in Percent 
Cohort 

Cohort during promoted 
Designation 

2018-19 

2017 98 97% 

2018 127 96% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The school also met this measure in SY 2016-17, when promotion rates for the first and second year 
Total Cohorts were 94 percent and 88 percent, respectively; and in SY 2017-18, when promotion 
rates for the first and second year Total Cohorts were 98 percent and 96 percent, respectively. 

Goal 1: Leading Indicator 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the second year high school Total Graduation Cohort will score 
at or above proficient on at least three different New York State Regents exams required for 
graduation. 

METHOD 

This measure serves as a leading indicator of the performance of high school cohorts and examines 
their progress towards graduation based on Regents exam passage. The measure requires that 75 
percent of students in each Graduation Cohort have passed at least three Regents exams by their 
second year in the cohort. In August of 2019, the 2017 cohort will have completed its second year. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

In SY 2018-19, 38 percent of Brooklyn Ascend students in the school’s Second Year (2017) Total 
Cohort passed at least three Regents exams required for graduation. The school did not meet the 
measure. 

Percent of Students in their Second Year Passing Three Regents Exams by Cohort 

Percent 
Cohort Number in 

School Year Passing Three 
Designation Cohort 

Regents 

2015 2016-17 69 59% 

2016 2017-18 62 68% 

2017 2018-19 98 38% 

Goal 1: Absolute Measures 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the fourth year high school Total Graduation Cohort and 95 
percent of students in the fifth year high school Total Graduation Cohort will graduate. 
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METHOD 

This measure examines students in two high school Graduation Cohorts: those who entered the 9th 

grade as members of the 2015 cohort and graduated four years later and those who entered as 
members of the 2014 cohort and graduated five years later. These data reflect August graduation 
rates. At a minimum, these students have passed five Regents exams required for high school 
graduation in ELA, mathematics, science, U.S. History, and Global History or met the requirements 
for the 4+1 pathway to graduation.2 

The school’s graduation requirements appear in this document below the graduation goal’s first 
measure pertaining to annual grade-by-grade promotion or credit accumulation. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

In a notable achievement, 97 percent, or 60 of 62 students in Brooklyn Ascend’s 2015 Total Cohort, 
graduated in 2019. The school met the measure. 

Percent of Students in the Total Graduation Cohort who have Graduated After Four Years 

Cohort School Number in Percent 
Designation Year Cohort Graduating 

2013 2016-17 n/a n/a 

2014 2017-18 n/a n/a 

2015 2018-19 62 97% 

Percent of Students in Total Graduation Cohort Who Have Graduated After Five Years 

Cohort School Number in Percent 
Designation Year Cohort Graduating 

2012 2016-17 n/a n/a 

2013 2017-18 n/a n/a 

2014 2018-19 n/a n/a 

Goal 1: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Graduation Cohort graduating after the 
completion of their fourth year will exceed that of the Total Graduation Cohort from the school 
district of comparison. 

METHOD 

The school compares the graduation rate of students completing their fourth year in the charter 
school’s Total Graduation Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in the school district 
of comparison.3 Given that students may take Regents exams through the summer of their fourth 
year, district results for the current year are generally not available at this time. As such, for 

2 The state’s guidance for the 4+1 graduation pathway can be found here: 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/ciai/multiple-pathways/. 

3 Schools can retrieve district level graduation rates from the SED’s Information and Reporting Services office.  News releases 
and an Excel workbook containing these data are available from the IRS Data Release webpage. 
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purposes of this report schools should include the district’s 2017-18 results as a temporary 
placeholder for the district’s 2018-19 results. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Brooklyn Ascend’s graduation rate exceeded that of its host district, CSD 18, by more than 30 
percentage points. The school met the measure. 

Percent of Students in the Total Graduation Cohort who 
Graduate in Four Years Compared to the District 

Cohort 
Designation 

School Year 
Charter School School District 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Graduating 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Graduating 

2013 2016-17 n/a n/a n/a n/a 

2014 2017-18 n/a n/a n/a n/a 

2015 2018-19 62 97% 1,204 65.6% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

It is worth noting that, though for accountability purposes, Brooklyn Ascend is compared to CSD 18, 
Brooklyn Ascend’s high school is located in neighboring CSD 23, where the four-year graduation 
rate was 45.8 percent in SY 2017-18. 

Goal 1: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Total Cohort pursuing an alternative graduation 
pathway (commonly referred to as the 4+1 pathway) will achieve a Regents equivalency score and 
pass an approved pathway assessment required for graduation by the end of their fourth year in 
the cohort. 

METHOD 

The New York State Board of Regents approved regulations establishing alternative pathways to 
graduation for all students. Students may replace one of the required Social Studies Regents exams 
with an approved alternative assessment.  For more information about requirements and approved 
assessments refer to the NYSED resource online: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/ciai/multiple-
pathways/. The school will document the names of the alternative assessments administered and 
success rate for students in the templates bellow. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

All Brooklyn Ascend students in the 2015 Cohort pursued the 4+1 pathway, and 60 of 62, or 97 
percent, successfully completed this pathway in order to graduate. The school met the measure. 

Percentage of the 2015 Graduation Cohort Pathway Students Demonstrating Success by Exam Type 

Exam 

Number of 
Graduation Cohort 
Members Tested 

(a) 

Number Passing or 
Achieving Regents 

Equivalency 

(b) 

Percentage Passing 

=[(b)/(a)]*100 

Overall 62 60 97% 
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Pathway Exam Passing Rate 

by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 

Cohort Designation School Year 

2013 2016-17 

2014 2017-18 

2015 2018-19 

Number in Percent Passing a Pathway 
Cohort Exam 

n/a n/a 

n/a n/a 

62 97% 

SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION GOAL 

In its first year with a graduating fourth-year cohort of students, Brooklyn Ascend exceeded the key 
graduation measure by more than 20 percentage points, graduating 60 of 62 members of its 
inaugural fourth-year cohort. This rate exceeds that of its host accountability district (CSD 18) and 
physical host district (CSD 23) by between 30 and 50 percentage points. Importantly, students have 
been successful at achieving the 4+1 pathway to graduation, and first- and second-year students 
are progressing from one grade to the next at high rates. Though more work remains to ensure that 
students by their second year are on pace to graduate by passing at least three Regents exams, we 
are encouraged by our progress. 

Type Measure Outcome 

Leading 
Indicator 

Each year, 75 percent of students in first- and second-year high 
school Total Graduation Cohorts will earn at least ten credits (if 44 
needed for graduation) or five credits (if 22 needed for graduation) 
each year. 

Met 

Leading 
Indicator 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Total 
Graduation Cohort will score at least 65 on at least three different 
New York State Regents exams required for graduation by the 
completion of their second year in the cohort. 

Did not meet 

Absolute Each year, 75 percent of students in the fourth year high school 
Total Graduation Cohort will graduate. 

Met 

Absolute 
Each year, 95 percent of students in the fifth year high school Total 
Graduation Cohort will graduate. 

Not applicable 

Comparative 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total 
Graduation Cohort graduating after the completion of their fourth 
year will exceed that of the Total Graduation Cohort from the school 
district of comparison. 

Met 

Absolute 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Total Cohort 
pursuing an alternative graduation pathway will achieve a Regents 
equivalency score and pass an approved pathway assessment 
required for graduation by the end of their fourth year. 

Met 
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ACTION PLAN 

Students in Brooklyn Ascend’s first fourth-year cohort (the 2015 Cohort) made significant 
achievements, including nearly all students in the cohort graduating and matriculating—at rates 
significantly higher than the school’s host district. Students also achieved notable levels of success 
on several Regents exams, surpassing the performance of their district peers in almost all cases. 
Still, much work remains to ensure that all students are meeting or exceeding Common Core 
expectations and reaching Performance Level 4 or higher, and in ensuring that the school is 
adequately preparing students for college and career as measured by the College and Career 
Readiness Index. We must continue to build on this progress already being made by younger 
cohorts by strengthening the high school program at Ascend more generally, and through targeted 
interventions and initiatives aimed at improving student performance at the high school in SY 2019-
20. 

We have hired a strong and experienced charter high school leader who began at the network in 
April 2019 and took the helm of the high school as school director on in July 2019. The director has 
already undertaken significant adjustments at the school, and we are highly confident in her 
leadership capacity and vision. In SY 2018-19, Ascend also invested heavily in high school curricular 
and coaching supports at the network office, including directors of high school humanities and high 
school STEM. This coincided with the addition of deans of instruction to the high school, who are 
receiving extensive training from the network directors and who in turn work with the high school 
teachers to strengthen instruction. This work will continue in SY 2019-20 as improvements and 
refinements to the curriculum continue to be made and implemented with fidelity. We also expect 
that a large turnover in staff at the high school this year will positively impact instruction. 

In addition to these efforts, two network-wide initiatives in SY 2019-20 will focus on the high school. 
These include (1) an emphasis on starting the year strong and creating a student culture rooted 
deeply in the enduring pride of the high school community, and (2) an effort to create inquiry-based 
classrooms where students think critically, write cogently, and think broadly, thereby igniting 
curiosity across the school. In order to implement the first initiative, the managing director will 
work with the school leaders to tighten and clearly define school-wide procedures and routines, 
establish cultural programming and traditions that reflect the commitment to a liberal arts 
education, and ensure the visual culture in the school reflects Ascend’s core value of excellence. To 
implement the second initiative, the school will set incremental targets for internal assessments as 
school and network leaders work closely with teachers to ensure that rigorous and inquiry-based 
learning is incorporated into all lessons. As a result of these initiatives, we expect a commitment to 
cultural and instructional excellence will result in more students achieving at the level required to 
not only pass Regents exams, but to ensure students are fully prepared for college-level coursework 
and are meeting or exceeding the rigorous standards of the Common Core. 

The school will continue to operate a robust college access and success program to ensure that 
students graduate from Brooklyn Ascend and are accepted to and persist in college after 
graduation. 
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GOAL 2: COLLEGE PREPARATION 

GOAL 2: COLLEGE PREPARATION 

Brooklyn Ascend Charter School will adequately prepare students to succeed in college and beyond. 

Goal 2: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of graduating students will demonstrate their preparation for college by at 
least one or some combination of the following indicators: 

• Passing an Advanced Placement (“AP”) exam with a score of 3 or higher; 

• Earning a score of 4 or higher on an International Baccalaureate (“IB”) exam; 

• Passing a College Level Examination Program (“CLEP”) exam; 

• Passing a college level course offered at a college or university or through a school 
partnership with a college or university; 

• Achieving the college and career readiness benchmark on the SAT; or, 

• Earning a Regents diploma with advanced designation; or, 

METHOD 

Schools use any method listed here, or any combination thereof, to demonstrate that at least 75 
percent of graduates are prepared to engage in rigorous college level coursework.  The school 
should select only those methods listed here that it uses to demonstrate the college readiness of its 
students and eliminate those that it will not. For instance, high schools that do not deliver an IB 
Program as part of their high school design do not report on the IB option. The school reports on 
the number of students who attempted to achieve each indicator, the number who succeeded, and 
the corresponding percentage.  Additionally, the school should report on the overall number of 
students who graduated after four years, the number of those graduates who achieved any of the 
relevant measures, and the overall percentage achieving the measure. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Eight-one percent of students in Brooklyn Ascend’s 2015 Total Cohort demonstrated college 
readiness according to several indicators. The school met the measure. Importantly, the school 
expanded its offerings of AP examinations in SY 2018-19, providing more opportunities to attempt 
that indicator. 

Percentage of the 2015 Total Cohort Graduates Demonstrating College Preparation by Indicator 

Indicator 

Number of 
Graduates who 
Attempted the 

Indicator 

Number who Achieved 
Indicator 

Percentage of Graduates 
who Achieved Indicator 
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Passing an AP exam with 
a score of 3 or higher 

38 3 5% 

Earning a score of 4 or 
higher on an IB exam 

0 0 0% 

Passing a CLEP exam 0 0 0% 

Passing a college level 
course at a 

university/college 

0 0 0% 

Achieving the college and 
career readiness 

benchmark on the SAT 

62 14 23% 

Earning a Regents 
Diploma 

62 50 81% 

Overall 62 50 81% 

Goal 2: Absolute Measure 

Each year, the College, Career, and Civic Readiness Index (“CCCRI”) for the school’s Total Cohort will 
exceed the Measure of Interim Progress (“MIP”) set forth in the state’s ESSA accountability system. 

METHOD 

The state’s finalized ESSA plan includes a College, Career, and Civic Readiness Index that measures 
the rate of completion among the Total Cohort of a variety of indicators of readiness for the next 
step after high school.  Indicators that are more rigorous and that are therefore more difficult to 
attain receive greater weight in the new CCCRI (e.g., attaining an Advanced Regents diploma and a 
score of 4 or higher on an IB exam). Conversely, some less rigorous indicators that were not 
included in the College and Career Readiness Index under the state’s NCLB accountability system 
are included in the CCCRI (e.g., completion of a high school equivalency program).4 

To achieve this measure, the school must have a CCCRI value that equals or exceeds the 2018-19 
CCCRI MIP of 130 for all students. The CCCRI is calculated by multiplying the number of students in 
the cohort demonstrating college, career, and civic readiness by the weighting for the method by 
which the student demonstrated college, career, and civic readiness, divided by the number of 
students in the Total Cohort. The highest possible CCCRI is 200. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Students in Brooklyn Ascend’s 2015 Total Cohort achieved a CCCRI of 127 in SY 2018-19, falling 
short of the MIP value by three; the school did not meet the measure. 

CCCRI Performance by Cohort Year 

4 For more detail about the weighting of college readiness methods for calculation of the CCCRI, see pages 64-65 of 
the state’s finalized ESSA plan here. 
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Graduation Year Cohort 
Number of 
Students in 

Cohort 
MIP School CCCRI 

2016-17 2013 N/A N/A N/A 

2017-18 2014 n/a 128 n/a 

2018-19 2015 62 130 127 

Goal 2: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the school’s CCCRI for the Total Cohort will exceed that of the district of comparison’s 
Total Cohort. 

METHOD 

The school compares the CCCRI of students from the fourth year in the charter school Total Cohort 
to that of the respective cohort of students in the school district of comparison. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Brooklyn Ascend’s CCCRI in SY 2018-19 exceeded the most recently available district CCCRI (from SY 
2017-18) by 36.5 points. The school met the measure. It is worth noting that, though Brooklyn 
Ascend is compared to CSD 18 for accountability purposes, the high school’s physical host district, 
CSD 23, had a CCCRI of 63.5 in SY 2017-18; Brooklyn Ascend thus achieved a CCCRI value twice the 
magnitude of CSD 23. 

CCCRI of Fourth Year Total Cohort by Charter School and School District 

Cohort Charter School School District 

2013 n/a n/a 

2014 n/a n/a 

2015 127 90.5 

Goal 2: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of graduating students will matriculate into a college or university in the year 
after graduation. 

METHOD 

The ultimate measure of whether a college prep high school has lived up to its mission is whether 
students actually enroll and succeed in college.  Schools track and report the percentage of fourth-
year Total Cohort graduates who matriculate into a two or four-year college program in the school 
year following graduation. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Ninety-two percent of students in Brooklyn Ascend’s 2015 Total Cohort have matriculated to a 2- or 
4-year college or university as of September 16, 2019. Therefore, the school met the measure. As 
the National Student Clearinghouse data source is not yet available, these data were verified 
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internally using Brooklyn Ascend’s college counseling platform, Naviance, and through individual 
college counseling team verifications. 

Matriculation Rate of Graduates by Year 

Number of Number Enrolled Matriculation 
Graduates in 2 or 4-year Rate 

Cohort Graduation Year Program in 
(a) Following Year =[(b)/(a)]*100 

(b) 

2013 2016-17 0 n/a n/a 

2014 2017-18 0 n/a n/a 

2015 2018-19 62 57 92% 

SUMMARY OF THE COLLEGE PREPARATION GOAL 

Brooklyn Ascend is preparing students for college at rates significantly higher than its host districts, 
achieving CCCRI values significantly higher than both CSDs 18 and 23. Based on key indicators, 
Brooklyn Ascend students will succeed in college, and students in the school’s first graduating 
cohort are matriculating to 2- and 4-year institutions at high rates. More work remains to ensure 
every students remains on this path, but we are encouraged by our progress and success with our 
first graduating class. 

Type Measure (Accountability Plan from 2012-13 or later) Outcome 

Absolute 
Each year, 75 percent of graduating students will demonstrate 
their preparation for college by one or more possible 
indicators of college readiness. 

Met 

Absolute 
Each year, the CCCRI for the school’s Total Cohort will exceed 
that year’s state MIP set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system. 

Did not meet 

Comparative 
Each year, the school’s CCCRI for the Total Cohort will exceed 
that of the district’s Total Cohort. 

Met 

Absolute 
Each year, 75 percent of graduating students will matriculate 
into a college or university in the year after graduation. 

Met 

ACTION PLAN 

Students in Brooklyn Ascend’s first fourth-year cohort (the 2015 Cohort) made significant 
achievements, including nearly all students in the cohort graduating and matriculating—at rates 
significantly higher than the school’s host district. Students also achieved notable levels of success 
on several Regents exams, surpassing the performance of their district peers in almost all cases. 
Still, much work remains to ensure that all students are meeting or exceeding Common Core 
expectations and reaching Performance Level 4 or higher, and in ensuring that the school is 
adequately preparing students for college and career as measured by the College and Career 
Readiness Index. We must continue to build on this progress already being made by younger 
cohorts by strengthening the high school program at Ascend more generally, and through targeted 
interventions and initiatives aimed at improving student performance at the high school in SY 2019-
20. 
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We have hired a strong and experienced charter high school leader who began at the network in 
April 2019 and took the helm of the high school as school director on in July 2019. The director has 
already undertaken significant adjustments at the school, and we are highly confident in her 
leadership capacity and vision. In SY 2018-19, Ascend also invested heavily in high school curricular 
and coaching supports at the network office, including directors of high school humanities and high 
school STEM. This coincided with the addition of deans of instruction to the high school, who are 
receiving extensive training from the network directors and who in turn work with the high school 
teachers to strengthen instruction. This work will continue in SY 2019-20 as improvements and 
refinements to the curriculum continue to be made and implemented with fidelity. We also expect 
that a large turnover in staff at the high school this year will positively impact instruction. 

In addition to these efforts, two network-wide initiatives in SY 2019-20 will focus on the high school. 
These include (1) an emphasis on starting the year strong and creating a student culture rooted 
deeply in the enduring pride of the high school community, and (2) an effort to create inquiry-based 
classrooms where students think critically, write cogently, and think broadly, thereby igniting 
curiosity across the school. In order to implement the first initiative, the managing director will 
work with the school leaders to tighten and clearly define school-wide procedures and routines, 
establish cultural programming and traditions that reflect the commitment to a liberal arts 
education, and ensure the visual culture in the school reflects Ascend’s core value of excellence. To 
implement the second initiative, the school will set incremental targets for internal assessments as 
school and network leaders work closely with teachers to ensure that rigorous and inquiry-based 
learning is incorporated into all lessons. As a result of these initiatives, we expect a commitment to 
cultural and instructional excellence will result in more students achieving at the level required to 
not only pass Regents exams, but to ensure students are fully prepared for college-level coursework 
and are meeting or exceeding the rigorous standards of the Common Core. 

The school will continue to operate a robust college access and success program to ensure that 
students graduate from Brooklyn Ascend and are accepted to and persist in college after 
graduation. 

GOAL 3: ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS 

Goal 3: English Language Arts 

Brooklyn Ascend Charter School students will meet grade level expectations in English language 
arts. 

BACKGROUND 

Brooklyn Ascend implements the Ascend Common Core curriculum. In SY 2018-19, the components 
of the English language arts program included: 

• Phonics (kindergarten through grade 2). Fundations is a phonological/phonemic awareness, 
phonics, and spelling program for the general education classroom. Fundations is based upon 
the Wilson Reading System principles and serves as a prevention program to help reduce 
reading and spelling failure. 
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The Ascend teacher will deliver one 30-minute Fundations whole-class lesson each day. 
Fundations lessons focus on carefully sequenced skills that include print knowledge, alphabet 
awareness, phonological awareness, phonemic awareness, decoding, vocabulary, fluency, and 
spelling. Critical thinking, speaking, and listening skills are practiced during story-time activities. 
Furthermore, targeted small group intervention is available for struggling students.5 

• Read Aloud sessions with students in grades K-2 occur daily through the first term of grade 2 
with the class gathered on a rug while the teacher reads a carefully selected high-quality text 
and provides a model of fluent, expressive reading which helps children recognize the value of 
reading for pleasure. Read Aloud promotes vocabulary acquisition, models the habits of a skilled 
reader, and supports deep discussion of excellent texts through strategic “turn and talks.” 

• Writing (kindergarten through grade 4). Students will study writing—which also includes 
grammar instruction—for 45 minutes four times per week from kindergarten through the grade 
2, then three times per week in grades 3 and 4. Ascend has developed a unique writing program 
based loosely on the work of Lucy Calkins and The Reading and Writing Project at Columbia 
University’s Teacher’s College. Ascend’s writing curriculum is genre-based and rooted in the 
belief that students need to write frequently and produce a high volume of writing. Grammar is 
strategically embedded in the units of study so that students learn grammar skills explicitly and 
then apply them immediately to the writing they do in class. The program requires teachers to 
provide frequent feedback to small groups of students in writing conferences while other 
students work independently. Ascend’s writing program teaches students that writing is 
powerful, fun, beautiful, and purposeful. 

• Guided Reading (kindergarten through grade 4). Guided Reading, taught in small, leveled 
groups, has been at the center of the schools’ ELA program since 2010; it is deployed five times 
per week, for 60 minutes in grades K-2 and 45 minutes in grades 3-4. During Guided Reading 
period, students are divided into leveled groups of six to eight students. Homogeneous 
groups—defined by students’ reading level or specific skill deficits—meet with teachers who 
guide the students through reading a text of the appropriate level; when not meeting with a 
teacher, students read independently. Teachers will continue to use the Ascend Guided Reading 
lesson plan templates and existing lesson plans that have been developed over the last three 
years. The schools carefully track each student’s individual reading progress through use of the 
STEP assessments, developed by the University of Chicago; STEP, or Strategic Teaching and 
Evaluation of Progress, is an acclaimed system designed to help students from Pre-K to third 
grade learn to read. 

In class libraries, books are organized by level and by subject, so that teachers can match 
students quickly to books appropriate to their STEP level and emerging curiosities. 

• Literature Circle (grade 3 through grade 4). In the Ascend-developed Literature Circle program, 
piloted in school year 2012-13 and now in all Ascend schools, teachers in help students to mine 
the deepest meaning of the finest children’s literature. The Ascend literacy team has carefully 
chosen books of the highest quality and literary complexity, balancing fiction and non-fiction; 
Ascend has sequenced these anchor texts to align with E.D. Hirsch’s Core Knowledge history and 

5 This text has been adapted from the publisher’s description at http://www.fundations.com. 

Brooklyn Ascend Charter School 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress Report Page 16 of 62 



 

      

 

         
        

      
        
 

        
        

      
     

    
   

      
       
    

       
       

     

     
       

          
      

        
     

        
       

       
       

       
       

        
      

       

       
        

       
   
     

       
        

        
   

geography sequence. Books are selected for their capacity to intrigue students by posing 
genuine ethical dilemmas or addressing conflicts or longings in their lives. Students develop the 
habits of excellent readers, build reading comprehension skills, build their base of core 
knowledge, learn how to express and exchange ideas, and most importantly, discover a love for 
great books. 

• Shared Text (grades 2, term 2 through grade 8). In the Shared Text component, deployed three 
times per week for 45 minutes, the teacher models the habits of a skilled reader, and leads 
students briskly to the meaning of a short complex text. Students are guided in answering 
Common Core-style comprehension questions and short response questions. In the lower 
school, shared text is a companion component to Literature Circles. Shared Text includes fiction, 
non-fiction, and poetry texts. 

• Humanities (grades 5-8). Beginning in grade 5, students participate in Ascend’s humanities, 
writing, and arts program for two periods a day. Excellent critical thinking, close-reading, 
writing, arts appreciation, and public speaking skills are the primary goals of the program. 
Modeled on the practices of the city’s finest private and selective public schools, the program 
develops the individual voice and reading sensibility of each Ascend student with a customized 
syllabus that includes a cross-cultural selection of classic literature. 

Ascend has created a powerful culture of response to instructional data (RTI) to support and 
enhance learning, and will continue to develop and employ a variety of assessments to measure 
progress towards mastering standards. In addition to New York State exams administered each 
spring, teachers use benchmark and mock assessments, unit tests, STEP assessments, norm-
referenced NWEA MAP assessments, and other measures of student performance during the 
course of the year. The Illuminate Data and Assessment (DnA) system allows staff to monitor 
progress and assess student comprehension, and supports data-driven teacher training and 
evaluation through access to instant feedback. Teachers and leaders consistently review student 
work and achievement data and trends, resulting in effective planning for upcoming lessons and 
timely and purposeful feedback to students. Recognizing the impact of feedback on student access 
of knowledge and academic achievement, Ascend in SY 2016-17 implemented the Continuous 
Monitoring and Response to Student Work initiative. The initiative, which has remained a network-
wide focus since SY 2016-17, focuses on frequent review and analysis of student data to support 
accurate teacher diagnosis of misconceptions, allow strategic instructional adjustments, and ensure 
that students receive effective feedback in order to improve their understanding. 

All Ascend schools participate in Teacher Planning and Development (TPD), a network-wide 
program begun in SY 2015-16 aimed at improving teaching and learning and creating a platform for 
teacher collaboration. Through unit studies, planning and assessment studies, lesson debriefs, 
teach-backs, and data meetings, TPD meetings represent a critical piece of a professional 
development program that also includes pre-service training, full professional development days, 
afterschool sessions, and ongoing coaching and modeling. The TPD program complements the 
Continuous Monitoring initiative by providing dedicated time in teachers’ and leaders’ schedules for 
analysis of student work, tracking data, and developing teacher strategies for improving their 
response to student performance during lessons. 
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In school year 2018-19 the Ascend network initiatives were (1) Strengthening Early Literacy in 
grades K-2, (2) Continuous Monitoring of Student Work (K-8), (3) Strengthening Implementation of 
Responsive Classroom in grades K-8. 

The intended outcomes of the Early Literacy initiative were to establish a network-wide vision of 
excellent guided reading instruction and provide guided reading training and oversight throughout 
the year, increase Read Aloud instruction to take place every day in grades K, 1, and the first term of 
grade 2 to ensure that students listen to and discuss great books and see models of the thinking 
readers do, and establish Readers Workshop to ensure teachers strategically introduce to all 
students the skills and strategies needed to tackle grade level texts. 

The intended outcomes of the Continuous Monitoring initiative were to improve student reading 
and math achievement by improving the ability of teachers and leaders to accurately evaluate 
student work to assess mastery; improve the ability of teachers to identify misconceptions 
evidenced in student work; plan and deliver effective student feedback; improve student mastery 
through application of frequent, targeted teacher feedback; improve the efficacy and efficiency of 
instruction through analysis of regularly collected student work; and improve the mechanisms for 
monitoring student progress daily and weekly. 

Through the Responsive Classroom initiative, we sought to create a sense of community, increase 
cognitive engagement and student autonomy, and improve academic performance. Improvement 
will be measured by positive responses to staff and student survey questions on order, discipline, 
and respect, and by improvements in reading and math achievement. 

Goal 3: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year will perform at or 
above proficiency on the New York State English language arts examination for grades 3-8. 

METHOD 

The school administered the New York State Testing Program English language arts (“ELA”) 
assessment to students in third through eighth grade in April 2019. Each student’s raw score has 
been converted to a grade-specific scaled score and a performance level. 

The table below summarizes participation information for this year’s test administration. The table 
indicates total enrollment and total number of students tested. It also provides a detailed 
breakdown of those students excluded from the exam.  Note that this table includes all students 
according to grade level, even if they have not enrolled in at least their second year (defined as 
enrolled by BEDS day of the previous school year). 

2018 19 State English Language Arts Exam 
Number of Students Tested and Not Tested 

Grade 
Total 

Tested 

Not Tested6 Total 
Enrolled IEP ELL Absent Refused 

3 134 0 0 0 2 136 

4 140 0 0 0 0 140 

6 Students exempted from this exam according to their Individualized Education Program (IEP), because of English Language 
Learners (ELL) status, or absence for at least some part of the exam. 
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5 114 1 0 0 1 116 

6 109 0 0 0 1 110 

7 113 0 0 0 1 114 

8 108 1 0 0 0 109 

All 718 2 0 0 5 725 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Sixty-two-point-one percent of all Brookyln Ascend students enrolled in at least their second year 
achieved proficiency on the NYS English language arts exam in SY 2018-19, compared to 61.7 
percent of all tested students who achieved proficiency. Brooklyn Ascend thus did not meet this 
absolute measure; however, students in grade 3 did exceed the 75-percent proficiency threshold, 
and students in grade 8 approached the threshold with 68.7 percent proficient. In five of six tested 
grades, Brooklyn Ascend students exceeded 50-percent proficiency. In sixth grade, students 
performed below their peers with 47.2 percent proficient. We will monitor this cohort closely going 
forward to ensure it attains proficiency levels more similar to its peer cohorts. 

Performance on 2018 19 State English Language Arts Exam 

By All Students and Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 

Grades 

All Students 
Enrolled in at least their 

Second Year 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

3 77.6% 134 77.0% 122 

4 60.0% 140 61.1% 126 

5 47.4% 114 47.2% 106 

6 56.9% 109 56.1% 98 

7 59.3% 113 60.2% 103 

8 66.7% 108 68.7% 99 

All 61.7% 718 62.1% 654 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

Since SY 2016-17, performance in ELA at Brooklyn Ascend has improved by 11.1 percentage points 
overall, and by at least 10 percentage points at all but one grade level. We are particularly 
encouraged by the continued steady growth in grades 7 and 8, and in particular the SY 2018-19 
eighth grade cohort, which has since SY 2016-17 increased its proficiency from 34.1 percent to 68.7 
percent, a gain of 34 points. Though we are disappointed by the decline in proficiency at the sixth 
grade level, this cohort has struggled to attain proficiency levels similar to its peer cohorts, and in SY 
2018-19 it did achieve a significant gain of more than eight percentage points over the previous 
year. The performance of the grade 5 cohort is concerning, and we are closely monitoring this 
cohort to ensure it continues to make progress towards increasing proficiency; we are optimistic 
about the prospect of increasing proficiency in SY 2019-20, as a significant percentage of students in 
this cohort achieved scores on the cusp of proficiency in SY 2018-19. Generally speaking, the 
transition from grade 4 to grade 5 is challenging both culturally and instructionally for students, 
which contributes to grade 5’s somewhat lower performance across Ascend schools. At Brooklyn 
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Ascend, at least one teacher struggled to effectively manage her class despite the efforts of school 
leadership, which likely contributed to lower proficiency. We are also discouraged by the decline in 
proficiency in grade 4. We attribute this to a mid-year instructional leadership transition in grade 4; 
a new dean of instruction, a former successful grade 4 teacher and second grade dean, assumed 
leadership of the grade in SY 2019-20 and we expect the grade to perform well this year. 

ELA Performance by Grade Level and Year 

Grade 

Percent of Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 
Achieving Proficiency 

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Percent 
Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Number 
Tested 

3 65.6% 122 78.2% 124 77.0% 122 

4 48.8% 127 69.7% 119 61.1% 126 

5 51.3% 119 47.7% 88 47.2% 106 

6 34.1% 88 72.2% 97 56.1% 98 

7 49.5% 99 55.6% 90 60.2% 103 

8 52.0% 75 58.2% 98 68.7% 99 

All 51.0% 630 64.8% 616 62.1% 654 

Goal 3: Absolute Measure 

Each year, the school’s aggregate Performance Index (“PI”) on the State English language arts exam 
will meet that year’s state Measure of Interim Progress (“MIP”) set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system. 

METHOD 

In New York State, ESSA school performance goals are met by showing that an absolute proportion 
of a school's students who have taken the English language arts test have scored at the partially 
proficient, or proficient and advanced performance levels (Levels 2 or 3 & 4).  The percentage of 
students at each of these three levels is used to calculate a PI and determine if the school has met 
the MIP set each year by the state’s ESSA accountability system. To achieve this measure, all tested 
students must have a PI value that equals or exceeds the state’s 2018-19 English language arts MIP 
for all students of 105. The PI is the sum of the percent of students in all tested grades combined 
scoring at Level 2, plus two times the percent of students scoring at Level 3, plus two-and-a-half 
times the percent of students scoring at Level 4. Thus, the highest possible PI is 250. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

In English language arts, Brooklyn Ascend achieved a PI of 160.0, exceeding the MIP value of 105 
and thereby meeting the measure. 

English Language Arts 2018 19 Performance Index 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent of Students at Each Performance Level 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 4 

718 10.6 27.7 44.0 17.7 
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PI = 27.7 + 44.0 + 17.7 = 89.4 
44.0 + 17.7 = 61.7 

+ (.5)*17.7 = 8.8 
PI = 160.0 

Goal 3: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least their second year and 
performing at proficiency on the state English language arts exam will be greater than that of all 
students in the same tested grades in the school district of comparison. 

METHOD 

A school compares tested students enrolled in at least their second year to all tested students in the 
public school district of comparison. Comparisons are between the results for each grade in which 
the school had tested students in at least their second year at the school and the total result for all 
students at the corresponding grades in the school district.7 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Brooklyn Ascend’s aggregate performance on the NYS English language arts exams outpaced that of 
Community School District 18, Brooklyn Ascend’s home district, by 23.3 percentage points in SY 
2018-19. Thus, the school met this measure. The school exceeded district performance in every 
tested grade by between 13.8 points in grade 8 up to 29.2 points in grade 7. 

2018 19 State English Language Arts Exam 
Charter School and District Performance by Grade Level 

Grade 

Percent of Students at or Above Proficiency 

Charter School Students 
In At Least 2nd Year 

All District Students 

Percent 
Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Number 
Tested 

3 77.0% 122 49.2% 1,017 

4 61.1% 126 41.8% 1,066 

5 47.2% 106 32.0% 1,055 

6 56.1% 98 40.0% 1,038 

7 60.2% 103 31.0% 1,054 

8 68.7% 99 44.9% 1,085 

All 62.1% 654 39.8% 6,315 

7 Schools can acquire these data when the New York State Education Department releases its database containing grade level 

ELA and math test results for all schools and districts statewide.  The NYSED announces the release of the data on its News 
Release webpage. 
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ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

Since SY 2016-17, Brooklyn Ascend students have outpaced CSD 18 students by large overall 
margins, and in each grade. 

English Language Arts Performance of Charter School and Local District 

by Grade Level and School Year 

Grade 

Percent of Students Enrolled in at Least their Second Year Scoring at or 
Above Proficiency Compared to District Students 

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Charter 
School 

District 
Charter 
School 

District 
Charter 
School 

District 

3 65.6% 34.4% 78.2% 39.6% 77.0% 49.2% 

4 48.8% 37.4% 69.7% 41.2% 61.1% 41.8% 

5 51.3% 27.2% 47.7% 29.6% 47.2% 32.0% 

6 34.1% 20.7% 72.2% 37.0% 56.1% 40.0% 

7 49.5% 34.9% 55.6% 32.2% 60.2% 31.0% 

8 52.0% 44.1% 58.2% 45.9% 68.7% 44.9% 

All 51.0% 33.3% 64.8% 37.5% 62.1% 39.8% 

Goal 3: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the school will exceed its predicted level of performance on the state English language 

arts exam by an effect size of 0.3 or above (performing higher than expected to a meaningful 
degree) according to a regression analysis controlling for economically disadvantaged students 
among all public schools in New York State. 

METHOD 

The SUNY Charter Schools Institute (“Institute”) conducts a comparative performance analysis, 
which compares the school’s performance to that of demographically similar public schools 
statewide. The Institute uses a regression analysis to control for the percentage of economically 
disadvantaged students among all public schools in New York State. The Institute compares the 
school’s actual performance to the predicted performance of public schools with a similar 
concentration of economically disadvantaged students. The difference between the school’s actual 
and predicted performance, relative to other schools with similar economically disadvantaged 
statistics, produces an Effect Size. An Effect Size of 0.3, or performing higher than expected to a 
meaningful degree, is the requirement for achieving this measure. 

Given the timing of the state’s release of economically disadvantaged data and the demands of the 
data analysis, the 2018-19 analysis is not yet available. This report contains 2017-18 results, the 
most recent Comparative Performance Analysis available.  

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

In SY 2017-18, Brooklyn Ascend performed 27.2 percentage points better than expected when 
controlling for the number of economically disadvantaged students taking the exam. This resulted 
in an Effect Size of 1.47, thereby meeting the measure for performing better than expected to a 
large degree. All grades achieved a large, positive Effect Size. 
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2017 18 English Language Arts Comparative Performance by Grade Level 

Grade 
Percent 

Economically 
Disadvantaged 

Number 
Tested 

Percent of Students 
at Levels 3&4 

Difference 
between Actual 
and Predicted 

Effect 
Size 

Actual Predicted 

3 84.8 143 76.9 40.3 36.6 1.93 

4 804 136 67.6 39.3 28.3 1.47 

5 82.7 110 44.5 27.2 17.4 1.09 

6 83.3 110 72.7 37.7 35.0 1.86 

7 87.0 106 52.8 27.8 25.0 1.47 

8 79.1 108 57.4 39.7 17.7 0.87 

All 82.9 713 63.0 35.7 27.2 1.47 

School’s Overall Comparative Performance: 

Higher than expected to a large degree 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

Since SY 2015-16, Brooklyn Ascend has achieved positive and steadily increasing Effect Sizes. 

English Language Arts Comparative Performance by School Year 

School 
Year 

Grades 
Percent 

Economically 
Disadvantaged 

Number 
Tested 

Actual Predicted 
Effect 
Size 

2015-16 3-8 83.8 573 42.7 26.6 0.99 

2016-17 3-8 85.5 643 49.2 27.4 1.31 

2017-18 3-8 82.9 713 63.0 35.7 1.47 

Goal 3: Growth Measure8 

Each year, under the state’s Growth Model, the school’s mean unadjusted growth percentile in 
English language arts for all tested students in grades 4-8 will be above the target of 50. 

METHOD 

This measure examines the change in performance of the same group of students from one year to 
the next and the progress they are making in comparison to other students with the same score in 
the previous year.  The analysis only includes students who took the state exam in 2017-18 and also 
have a state exam score from 2016-17 including students who were retained in the same grade. 
Students with the same 2016-17 score are ranked by their 2017-18 score and assigned a percentile 
based on their relative growth in performance (student growth percentile). Students’ growth 
percentiles are aggregated school-wide to yield a school’s mean growth percentile. In order for a 

8 See Guidelines for Creating a SUNY Accountability Plan for an explanation. 
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school to perform above the target for this measure, it must have a mean growth percentile greater 
than 50. 

Given the timing of the state’s release of Growth Model data, the 2018-19 analysis is not yet 
available. This report contains 2017-18 results, the most recent Growth Model data available.9 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

In SY 2017-18, Brooklyn Ascend achieved a mean growth percentile of 56.0, compared to the 
statewide median of 50.0, thereby meeting the measure. The mean growth percentile for all but 
one grade exceeded the target; grade 8 fell just short of the target with a MGP of 49.3. 

2017 18 English Language Arts Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level 

Grade 
Mean Growth Percentile 

School Target 

4 54.6 50.0 

5 54.5 50.0 

6 59.8 50.0 

7 62.4 50.0 

8 49.3 50.0 

All 56.0 50.0 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

Since SY 2015-16, Brooklyn Ascend has maintained strong overall and grade-level mean growth 
percentiles. 

English Language Arts Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level and School Year 

Grade 
Mean Growth Percentile 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 Target 

4 49.7 48.5 54.6 50.0 

5 53.2 59.2 54.5 50.0 

6 61.9 58.1 59.8 50.0 

7 70.2 60.6 62.4 50.0 

8 53.2 51.8 49.3 50.0 

All 57.5 55.6 56.0 50.0 

SUMMARY OF THE ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS GOAL 

While the school did not meet the Accountability Plan’s first absolute measure of proficiency, 
Brooklyn Ascend students remain on a path toward continued progress in English language arts. 

The strong absolute performance of students in grades 3 and 8 and the significant progress made in 
grades 6 since SY 2016-17 represent the merits of Ascend’s Common Core curriculum and 
educational program and a strengthening of the middle school program to ensure our older 
students are achieving proficiency at levels similar to their lower school peers. Though it remains a 

9 Schools can acquire these data from the NYSED’s Business Portal: portal.nysed.gov. 
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challenge to preserve high proficiency levels as students transition to grade 5, we are confident that 
targeted interventions (described below) and adjustments to grade- and cohort-level staffing will 
bolster scores. The school’s students continue to perform better than those of similar economic 
disadvantage statewide, and exceed the statewide growth target. 

Overall, the school has shown improvement towards attaining its English language arts goal in this 
accountability period, though much work remains to ensure all students can achieve high levels of 
attainment. 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 
Each year, 75 percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least 
their second year will perform at proficiency on the New York State English 
language arts exam for grades 3-8. 

Did not meet 

Absolute 
Each year, the school’s aggregate PI on the state’s English language arts 
exam will meet that year’s state MIP as set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system. 

Met 

Comparative 

Each year, the percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least 
their second year and performing at proficiency on the state English 
language arts exam will be greater than that of students in the same tested 
grades in the school district of comparison. 

Met 

Comparative 

Each year, the school will exceed its predicted level of performance on the 
state English language arts exam by an effect size of 0.3 or above 
(performing higher than expected to a meaningful degree) according to a 
regression analysis controlling for economically disadvantaged students 
among all public schools in New York State. (Using 2017-18 results.) 

Met 

Growth 
Each year, under the state’s Growth Model the school’s mean unadjusted 
growth percentile in English language arts for all tested students in grades 
4-8 will be above the target of 50. (Using 2017-18 results.) 

Met 

ACTION PLAN 

Through the next accountability period, Brooklyn Ascend will continue to build on its most 
successful practices and results in ELA, while improving on areas of weakness with targeted 
adjustments and interventions. 

Brooklyn Ascend will effect Ascend’s network-wide initiatives in SY 2019-20: Strengthening 
Foundations in Reading in grades K-2, Closing the Gap in grades 5-8, the Continuous Monitoring of 
Student Work in K-8, and Launching Strong and Refining the Ascend Culture in K-8. These initiatives 
represent the continuation and refinement of initiatives begun in previous school years at Ascend. 

Network-wide, Ascend will focus in SY 2019-20 on improving reading instruction in grades K-2, in 
order to ensure students are armed with the foundational reading skills necessary to succeed in the 
upper grades. As part of this initiative, Ascend’s curriculum and instruction team (CIT) will focus its 
supports to the schools on phonics instruction and will continue to promote high-quality guided 
reading instruction. Additionally, the school will set incremental targets for phonics unit tests to 
ensure the school meets its end-of-year goal. School directors and network leaders will devote time 
to observing guided reading and phonics lessons on network-wide implementation visits, and will 
provide feedback and targeted interventions to the schools based on the results of these 
observations. Finally, schools have shifted from STEP assessments to F&P assessments in reading in 
order to improve the way reading assessment data leads to teacher-led instructional adjustments 
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and interventions. Schools will establish new end-of-year reading targets for F&P assessments after 
the first round of the assessment is administered in late September. 

The Continuous Monitoring of Student Work Initiative begun in SY 2015-16 will again be 
implemented to support accurate teacher diagnosis of misconceptions, allow strategic instructional 
adjustments, and ensure effective feedback in order to improve student understanding. Continuous 
Monitoring will continue to inform the Teacher Planning and Development (TPD) program, as well 
as teacher evaluations and coaching. 

In grades 5-8, in the effort to close the gap and ensure all students are learning and achieving, we 
will focus on implementing with rigor and fidelity Leveled Literacy Intervention for students reading 
significantly below grade level; create, train, and implement a modifications manual to ensure all 
students have access to tier 1 curriculum at the middle school level, and adjust scheduling 
guidelines to allow students reading significantly below grade level to received Shared Text 
instruction in smaller groups with texts closer to their grade level. 

The network’s initiative related to strong school launches and refining Ascend’s distinctive culture 
will establish the Ascend vision for school culture. Schools’ managing directors will explicitly define 
excellence in Ascend student culture through a new student culture rubric and will consistently 
observe school routines and deans of students’ referrals. School directors were trained throughout 
Summer Institute on whole school routines and procedures, and will continue to train on and 
practice these procedures through the first few weeks of schools. These cultural refinements will 
contribute meaningfully to increased academic performance across all grades. 

HIGH SCHOOL ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS 

Goal 3: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 65 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will exceed Common 
Core expectations (currently scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on the Regents Exam in 
English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school administered the Regents English exam that students must pass to graduate.  The school 
scores Regents on a scale from 0 to 100. The State Education Department currently defines the 
college and career readiness standard as scoring at or above Performance Level 4 (meeting 
Common Core expectations) on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core). This 
measure examines the percent of the Accountability Cohort that achieved at least Performance 
Level 4 by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Sixty-one-point-nine percent of students in the 2015 Accountability Cohort scored at least a Level 4 
on the Common Core ELA exam by their fourth year in the cohort, falling just short of the 65-
percent threshold. 

Percent Scoring at Least Level 4 on Regents English Common Core Exam 
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by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort10 

Cohort 
Designation 

Fourth 
Year 

Number 
in 

Cohort 

Percent Scoring at Least 
Level 4 on Common Core 

ELA Exam 

2013 2016-17 n/a n/a 

2014 2017-18 n/a n/a 

2015 2018-19 63 61.9% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

Though the 2015 Cohort did not meet the measure, we are encouraged that a similar percentage of 
students in the 2016 Cohort have already attained a Level 4 on the exam after only their third year 
in the cohort. We are similarly encouraged by the fact that, though Brooklyn Ascend does not 
typically administer the English Regents exam to students until their third year, 19.8 percent of the 
2017 Cohort have already attained a Level 4 after taking the exam a year early. Thus, we are 
confident in our ability to meet this measure in future years. 

Percent Achieving at Least Level 4 by Cohort and Year 

Cohort 
Designation 

2018-19 

Number 
in Cohort 

Percent 
Level 4 

2015 63 61.9% 

2016 54 57.4% 

2017 101 19.8% 

2018 135 0% 

Goal 3: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 80 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will at least partially 
meet Common Core expectations (currently scoring at or above Performance Level 3 on the 
Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in 
the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school administered the Regents English exam that students must pass to graduate.  The school 
scores Regents on a scale from 0 to 100. The State Education Department currently defines the cut 
off for passing and meeting the requirement for graduation as scoring at or above Performance 
Level 3 (partially meeting Common Core expectations) on the Regents Exam in English Language 
Arts (Common Core). This measure examines the percent of the Accountability Cohort that 
achieved at least Performance Level 3 by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

10 Based on the highest score for each student on the English Regents exam 
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RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Eighty-five-point-seven percent of students in the 2015 Cohort attained at least a Level 3 on the 
Regents English exam by their fourth year in the cohort. Thus, Brooklyn Ascend exceeded the 
measure by more than five percentage points. 

Percent Scoring at Least Level 3 on Regents English Common Core Exam 

by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort11 

Cohort 
Designation 

Fourth 
Year 

Number 
in 

Cohort 

Percent Scoring at Least 
Level 3 on the Regents 

English Exam 

2013 2016-17 0 n/a 

2014 2017-18 0 n/a 

2015 2018-19 63 85.7% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

Students in subsequent cohorts are making significant progress towards attaining at least a Level 3 
on the Regents English exam; the 2016 Cohort has already surpassed the target of 80 percent, with 
94.4 percent attaining Level 3. We’re confident that subsequent cohorts will continue to meet this 
target. 

Percent Achieving at Least Level 3 by Cohort and Year 

Cohort 
Designation 

2018-19 

Number 
in Cohort 

Percent 
Passing 

2015 63 85.7% 

2016 54 94.4% 

2017 101 26.7% 

2018 135 0% 

Goal 3: Absolute Measure 

Each year, the Performance Index (“PI”) on the Regents English exam of students completing their 
fourth year in the Accountability Cohort will meet the state’s Measure of Interim Progress (“MIP”) 
set forth in the state’s ESSA accountability system. 

METHOD 

In the state’s revised calculation of the high school Performance Index, schools now receive 
additional credit for students scoring at Accountability Level 4.12 To achieve this measure, all tested 

11 Based on the highest score for each student on the English Regents exam 

12 For more details on the score ranges used to determine Accountability Levels as distinguished from Performance 
Levels, see 
www.p12.nysed.gov/irs/sirs/documents/2017RegentsScoreRangesforAnnualandAccountabilityReporting.pdf 
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students in the Accountability Cohort must have a PI that equals or exceeds the state’s 2018-19 
English language arts MIP for all students of 191. 

The Performance Index is calculated as such: (percent of students scoring at Accountability Level 2) 
+ 2*(percent of students scoring at Accountability Level 3) + 2.5 * (percent of students scoring at 
Accountability Level 4).  Thus, the highest possible PI is 250. The basis for the percent of students is 
the school’s fourth year Accountability Cohort. The Regents Examination in English Language Arts 
(Common Core) is scored on a scale from 0 to 100; 0 to 64 is Accountability Level 1, 65 to 78 is 
Accountability Level 2; 79 to 84 is Accountability Level 3, and 85 to 100 is Accountability Level 4. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Brooklyn Ascend students in the 2015 Cohort achieved a PI of 157.9. Therefore, Brooklyn Ascend 
did not meet the measure. 

English Language Arts Performance Index (PI) 

For the 2015 High School Accountability Cohort 

Number in Percent of Students at Each Accountability Level 

Cohort Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 4 

63 9.5% 23.8% 33.3% 27.0% 

PI = 23.8 + 33.3 + 27.0 = 84.1 
33.3 + 27.0 = 60.3 

+ (.5)*27.0 = 13.5 
PI = 157.9 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

Though we are disappointed that more students in the 2015 Cohort did not achieve an 
Accountability Level 4, we are encouraged by the small percentage of students who attained only a 
Level 1 on the exam, indicating that students are at least partially meeting Common Core 
expectations at Level 2 and that in future years, a larger proportion of students will progress further 
to Levels 3 and 4. 

Goal 3: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort meeting or exceeding Common 
Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core) will exceed the 
percentage of comparable students in the district meeting or exceeding Common Core 
expectations. 

METHOD 

The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school Total 
Cohort to that of the respective Total Cohort of students in the school district of comparison. Due 
to availability of comparative data, this measure uses the school’s Total Cohort results and not the 
Accountability Cohort results. In order to meet or exceed Common Core expectations, a student 
must achieve Performance Level 4 or 5.  Given that students may take Regents exam up through the 
summer of their fourth year, the school presents most recently available school district results. 
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RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Brooklyn Ascend students in the 2015 Cohort surpassed the performance of their district peers. 
Brooklyn Ascend students attained a Level 4 or 5 on the Regents English exam at a rate of 62.9 
percent, compared to 39 percent for district 2014 Cohort students (the most recent data available). 
Brooklyn Ascend thus met the measure. 

Percent Achieving Performance Level 4 or Higher on English Regents 

of Fourth Year Total Cohorts by Charter School and School District 

Cohort Fourth 
Year 

Charter School School District 

Percent 
Level 4 or 5 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Level 4 or 5 

Number in 
Cohort 

2013 2016-17 n/a n/a n/a n/a 

2014 2017-18 n/a n/a 39% 1,214 

2015 2018-19 62.9% 62 n/a n/a 

Goal 3: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort at least partially meeting 
Common Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core) will 
exceed the percentage of comparable students in the district at least partially meeting Common 
Core expectations. 

METHOD 

The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school Total 
Cohort to that of the respective Total Cohort of students in the school district of comparison. Due 
to availability of comparative data, this measure uses the school’s Total Cohort results and not the 
Accountability Cohort results. In order to at least partially meet Common Core expectations, a 
student would need to pass the exam and score at Performance Level 3 or higher (i.e. scoring at 
least 65). Given that students may take Regents exam up through the summer of their fourth year, 
the school presents most recently available school district results. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Brooklyn Ascend students in the 2015 Cohort surpassed the performance of their district peers. 
Brooklyn Ascend students attained at least a Level 3 on the Regents English exam at a rate of 87.1 
percent, compared to 73 percent for district 2014 Cohort students (the most recent data available). 
Brooklyn Ascend thus met the measure. 

Percent Achieving Performance Level 3 or Higher on English Regents 

of Fourth Year Total Cohorts by Charter School and School District 

Cohort Fourth 
Year 

Charter School School District 

Percent Level 
3 or Higher 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent Level 
3 or Higher 

Number in 
Cohort 

2013 2016-17 n/a n/a n/a n/a 

2014 2017-18 n/a n/a 73% 1,214 

2015 2018-19 87.1% 62 n/a n/a 
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Goal 3: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the Performance Index (“PI”) in Regents English of students in the fourth year of their 
high school Accountability Cohort will exceed that of comparable students from the school district 
of comparison. 

METHOD 

The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school 
Accountability Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in the school district of 
comparison. Given that students may take Regents exam up through the summer of their fourth 
year, the school presents most recently available school district results. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

District PI results are not yet available. 

English Regents Performance Index (PI)13 

of Fourth Year Accountability Cohorts by Charter School and School District 

Cohort Fourth 
Year 

Charter School School District 

PI 
Cohort 

Size 
PI 

Cohort 
Size 

2013 2016-17 n/a n/a n/a n/a 

2014 2017-18 n/a n/a n/a n/a 

2015 2018-19 157.9 63 n/a n/a 

Goal 3: Growth Measure 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score 
proficient on their New York State 8th grade English language arts exam will meet the college and 
career readiness standard (currently scoring at Performance Level 4 and fully meeting Common 
Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its English language arts program by enabling 
students who were not meeting proficiency standards in the eighth grade to meet the English 
requirement for the college and career readiness standard.  

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Of the 48 students in the 2015 Cohort who did not score proficient on their NYS 8th grade ELA exam, 
52.1 percent achieved at least a Level 4 on the Common Core exam. Brooklyn Ascend thus met the 
measure. 

Percent Achieving at Least Performance Level 4 on Common Core exam among Students 

13 For an explanation of the procedure to calculate the school’s PI, see page 28. 
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Who Were Not Proficient in the 8th Grade by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 14 

Cohort 
Designation 

Fourth 
Year 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent Achieving Level 4 
on Common Core exam 

2013 2016-17 n/a n/a 

2014 2017-18 n/a n/a 

2015 2018-19 48 52.1% 

Goal 3: Growth Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score 
proficient on their New York State 8th grade English language arts exam will at least partially meet 
Common Core expectations (currently scoring at Performance Level 3 on the Regents Exam in 
English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its English language arts program by enabling 
students who were not meeting proficiency standards in the eighth grade to meet the English 
requirement for graduation.  

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Of the 48 students in the 2015 Cohort who did not score proficient on their NYS 8th grade ELA exam, 
79.2 percent achieved at least a Level 3 on the Common Core exam. Brooklyn Ascend thus met the 
measure. 

Percent Achieving at Least Performance Level 3 on Common Core exam among Students 

Who Were Not Proficient in the 8th Grade by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 15 

Cohort 
Designation 

Fourth 
Year 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent Achieving Level 3 
on Regents English Exam 

2013 2016-17 n/a n/a 

2014 2017-18 n/a n/a 

2015 2018-19 48 79.2% 

SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS GOAL 

Though Brooklyn Ascend students in the 2015 Cohort fell just short of the 65-percent threshold for 
scoring at least a Level 4 on the Regents English exam, we are confident in the strength of Ascend’s 
high school English curriculum to place students on the path to college. The vast majority of 
Brooklyn Ascend students are passing the Regents English exam, indicating they are at least partially 

14 Based on the highest score for each student on the English Regents exam 

15 Based on the highest score for each student on the English Regents exam 
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meeting Common Core expectations, and a significant majority are attaining at least Level 4. 
Compared to the school’s host district, a much larger portion students are passing and achieving 
high performance levels on the exam. We will continue working to ensure that students are able 
meet and exceed expectations in order to attain Level 4 and 5 on the assessment. 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 

Each year, 65 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
will meet or exceed Common Core expectations (currently scoring at or 
above Performance Level 4 on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts 
(Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Did not meet 

Absolute 
Each year, 80 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
will at least partially meet Common Core expectations (currently scoring at 
or above Performance Level 3 on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts 
(Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Met 

Absolute 

Each year, the Performance Index (PI) on the Regents English exam of 
students completing their fourth year in the Accountability Cohort will meet 
the state Measure of Interim Progress (MIP) set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system. 

Did not meet 

Comparative 

Each year, the percentage of students in the Total Cohort meeting or 
exceeding Common Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English 
Language Arts (Common Core) will exceed the percentage of comparable 
students from the district meeting or exceeding Common Core expectations. 

Met 

Comparative 

Each year, the percentage of students in the Total Cohort partially meeting 
Common Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts 
(Common Core) will exceed the percentage of comparable students in the 
district at least partially meeting Common Core expectations. 

Met 

Comparative 

Each year, the Performance Index (PI) in Regents English of students in the 
fourth year of their high school Accountability Cohort will exceed that of 
comparable students from the school district of comparison.  (Using 2016-17 
school district results.) 

Not available 

Growth 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
who did not score proficient on their New York State 8th grade English 
language arts exam will meet or exceed Common Core expectations 
(currently scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on the Regents Exam in 
English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth 
year in the cohort. 

Met 

Growth 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
who did not score proficient on their New York State 8th grade English 
language arts exam will at least partially meet Common Core expectations 
(currently scoring at least Performance Level 3 on the Regents Exam in 
English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth 
year in the cohort. 

Met 

ACTION PLAN 

Students in Brooklyn Ascend’s first fourth-year cohort (the 2015 Cohort) made significant 
achievements, including nearly all students in the cohort graduating and matriculating—at rates 
significantly higher than the school’s host district. Students also achieved notable levels of success 
on several Regents exams, surpassing the performance of their district peers in almost all cases. 
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Still, much work remains to ensure that all students are meeting or exceeding Common Core 
expectations and reaching Performance Level 4 or higher, and in ensuring that the school is 
adequately preparing students for college and career as measured by the College and Career 
Readiness Index. We must continue to build on this progress already being made by younger 
cohorts by strengthening the high school program at Ascend more generally, and through targeted 
interventions and initiatives aimed at improving student performance at the high school in SY 2019-
20. 

We have hired a strong and experienced charter high school leader who began at the network in 
April 2019 and took the helm of the high school as school director on in July 2019. The director has 
already undertaken significant adjustments at the school, and we are highly confident in her 
leadership capacity and vision. In SY 2018-19, Ascend also invested heavily in high school curricular 
and coaching supports at the network office, including directors of high school humanities and high 
school STEM. This coincided with the addition of deans of instruction to the high school, who are 
receiving extensive training from the network directors and who in turn work with the high school 
teachers to strengthen instruction. This work will continue in SY 2019-20 as improvements and 
refinements to the curriculum continue to be made and implemented with fidelity. We also expect 
that a large turnover in staff at the high school this year will positively impact instruction. 

In addition to these efforts, two network-wide initiatives in SY 2019-20 will focus on the high school. 
These include (1) an emphasis on starting the year strong and creating a student culture rooted 
deeply in the enduring pride of the high school community, and (2) an effort to create inquiry-based 
classrooms where students think critically, write cogently, and think broadly, thereby igniting 
curiosity across the school. In order to implement the first initiative, the managing director will 
work with the school leaders to tighten and clearly define school-wide procedures and routines, 
establish cultural programming and traditions that reflect the commitment to a liberal arts 
education, and ensure the visual culture in the school reflects Ascend’s core value of excellence. To 
implement the second initiative, the school will set incremental targets for internal assessments as 
school and network leaders work closely with teachers to ensure that rigorous and inquiry-based 
learning is incorporated into all lessons. As a result of these initiatives, we expect a commitment to 
cultural and instructional excellence will result in more students achieving at the level required to 
not only pass Regents exams, but to ensure students are fully prepared for college-level coursework 
and are meeting or exceeding the rigorous standards of the Common Core. 

The school will continue to operate a robust college access and success program to ensure that 
students graduate from Brooklyn Ascend and are accepted to and persist in college after 
graduation. 

GOAL 4: MATHEMATICS 

Goal 4: Mathematics 

Brooklyn Ascend Charter School students will meet grade level expectations in mathematics 
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BACKGROUND 

Brooklyn Ascend implements the Ascend Common Core curriculum. In SY 2018-19, mathematics 
curriculum and instruction was structured as follows: 

Math in the lower school will be taught daily in two periods of 45 minutes each on Monday through 
Thursday, and one 45-minute period on Friday, covering the following components of math 
instruction: 

• The first math period per day (Monday-Friday) covers Math Workshop. Our math program is 
built on the Launch, Explore, Discuss (LED) model, deployed in Math Workshop. In the LED 
approach, students build enduring conceptual understanding and problem-solving skills by 
progressing through three stages of learning: concrete (manipulatives), pictorial (visual 
representations and models), and abstract (equations). 

• The second period (Monday-Thursday) covers both Number Stories and math fluency. In 
Number Stories, an Ascend-developed program, students spend an entire period studying a 
single Common Core-style math problem, constructing their own solutions, defending their 
thinking, and comparing their approaches. When they see the approaches other scholars 
devise, they learn that there isn't one “right” way to solve a problem. When they then grasp 
the logic that bridges the several approaches, they deepen their understanding of essential 
concepts—and behold math’s beauty. In preparing for Number Stories lessons, teachers 
anticipate methods of varying sophistication that students will use to solve the problem. 
Teachers track the levels of individual students and facilitate the advancement of each 
scholar to the next level. Taught using Cognitively Guided Instruction (CGI), Number Stories 
was launched throughout the Ascend network in spring 2014. 

For approximately 10 minutes a day, students will practice math routines to build 
automaticity and fluency in computation. 

In the middle school, one 90-minute math period per day will be deployed for the EngageNY math 
sequence, which also uses the Launch, Explore, Discuss model. This edition is highly aligned with the 
Common Core Learning Standards. 

Ascend has created a powerful culture of response to instructional data (RTI) to support and 
enhance learning, and will continue to develop and employ a variety of assessments to measure 
progress towards mastering standards. In addition to New York State exams administered each 
spring, teachers use benchmark and mock assessments, unit tests, STEP assessments, norm-
referenced NWEA MAP assessments, and other measures of student performance during the 
course of the year. The Illuminate Data and Assessment (DnA) system allows staff to monitor 
progress and assess student comprehension, and supports data-driven teacher training and 
evaluation through access to instant feedback. Teachers and leaders consistently review student 
work and achievement data and trends, resulting in effective planning for upcoming lessons and 
timely and purposeful feedback to students. Recognizing the impact of feedback on student access 
of knowledge and academic achievement, Ascend in SY 2016-17 implemented the Continuous 
Monitoring and Response to Student Work initiative. The initiative, which has remained a network-
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wide focus since SY 2016-17, focuses on frequent review and analysis of student data to support 
accurate teacher diagnosis of misconceptions, allow strategic instructional adjustments, and ensure 
that students receive effective feedback in order to improve their understanding. 

All Ascend schools participate in Teacher Planning and Development (TPD), a network-wide 
program begun in SY 2015-16 aimed at improving teaching and learning and creating a platform for 
teacher collaboration. Through unit studies, planning and assessment studies, lesson debriefs, 
teach-backs, and data meetings, TPD meetings represent a critical piece of a professional 
development program that also includes pre-service training, full professional development days, 
afterschool sessions, and ongoing coaching and modeling. The TPD program complements the 
Continuous Monitoring initiative by providing dedicated time in teachers’ and leaders’ schedules for 
analysis of student work, tracking data, and developing teacher strategies for improving their 
response to student performance during lessons. 

In school year 2018-19 the Ascend network initiatives were (1) Strengthening Early Literacy in 
grades K-2, (2) Continuous Monitoring of Student Work (K-8), (3) Strengthening Implementation of 
Responsive Classroom in grades K-8. 

The intended outcomes of the Early Literacy initiative were to establish a network-wide vision of 
excellent guided reading instruction and provide guided reading training and oversight throughout 
the year, increase Read Aloud instruction to take place every day in grades K, 1, and the first term of 
grade 2 to ensure that students listen to and discuss great books and see models of the thinking 
readers do, and establish Readers Workshop to ensure teachers strategically introduce to all 
students the skills and strategies needed to tackle grade level texts. 

The intended outcomes of the Continuous Monitoring initiative were to improve student reading 
and math achievement by improving the ability of teachers and leaders to accurately evaluate 
student work to assess mastery; improve the ability of teachers to identify misconceptions 
evidenced in student work; plan and deliver effective student feedback; improve student mastery 
through application of frequent, targeted teacher feedback; improve the efficacy and efficiency of 
instruction through analysis of regularly collected student work; and improve the mechanisms for 
monitoring student progress daily and weekly. 

Through the Responsive Classroom initiative, we sought to create a sense of community, increase 
cognitive engagement and student autonomy, and improve academic performance. Improvement 
will be measured by positive responses to staff and student survey questions on order, discipline, 
and respect, and by improvements in reading and math achievement. 

Goal 4: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year will perform at 
proficiency on the New York State mathematics examination for grades 3-8. 

METHOD 

The school administered the New York State Testing Program mathematics assessment to students 
in third through eighth grade in April 2019. Each student’s raw score has been converted to a 
grade-specific scaled score and a performance level.  
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The table below summarizes participation information for this year’s test administration. The table 
indicates total enrollment and total number of students tested. It also provides a detailed 
breakdown of those students excluded from the exam.  Note that this table includes all students 
according to grade level, even if they have not enrolled in at least their second year. 

2018 19 State Mathematics Exam 
Number of Students Tested and Not Tested 

Grade 
Total 

Tested 

Not Tested16 Total 
Enrolled IEP ELL Absent Refused 

3 134 0 0 0 2 136 

4 139 0 0 0 0 139 

5 114 2 0 0 0 116 

6 109 1 0 0 0 110 

7 113 0 0 0 0 113 

8 0* 0 0 0 108 108 

All 609 3 0 0 110 719 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Seventy-five-point-two percent of Brooklyn Ascend students enrolled in at least their second year 
achieved proficiency on the NYS mathematics exam in SY 2018-19, compared 74.5 percent of all 
Brooklyn Ascend students in tested grades achieved proficiency, thereby meeting the measure and 
surpassing the 75-percent threshold. Performance was notably strong in grades 3 and 6, where 
students exceeded the absolute measure by achieving more than 80-percent proficiency. 
Performance across all grades was strong, with no grade achieving less than 68-percent proficiency. 

Performance on 2018 19 State Mathematics Exam 
By All Students and Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 

Grades 

All Students 
Enrolled in at least their 

Second Year 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

3 83.6% 134 82.9% 123 

4 67.6% 139 68.3% 126 

5 70.2% 114 69.8% 106 

6 80.7% 109 82.7% 98 

7 70.8% 113 72.8% 103 

All 74.5% 609 75.2% 556 

16 Students exempted from this exam according to their Individualized Education Program (IEP), because of English Language 
Learners (ELL) status, or absence for at least some part of the exam. 
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ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

For the second year, eighth grade students at Brooklyn Ascend sat for the Algebra I Regents exam in 
place of the NYS Common Core mathematics exam. This year, 89.7 percent of students tested in 
grade 8 passed the exam, similar to the 86.6 percent who passed in SY 2017-18 

Performance on a Regents Mathematics Exam 
Of 8th Grade All Students by Year 

Grade Year 
Regents 

Exam 

Percent 
Passing with 

a 65 

Number 
Tested 

8 2016-17 n/a n/a n/a 

8 2017-18 Algebra I 86.6% 82 

8 2018-19 Algebra I 89.7% 87 

Since SY 2016-17, Brooklyn Ascend students have steadily improved their overall proficiency, for a 
total growth of 21.5 percentage points over the two-year period. In notable achievements, grade 6 
and 7 continued with a second year of impressive gains, for a growth of more than 30 points in 
grade 6 and nearly 20 points in grade 7 since SY 2016-17. 

Mathematics Performance by Grade Level and School Year 

Grade 

Percent of Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 
Achieving Proficiency 

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Percent 
Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Number 
Tested 

3 70.2% 121 87.8% 123 82.9% 123 

4 50.8% 128 68.6% 118 68.3% 126 

5 59.7% 119 52.3% 88 69.8% 106 

6 49.4% 87 81.3% 96 82.7% 98 

7 53.5% 99 66.7% 90 72.8% 103 

8 28.0% 75 -- 0 -- 0 

All 53.7% 629 72.4% 515 75.2% 556 

Goal 4: Absolute Measure 

Each year, the school’s aggregate Performance Index (“PI”) on the state mathematics exam will 
meet that year’s state Measure of Interim Progress (“MIP”) set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system. 

METHOD 

In New York State, ESSA school performance goals are met by showing that an absolute proportion 
of a school's students who have taken the mathematics test have scored at the partially proficient, 
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or proficient and advanced performance levels (Levels 2 or 3 & 4). The percentage of students at 
each of these three levels is used to calculate a PI and determine if the school has met the MIP set 
each year by the state’s ESSA accountability system.  To achieve this measure, all tested students 
must have a PI value that equals or exceeds the state’s 2018-19 mathematics MIP for all students of 
107. The PI is the sum of the percent of students in all tested grades combined scoring at Level 2, 
plus two times the percent of students scoring at Level 3, plus two-and-a-half times the percent of 
students scoring at Level 4.  Thus, the highest possible PI is 250. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

In mathematics, Brooklyn Ascend achieved a PI of 187.7, exceeding the MIP value of 107 and 
thereby meeting the measure. 

Mathematics 2017 18 Performance Level Index (PI) 

Number in Percent of Students at Each Performance Level 

Cohort Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 4 

609 9.7% 15.8% 28.9% 45.6% 

PI = 15.8 + 28.9 + 45.6 = 90.3 
28.9 + 45.6 = 74.5 

+ 45.6 = 22.8 
PI = 187.7 

Goal 4: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least their second year and 
performing at proficiency on the state mathematics exam will be greater than that of all students in 
the same tested grades in the school district of comparison. 

METHOD 

A school compares the performance of tested students enrolled in at least their second year to that 
of all tested students in the public school district of comparison. Comparisons are between the 
results for each grade in which the school had tested students in at least their second year at the 
school and the total result for all students at the corresponding grades in the school district.17 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Brooklyn Ascend’s aggregate performance outpaced Community School District 18 by nearly 40 
percentage points. Thus, the school met the measure. Brooklyn Ascend students also outperformed 
their district peers in every grade in SY 2018-19 by significant margins.  

17 Schools can acquire these data when the New York State Education Department releases its database containing grade level 

ELA and math test results for all schools and districts statewide.  The NYSED announces the release of the data on its News 
Release webpage. 
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2018 19 State Mathematics Exam 
Charter School and District Performance by Grade Level 

Grade 

Percent of Students at or Above Proficiency 

Charter School Students 
In At Least 2nd Year 

All District Students 

Percent 
Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Number 
Tested 

3 82.9% 123 50.1% 1,041 

4 68.3% 126 39.4% 1,081 

5 69.8% 106 33.0% 1,057 

6 82.7% 98 27.3% 1,053 

7 72.8% 103 27.3% 1,063 

8 -- 0 -- --

All 75.2% 556 35.4% 5,295 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

While students in CSD 18 have shown a 2.2-percentage-point improvement in proficiency over two 
years, Brooklyn Ascend students have improved by 21.5 points in the same time frame. Since SY 
2016-17, Brooklyn Ascend has outperformed CSD 18 in all but one case. 

Mathematics Performance of Charter School and Local District 
by Grade Level and School Year 

Grade 

Percent of Students Enrolled in at Least their Second Year Who Are at 
Proficiency Compared to Local District Students 

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Charter 
School 

District 
Charter 
School 

District 
Charter 
School 

District 

3 70.2% 34.4% 87.8% 43.7% 82.9% 50.1% 

4 50.8% 37.4% 68.6% 33.8% 68.3% 39.4% 

5 59.7% 27.2% 52.3% 27.3% 69.8% 33.0% 

6 49.4% 20.7% 81.3% 23.7% 82.7% 27.3% 

7 53.5% 34.9% 66.7% 24.5% 72.8% 27.3% 

8 28.0% 44.1% -- -- -- --

All 53.7% 33.3% 72.4% 30.6% 75.2% 35.4% 

Goal 4: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the school will exceed its predicted level of performance on the state mathematics exam 

by an Effect Size of 0.3 or above (performing higher than expected to a meaningful degree) 
according to a regression analysis controlling for economically disadvantaged students among all 
public schools in New York State. 

METHOD 

The Institute conducts a Comparative Performance Analysis, which compares the school’s 
performance to that of demographically similar public schools statewide. The Institute uses a 
regression analysis to control for the percentage of economically disadvantaged students among all 
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public schools in New York State. The Institute compares the school’s actual performance to the 
predicted performance of public schools with a similar concentration of economically 
disadvantaged students. The difference between the school’s actual and predicted performance, 
relative to other schools with similar economically disadvantaged statistics, produces an Effect Size. 
An Effect Size of 0.3, or performing higher than expected to a meaningful degree, is the 
requirement for achieving this measure. 

Given the timing of the state’s release of economically disadvantaged data and the demands of the 
data analysis, the 2017-18 analysis is not yet available. This report contains 2017-18 results, the 
most recent Comparative Performance Analysis available.  

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

In SY 2017-18, Brooklyn Ascend performed 35.8 percentage points better than expected when 
controlling for the number of economically disadvantaged students taking the exam. This resulted 
in an Effect Size of 1.72, thereby meeting the measure for performing better than expected to a 
large degree. All tested grades performed better than expected to a large degree in SY 2017-18. 

2017 18 Mathematics Comparative Performance by Grade Level 

Grade 
Percent 

Economically 
Disadvantaged 

Number 
Tested 

Percent of Students 
at Levels 3&4 

Actual Predicted 

Difference 
between Actual 
and Predicted 

Effect 
Size 

3 84.8 142 85.9 43.2 42.7 1.97 

4 80.4 135 68.1 38.5 29.6 1.41 

5 82.7 110 50.9 31.9 19.0 1.02 

6 83.3 109 78.9 31.3 47.6 2.30 

7 87.0 106 65.1 25.7 39.4 1.88 

8 -- -- -- -- -- --

All 83.5 602 70.6 34.8 35.8 1.72 

School’s Overall Comparative Performance: 

Higher than expected to a large degree 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

Brooklyn Ascend has, in each of the past three years, performed better than expected to a large 
degree. The school’s Effect Size has increased since steadily SY 2015-16. 

Mathematics Comparative Performance by School Year 

School 
Year 

Grades 
Percent 

Economically 
Disadvantaged 

Number 
Tested 

Actual Predicted 
Effect 
Size 

2015-16 3-8 83.8 573 42.0 26.7 0.80 

2016-17 3-8 85.5 688 53.2 26.3 1.41 

2017-18 3-7 83.5 602 70.6 34.8 1.72 
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Goal 4: Growth Measure18 

Each year, under the state’s Growth Model, the school’s mean unadjusted growth percentile in 
mathematics for all tested students in grades 4-8 will be above the target of 50. 

METHOD 

This measure examines the change in performance of the same group of students from one year to 
the next and the progress they are making in comparison to other students with the same score in 
the previous year.  The analysis only includes students who took the state exam in 2017-18 and also 
have a state exam score in 2016-17 including students who were retained in the same grade. 
Students with the same 2016-17 scores are ranked by their 2017-18 scores and assigned a 
percentile based on their relative growth in performance (student growth percentile).  Students’ 
growth percentiles are aggregated school-wide to yield a school’s mean growth percentile.  In order 
for a school to meet the measure, the school would have to achieve a mean growth percentile 
above the target of 50. 

Given the timing of the state’s release of Growth Model data, the 2018-19 analysis is not yet 
available. This report contains 2017-18 results, the most recent Growth Model data available.19 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Brooklyn Ascend achieved an overall mean growth percentile of 65.0 in SY 2017-18, compared to 
the statewide median of 50.0. Thus, Brooklyn Ascend met the measure. Each grade’s mean 
percentile at Brooklyn Ascend exceeded the statewide median. 

2017 18 Mathematics Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level 

Grade 
Mean Growth Percentile 

School Target 

4 51.0 50.0 

5 54.3 50.0 

6 79.2 50.0 

7 80.6 50.0 

8 -- 50.0 

All 65.0 50.0 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

Brooklyn Ascend’s mean growth percentile has remained steadily above the statewide median for 
the past three years. 

18 See Guidelines for Creating a SUNY Accountability Plan for an explanation. 

19 Schools can acquire these data from the NYSED’s business portal: portal.nysed.gov. 

Brooklyn Ascend Charter School 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress Report Page 42 of 62 



 

      

 

     

 
 

    

     

     

     

     

     

     

 

  

       
     

        

         
           

           
        

        
    

       
           

   

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

 

 

   
 
 

  

 

 

 
  

   

   

 

 
 

   
       

 

 

Mathematics Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level and School Year 

Grade 
Mean Growth Percentile 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 Target 

4 72.7 50.9 51.0 50.0 

5 65.4 55.2 54.3 50.0 

6 61.4 73.1 79.2 50.0 

7 58.4 79.1 80.6 50.0 

8 74.4 75.1 -- 50.0 

All 66.9 65.2 65.0 50.0 

SUMMARY OF THE MATHEMATICS GOAL 

Brooklyn Ascend students displayed notable academic achievements overall and at each grade level 
in SY 2018-19, with the school for the first time meeting the absolute measure of more than 75 
percent of students proficient in math and meeting all other accountability measures. 

The school is confident in the strength of the Ascend Common Core curriculum, as evidenced by 
students in three grades achieving impressive proficiency levels of over 75 percent in SY 2018-19, 
and students in other grades making significant gains in recent years. Brooklyn Ascend students 
across all tested grades once again outperformed their district peers by significant margins. Over 
the past two years, cohorts have achieved steady proficiency gains, resulting in a steadily mean 
growth percentile that exceeds the statewide median. Relative to similarly economically 
disadvantaged students across the state, Brooklyn Ascend students improved their performance 
markedly in SY 2017-18, performing better than expected to a large degree at every grade level. 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 
Each year, 75 percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least 
their second year will perform at proficiency on the New York State 
mathematics exam for grades 3-8. 

Met 

Absolute 
Each year, the school’s aggregate PI on the state’s English language arts 
exam will meet that year’s state MIP as set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system. 

Met 

Comparative 

Each year, the percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least 
their second year and performing at proficiency on the state mathematics 
exam will be greater than that of students in the same tested grades in the 
school district of comparison. 

Met 

Comparative 

Each year, the school will exceed its predicted level of performance on the 
state mathematics exam by an Effect Size of 0.3 or above (performing 
higher than expected to a meaningful degree) according to a regression 
analysis controlling for economically disadvantaged students among all 
public schools in New York State. (Using 2017-18 results.) 

Met 

Growth 
Each year, under the state’s Growth Model the school’s mean unadjusted 
growth percentile in mathematics for all tested students in grades 4-8 will 
be above the target of 50. (Using the 2017-18 results.) 

Met 
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ACTION PLAN 

Through the next accountability period, Brooklyn Ascend will continue to build on its most 
successful practices and results in math, while improving on areas of weakness with targeted 
adjustments and interventions. 

Brooklyn Ascend will effect Ascend’s network-wide initiatives in SY 2019-20: Strengthening 
Foundations in Reading in grades K-2, Closing the Gap in grades 5-8, the Continuous Monitoring of 
Student Work in K-8, and Launching Strong and Refining the Ascend Culture in K-8. These initiatives 
represent the continuation and refinement of initiatives begun in previous school years at Ascend. 

The Continuous Monitoring of Student Work Initiative begun in SY 2015-16 will again be 
implemented to support accurate teacher diagnosis of misconceptions, allow strategic instructional 
adjustments, and ensure effective feedback in order to improve student understanding. Continuous 
Monitoring will continue to inform the Teacher Planning and Development (TPD) program, as well 
as teacher evaluations and coaching. 

In grades 5-8, in the effort to close the gap and ensure all students are learning and achieving, we 
will create, train, and implement a modifications manual to ensure all students have access to tier 1 
curriculum at the middle school level, adjust scheduling guidelines to for additional student 
interventions, and implement year-round after-school math intensives three times per week for at 
least students in grade 5, in an effort to remedy the general trend of declines in achievement from 
grade 4 to grade 5. 

The network’s initiative related to strong school launches and refining Ascend’s distinctive culture 
will establish the Ascend vision for school culture. Schools’ managing directors will explicitly define 
excellence in Ascend student culture through a new student culture rubric and will consistently 
observe school routines and deans of students’ referrals. School directors were trained throughout 
Summer Institute on whole school routines and procedures, and will continue to train on and 
practice these procedures through the first few weeks of schools. These cultural refinements will 
contribute meaningfully to increased academic performance across all grades. 

HIGH SCHOOL MATHEMATICS 

Goal 4: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 65 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will exceed Common 
Core expectations (currently scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on a Regents mathematics 
exam) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school administered the Regents mathematics exam(s) that students must pass to graduate.  
The school scores Regents on a scale from 0 to 100. The State Education Department currently 
defines the college and career readiness standard as scoring at or above Performance Level 4 
(meeting Common Core expectations) on any Regents Common Core mathematics exams. This 
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measure examines the percent of the Accountability Cohort that achieved at least Performance 
Level 4 by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Seventeen-point-four percent of Brooklyn Ascend students in the 2015 Accountability Cohort 
scored at least a Level 4 on a Regents mathematics exam by the end of their fourth. The school thus 
did not meet the measure. These results are concerning, and we are working closely to ensure that 
more students end their high school career meeting Common Core expectations in math. In 
particular, following two successful pilot years of administering the Algebra I Regents exam in grade 
8 at Brooklyn Ascend, all Ascend middle schools will administer the Algebra I Regents to students in 
grade 8, allowing students an additional opportunity to meet Common Core expectations.  We also 
attribute the weaker performance of the 2015 Cohort to staffing transitions in the mathematics 
department and to cultural challenges experienced at the high school more generally over the past 
two years. As described below, we are confident that the school has made significant progress in 
mitigating these challenges, which will result in higher achievement going forward. 

Percent Scoring at Least Level 4 on a Regents Mathematics Common Core Exam 

by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort20 

Cohort 
Designation 

Fourth 
Year 

Number 
in 

Cohort 

Percent Scoring at Least 
Level 4 

2013 2016-17 0 n/a 

2014 2017-18 0 n/a 

2015 2018-19 63 17.4% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

A higher proportion of the 2016 Cohort, by the end of their third year, have achieved a Level 4 on at 
least one Regents mathematics exam, indicating that more students will graduate meeting or 
exceeding Common Core expectations. By the end of SY 2018-19, the first- and second-year cohorts 
were making progress towards this measure. 

Percent Achieving at Least Level 4 by Cohort and Year 

Cohort 
Designation 

2018-19 

Number 
in Cohort 

Percent 
Level 4 

2015 63 17.4% 

2016 54 31.5% 

2017 101 14.9% 

2018 135 19.3% 

Goal 4: Absolute Measure 

20 Based on the highest score for each student on a mathematics Regents exam 
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Each year, 80 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will at least partially 
meet Common Core expectations (currently scoring at or above Performance Level 3 on a Regents 
mathematics exam) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school administered the Regents mathematics exam(s) that students must pass to graduate. 
The school scores Regents on a scale from 0 to 100. The State Education Department currently 
defines the cut off for passing and meeting the requirement for graduation as scoring at or above 
Performance Level 3 (partially meeting Common Core expectations) on the Regents mathematics 
exams.  This measure examines the percent of the Accountability Cohort that achieved at least 
Performance Level 3 by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Ninety-two-point-one percent of Brooklyn Ascend students in the 2015 Cohort achieved at least a 
Level 3 on a Regents mathematics exam by the end of their fourth year; Brooklyn Ascend thereby 
met the measure. 

Percent Scoring at Least Level 3 on a Regents Mathematics Common Core Exam 

by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort21 

Cohort 
Designation 

Number 
in 

Cohort 

Percent Scoring at Least 
Level 3 on a Regents 
Mathematics Exam Fourth 

Year 

2013 2016-17 0 n/a 

2014 2017-18 0 n/a 

2015 2018-19 63 92.1% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

Brooklyn Ascend’s 2016 and 2017 Cohorts have already met the measure by the completion of SY 
2018-18, and the 2018 Cohort remains on track to exceed the measure in subsequent years. 

Percent Achieving at Least Level 3 by Cohort and Year 

Cohort 
Designation 

2018-19 

Number 
in Cohort 

Percent 
Passing 

2015 63 92.1% 

2016 54 98.1% 

2017 101 88.1% 

2018 135 74.8% 

Goal 4: Absolute Measure 

21 Based on the highest score for each student on a mathematics Regents exam 
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Each year, the Performance Index (“PI”) on the Regents mathematics exam of students completing 
their fourth year in the Accountability Cohort will meet the state’s Measure of Interim Progress 
(“MIP”) set forth in the state’s ESSA accountability system. 

METHOD 

In the state’s revised calculation of the high school Performance Index, schools now receive 
additional credit for students scoring at Accountability Level 4.22 To achieve this measure, all tested 
students in the Accountability Cohort must have a PI that equals or exceeds the state’s 2018-19 
mathematics MIP for all students of 151. 

The Performance Index is calculated as such: (percent of students scoring at Accountability Level 2) 
+ 2*(percent of students scoring at Accountability Level 3) + 2.5 * (percent of students scoring at 
Accountability Level 4).  Thus, the highest possible PI is 250. The basis for the percent of students is 
the school’s fourth year Accountability Cohort. Regents Common Core mathematics exams are 
scored on a scale from 0 to 100; 0 to 64 is Accountability Level 1, 65 to 79 is Accountability Level 2 
(65 to 77 for Algebra II); 80 to 84 is Accountability Level 3 (78 to 84 for Algebra II), and 85 to 100 is 
Accountability Level 4. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Brooklyn Ascend’s 2015 Cohort achieved a PI of 110.1, falling short of the MIP value and thus failing 
to meet the measure. 

Mathematics Performance Index (PI) 

For the 2015 High School Accountability Cohort 

Number in Percent of Students at Each Accountability Level 

Cohort Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 4 

63 7.9% 74.6% 15.9% 1.6% 

PI = 74.6 + 15.9 + 1.6 = 92.1 
15.9 + 1.6 = 17.2 

+ (.5)*1.6 = 0.8 
PI = 110.1 

Goal 4: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort meeting or exceeding Common 
Core expectations on a Regents mathematics exams will exceed the percentage of comparable 
students in the district meeting or exceeding Common Core expectations. 

METHOD 

The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school Total 
Cohort to that of the respective Total Cohort of students in the school district of comparison. Due 
to availability of comparative data, this measure uses the school’s Total Cohort results and not the 

22 For more details on the score ranges used to determine Accountability Levels as distinguished from Performance 
Levels, see 
www.p12.nysed.gov/irs/sirs/documents/2017RegentsScoreRangesforAnnualandAccountabilityReporting.pdf 
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Accountability Cohort results. In order to meet or exceed Common Core expectations, a student 
must achieve Performance Level 4 or 5.  Given that students may take Regents exam up through the 
summer of their fourth year, the school presents most recently available school district results. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Brooklyn Ascend’s 2015 Cohort exceeded the performance of the host district. The percentage of 
Brooklyn Ascend students attaining a Level 4 or 5 on a Regents mathematics exam exceeded that of 
the district by more than 10 percentage points. Brooklyn Ascend met the measure. 

Percent Achieving Performance Level 4 or Higher on a Mathematics Regents 

of Fourth Year Total Cohorts by Charter School and School District 

Cohort Fourth 
Year 

Charter School School District 

Percent Level 4 or 5 
Number in 

Cohort 
Percent Level 4 or 5 

Number in 
Cohort 

2013 2016-17 n/a 0 n/a n/a 

2014 2017-18 n/a 0 n/a n/a 

2015 2018-19 17.5% 63 5% 1,214 

Goal 4: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort at least partially meeting 
Common Core expectations on a Regents mathematics exams will exceed the percentage of 
comparable students in the district at least partially meeting Common Core expectations. 

METHOD 

The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school Total 
Cohort to that of the respective Total Cohort of students in the school district of comparison. Due 
to availability of comparative data, this measure uses the school’s Total Cohort results and not the 
Accountability Cohort results. In order to at least partially meet Common Core expectations, a 
student would need to pass the exam and score at Performance Level 3 or higher (i.e. scoring at 
least 65).Given that students may take Regents exam up through the summer of their fourth year, 
the school presents most recently available school district results. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Brooklyn Ascend’s 2015 Cohort also exceeded the performance of the host district with the 
percentage of Brooklyn Ascend students attaining at least a Level 3 on a Regents mathematics 
exam. Ninety-two percent of Brooklyn Ascend students attained a Level 3 or higher, compared to 67 
percent of students in the host district. 

Percent Achieving Performance Level 3 or Higher on a Mathematics Regents 

of Fourth Year Total Cohorts by Charter School and School District 

Charter School School District 

Number in Number in 
Cohort Percent Level 3 or Percent Level 3 or 

Fourth Cohort Cohort 
Higher Higher 

Year 
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2013 2016-17 n/a 0 n/a n/a 

2014 2017-18 n/a 0 n/a n/a 

2015 2018-19 92.1% 63 67% 1,214 

Goal 4: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the Performance Index (“PI”) in Regents mathematics of students in the fourth year of 
their high school Accountability Cohort will exceed that of comparable students from the school 
district of comparison. 

METHOD 

The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school 
Accountability Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in the school district of 
comparison. Given that students may take Regents exam up through the summer of their fourth 
year, the school presents most recently available school district results. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

District-level PI results are not yet available. 

Mathematics Regents Performance Index (PI) 

of Fourth Year Accountability Cohorts by Charter School and School District 

Cohort Fourth 
Year 

Charter School School District 

PI 
Cohort 

Size 
PI 

Cohort 
Size 

2013 2016-17 n/a 0 n/a n/a 

2014 2017-18 n/a 0 n/a n/a 

2015 2018-19 110.1 63 n/a n/a 

Goal 4: Growth Measure 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score 
proficient on their New York State 8th grade mathematics exam will meet the college and career 
readiness standard (currently scoring at Performance Level 4 and fully meeting Common Core 
expectations on a Regents mathematics exam) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its mathematics program by enabling students who 
were not meeting proficiency standards in the eighth grade to grow to meeting the mathematics 
requirement for the college and career readiness standard.  

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Of the 57 students in the 2015 Cohort who did not score proficient on the NYS Common Core 
mathematics exam in grade 8, 14 percent achieved a Level 4 on a mathematics Regents exam. 
Brooklyn Ascend did not meet the measure. 
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Percent Achieving at Least Performance Level 4 on a Mathematics Regents Exam among Students 

Who Were Not Proficient in the 8th Grade by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 23 

Cohort 
Designation 

Fourth 
Year 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent Achieving Level 4 
on Common Core Exam 

2013 2016-17 0 n/a 

2014 2017-18 0 n/a 

2015 2018-19 57 14.0% 

Goal 4: Growth Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score 
proficient on their New York State 8th grade mathematics exam will at least partially meet Common 
Core expectations (currently scoring at Performance Level 3 on a Regents mathematics exam) by 
the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its mathematics program by enabling students who 
were not meeting proficiency standards in the eighth grade to move to meeting the English 
requirement for graduation.  

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Of the 57 students in the 2015 Cohort who did not score proficient on the NYS Common Core 
mathematics exam in grade 8, 91.2 percent achieved at least a Level 3 on a mathematics Regents 
exam. Brooklyn Ascend met the measure. 

Percent Achieving at Least Performance Level 3 on a Mathematics Regents Exam among Students 

Who Were Not Proficient in the 8th Grade by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 24 

Cohort 
Designation 

Fourth 
Year 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent Achieving Level 3 

2013 2016-17 0 n/a 

2014 2017-18 0 n/a 

2015 2018-19 57 91.2% 

SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL MATHEMATICS GOAL 25 

In math, students in Brooklyn Ascend’s first fourth-year Cohort did not meet or exceed Common 
Core expectations in large numbers, thereby failing to meet our expectations or aspirations for 
them. Still, we are encouraged by the number of students who were able to achieve Level 3 or 

23 Based on the highest score for each student on the English Regents exam 

24 Based on the highest score for each student on the mathematics Regents exam 

25 If the school includes a middle school component, add these measures to the subject area goal for the younger grades. 
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higher on a Regents mathematics exam and thus passing and putting them on the path towards 
graduation and success in college. 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 

Each year, 65 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
will meet or exceed Common Core expectations (currently scoring at or 
above Performance Level 4 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Did not meet 

Absolute 
Each year, 80 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
will at least partially meet Common Core expectations (currently scoring at 
or above Performance Level 3 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Met 

Absolute 

Each year, the Performance Index (PI) in mathematics of students 
completing their fourth year in the Accountability Cohort will meet the state 
Measure of Interim Progress (MIP) set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system. 

Did not meet 

Comparative 

Each year, the percentage of students in the Total Cohort meeting or 
exceeding Common Core expectations on a Regents mathematics exam will 
exceed the percentage of comparable students from the district meeting or 
exceeding Common Core expectations. 

Met 

Comparative 

Each year, the percentage of students in the Total Cohort partially meeting 
Common Core expectations on a Regents mathematics exam will exceed the 
percentage of comparable students in the district at least partially meeting 
Common Core expectations. 

Met 

Comparative 

Each year, the Performance Index (PI) in Regents mathematics of students in 
the fourth year of their high school Accountability Cohort will exceed that of 
comparable students from the school district of comparison. (Using 2016-17 
school district results.) 

Not available 

Growth 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
who did not score proficient on their New York State 8th grade mathematics 
exam will meet or exceed Common Core expectations (currently scoring at 
or above Performance Level 4 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Did not meet 

Growth 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
who did not score proficient on their New York State 8th grade mathematics 
exam will at least partially meet Common Core expectations (currently 
scoring at least Performance Level 3 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Met 

ACTION PLAN 

Students in Brooklyn Ascend’s first fourth-year cohort (the 2015 Cohort) made significant 
achievements, including nearly all students in the cohort graduating and matriculating—at rates 
significantly higher than the school’s host district. Students also achieved notable levels of success 
on several Regents exams, surpassing the performance of their district peers in almost all cases. 
Still, much work remains to ensure that all students are meeting or exceeding Common Core 
expectations and reaching Performance Level 4 or higher, and in ensuring that the school is 
adequately preparing students for college and career as measured by the College and Career 
Readiness Index. We must continue to build on this progress already being made by younger 
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cohorts by strengthening the high school program at Ascend more generally, and through targeted 
interventions and initiatives aimed at improving student performance at the high school in SY 2019-
20. 

We have hired a strong and experienced charter high school leader who began at the network in 
April 2019 and took the helm of the high school as school director on in July 2019. The director has 
already undertaken significant adjustments at the school, and we are highly confident in her 
leadership capacity and vision. In SY 2018-19, Ascend also invested heavily in high school curricular 
and coaching supports at the network office, including directors of high school humanities and high 
school STEM. This coincided with the addition of deans of instruction to the high school, who are 
receiving extensive training from the network directors and who in turn work with the high school 
teachers to strengthen instruction. This work will continue in SY 2019-20 as improvements and 
refinements to the curriculum continue to be made and implemented with fidelity. We also expect 
that a large turnover in staff at the high school this year will positively impact instruction. 

In addition to these efforts, two network-wide initiatives in SY 2019-20 will focus on the high school. 
These include (1) an emphasis on starting the year strong and creating a student culture rooted 
deeply in the enduring pride of the high school community, and (2) an effort to create inquiry-based 
classrooms where students think critically, write cogently, and think broadly, thereby igniting 
curiosity across the school. In order to implement the first initiative, the managing director will 
work with the school leaders to tighten and clearly define school-wide procedures and routines, 
establish cultural programming and traditions that reflect the commitment to a liberal arts 
education, and ensure the visual culture in the school reflects Ascend’s core value of excellence. To 
implement the second initiative, the school will set incremental targets for internal assessments as 
school and network leaders work closely with teachers to ensure that rigorous and inquiry-based 
learning is incorporated into all lessons. As a result of these initiatives, we expect a commitment to 
cultural and instructional excellence will result in more students achieving at the level required to 
not only pass Regents exams, but to ensure students are fully prepared for college-level coursework 
and are meeting or exceeding the rigorous standards of the Common Core. 

The school will continue to operate a robust college access and success program to ensure that 
students graduate from Brooklyn Ascend and are accepted to and persist in college after 
graduation. 

GOAL 5: SCIENCE 

Goal 5: Science 

Brooklyn Ascend Charter School students will meet grade level expectations in science. 

BACKGROUND 

Brooklyn Ascend implements the Ascend Common Core curriculum. In SY 2018-19, the science 
curriculum was structured as follows: 

• In the lower school, Ascend’s original inquiry-based science program derives from the 
MacMillan/McGraw-Hill’s A Closer Look science program, which was selected for its strong 
Common Core alignment, integration of rich content with well-conceived inquiry 
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experiments, and vibrant, engaging textbooks. The program’s goal is to provide all students 
with a solid foundation in science literacy. Students develop their ability to observe, 
describe, compare, inquire, and evaluate while studying the “big ideas” and essential core 
concepts of science. The program was developed to meet the requirements and 
expectations established in both the National Science Education Standards and in the 
Benchmarks for Science Literacy. 

Each year students begin with an introduction to the work of scientists currently studying 
real world concerns. Every unit reflects the broad science content standard, beginning with 
the “big idea” question and where each lesson supports a particular aspect of that question. 
Each grade level contains two complete units on Life Science, Earth Science, and Physical 
Science. 

• In the middle school, students learn standards-based science in the context of intriguing 
personal and societal issues through the Science Education for Public Understanding 
Program (SEPUP), developed at the University of California at Berkeley and composed of 
courses in Issues and Earth Science, Issues and Life Science, and Issues and Physical Science. 

Goal 5: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year will perform at or 
above proficiency on the New York State science examination. 

METHOD 

The school administered the New York State Testing Program science assessment to students in 
fourth and eighth grade in spring 2019. The school converted each student’s raw score to a 
performance level and a grade-specific scaled score. The criterion for success on this measure 
requires students enrolled in at least their second year to score at proficiency. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Seventy-one-point-one percent of Brooklyn Ascend students in grades 4 and 8 were found 
proficient on the New York State science exam in SY 2018-19. Therefore, the school fell just short of 
meeting the measure. Students in grade 4 performed well, exceeding the measure by 0.5 
percentage points. 

Charter School Performance on 2018 19 State Science Exam 

By All Students and Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 

Grade 

Percent of Students at Proficiency of Students in At 
Least 2nd Year 

Percent Proficient Number Tested 

4 75.5% 139 

8 65.4% 107 

All 71.1% 246 
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ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The performance of Brooklyn Ascend’s grade 4 students decreased from SY 2017-18 to SY 2018-19. 
This decline is concerning, and we are closely monitoring performance in science this year to ensure 
students in grade 4 achieve high levels of proficiency. We attribute the decline in SY 2018-19 
primarily to a mid-year instructional leadership transition at the grade 4 level at Brooklyn Ascend. 
The grade 4 dean of instruction role has since been filled by a capable former grade 4 teacher at the 
school. We are encouraged by the significant increase in eighth grade proficiency SY 2017-18 to SY 
2018-19, narrowing the gap with their lower school peers. 

Science Performance by Grade Level and School Year 

Grade 

Percent of Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year at 
Proficiency 

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

4 82.7% 133 91.6% 131 75.5% 139 

8 61.3% 75 55.4% 101 65.4% 107 

All 75.0% 208 75.9% 232 71.1% 246 

Goal 5: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year and performing at 
proficiency on the state science exam will be greater than that of all students in the same tested 
grades in the school district of comparison. 

METHOD 

The school compares tested students enrolled in at least their second year to all tested students in 
the public school district of comparison. Comparisons are between the results for each grade in 
which the school had tested students in at least their second year and the results for the respective 
grades in the school district of comparison. Given the timing of the state’s release of district 
science data, the 2018-19 comparative data may not yet be available. If not, schools should report 
comparison to the district’s 2017-18 data. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Compared to the most recent district science exam data available (from SY 2017-18), CSD 18 
students surpassed by four percentage points the overall proficiency rate of Brooklyn Ascend 
students.  Therefore, the school fell just short of meeting the measure. Brooklyn Ascend grade 8 
students exceeded district students by nearly 10 percentage points, while grade 4 students fell 
short of their district peers. 

2018 19 State Science Exam 

Charter School and District Performance by Grade Level 

Grade Percent of Students at Proficiency 
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Charter School Students 
In At Least 2nd Year 

All District Students26 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

4 75.5% 139 88.9% 1,125 

8 65.4% 107 54.9% 697 

All 71.1% 246 75.7% 1,822 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

Brooklyn Ascend students surpassed the performance of their district peers in both SY 2016-17 and 
SY 2017-18. 

Science Performance of Charter School and Local District 
by Grade Level and School Year 

Grade 

Percent of Charter School Students at Proficiency and Enrolled in At Least their 
Second Year Compared to Local District Students 

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Charter 
School 

District 
Charter 
School 

District 
Charter 
School 

District 

4 82.7% 83.7% 91.6% 88.9% 75.5% n/a 

8 61.3% 49.6% 55.4% 54.9% 65.4% n/a 

All 75.0% 71.6% 75.9% 75.7% 71.1% n/a 

SUMMARY OF THE SCIENCE GOAL 

While results for science are not yet available for CSD 18 for SY 2018-19, Brooklyn Ascend students 
are achieving high levels of proficiency and making strong gains in grade 8, indicating the strength 
of the Ascend science curriculum. Still, Brooklyn Ascend fell just short of meeting the absolute and 
comparative measures in science, indicating that there is room for improvement and that work 
remains to ensure students are meeting our standards and aspirations for them. We will continue 
to closely monitor science performance at Brooklyn Ascend and ensure that staff are implementing 
the science curriculum with fidelity. 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 
Each year, 75 percent of all tested students enrolled in at 
least their second year will perform at or above proficiency 
on the New York State examination. 

Did not meet 

Comparative 

Each year, the percent of all tested students enrolled in at 
least their second year and performing at proficiency on the 
state exam will be greater than that of all students in the 
same tested grades in the school district of comparison. 

Did not meet 

ACTION PLAN 

Brooklyn Ascend will build upon successful systems already in place at other Ascend schools in 
order to increase proficiency in grade 4 and build on growth already achieved in grade 8. The 

26 This table uses the prior year’s results as 2018-19 district science scores are not yet available. 
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network’s curriculum and instruction team will continue to work with the school’s deans of 
instruction and science teachers to strengthen implementation of the science curriculum. 

HIGH SCHOOL SCIENCE 

Goal 5: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will score at least 65 on a 
New York State Regents science exam by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

New York State schools administer multiple high school science assessments; current Regent exams 
are Living Environment, Earth Science, Chemistry and Physics.  The school administered Living 
Environment and Chemistry.  It scores Regents on a scale from 0 to 100; students must score at 
least 65 to pass.  This measure requires students in each Accountability Cohort to pass any one of 
the Regents science exams by their fourth year in the cohort. Students may have taken a particular 
Regents science exam multiple times or have taken multiple science exams. Students have until the 
summer of their fourth year to pass a science exam.  

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Ninety-two-point-one percent of Brooklyn Ascend students in the 2015 Cohort passed a Regents 
science exam by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort, thereby meeting the measure. 

Science Regents Passing Rate with a Score of 65 

by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort27 

Cohort 
Designation 

Fourth 
Year 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Passing with 
a score of 65 

2013 2016-17 0 n/a 

2014 2017-18 0 n/a 

2015 2018-19 63 92.1% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

Students in the 2016 Cohort have already exceeded the measure, with 88.9 percent of students 
passing a Regent science exam at the completion of their third year. Subsequent cohorts continue 
to make progress towards the goal. 

Science Regents Passing Rate with a score of 65 by Cohort and Year 

Cohort 
Designation 

2018-19 

Number Percent 
in Cohort Passing 

27 Based on the highest score for each student on any science Regents exam 
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2015 63 92.1% 

2016 54 88.9% 

2017 101 17.8% 

2018 135 0.7% 

Goal 5: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort passing a Regents science exam 
with a score of 65 or above will exceed that of the high school Total Cohort from the school district 
of comparison. 

METHOD 

The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school high 
school Total Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in the school district of comparison. 
Due to the availability of comparative data, this measure uses the school’s Total Cohort results and 
not the Accountability Cohort results. Given that students may take Regents exam up through the 
summer of their fourth year, the school presents most recently available district results. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Brooklyn Ascend students exceeded the performance of their district peers on Regents science 
exams, with a significantly higher portion of students in the Brooklyn Ascend cohort passing a 
science exam than in the district. 

Science Regents Passing Rate 
of the High School Total Cohort by Charter School and School District 

Cohort Fourth 
Year 

Charter School School District 

Percent 
Passing 

Cohort 
Size 

Percent 
Passing 

Cohort 
Size 

2013 2016-17 n/a 0 n/a n/a 

2014 2017-18 n/a 0 64% 1,214 

2015 2018-19 92.1% 63 n/a n/a 

GOAL 6: SOCIAL STUDIES 

Goal 6: Social Studies 

Brooklyn Ascend Charter School students will meet grade level expectations in social studies. 

Goal 6: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will score at least 65 on 
the New York State Regents U.S. History exam by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 
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METHOD 

New York State administers two high school social studies assessments: U.S. History and Global 
History.  In order to graduate, students must pass both of these Regents exams with a score of 65 or 
higher.  This measure requires students in each Accountability Cohort to pass the two exams by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. Students may have taken the exams multiple times 
and have until the summer of their fourth year to pass it. Once students pass it, performance on 
subsequent administrations of the same exam do not affect their status as passing. 

RESULTS 

Sixty-six-point-seven percent of Brooklyn Ascend students in the 2015 Cohort passed the Regents 
US History exam by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

U.S. History Regents Passing Rate with a Score of 65 

by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort28 

Cohort 
Designation 

Fourth 
Year 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Passing with 
a score of 65 

2013 2016-17 0 n/a 

2014 2017-18 0 n/a 

2015 2018-19 63 66.7% 

EVALUATION 

Brooklyn Ascend fell short of meeting the measure. Ascend continues to strengthen its high school 
social studies program to ensure more students pass the US History exam by the end their fourth 
year. A newly-strengthened high school humanities curriculum and instruction staff at both the 
network and school level continues to audit and refine the US History curriculum. We are also 
confident that staffing changes at the high school will contribute to stronger social studies 
instruction going forward. 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

Students in Brooklyn Ascend’s 2016 Cohort have, at the completion of their third year, nearly met 
the target of 75 percent passing the US History Regents exam. 

U.S. History Regents Passing Rate with a score of 65 by Cohort and Year 

Cohort 
Designation 

2018-19 

Number 
in Cohort 

Percent 
Passing 

2015 63 66.7% 

2016 54 70.4% 

2017 101 0% 

2018 135 0% 

28 Based on the highest score for each student on a science Regents exam 
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Goal 6: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent to students in the high school Total Cohort passing the Regents U.S. History 
exam with a score of 65 or above will exceed that of the high school Total Cohort from the school 
district of comparison. 

METHOD 

The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school high 
school Total Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in the school district of comparison. 
Due to the availability of comparative data, this measure uses the school’s Total Cohort results and 
not the Accountability Cohort results. Given that students may take Regents exam up through the 
summer of their fourth year, school presents the most recently available district results. 

RESULTS 

Brooklyn Ascend students exceeded the performance of their district peers on Regents US History 
exams, with a higher portion of students in the Brooklyn Ascend cohort passing the exam than in 
the district. 

U.S. History Passing Rate 

of the High School Total Cohort by Charter School and School District 

Cohort Fourth 
Year 

Charter School School District 

Percent 
Passing 

Cohort 
Size 

Percent 
Passing 

Cohort 
Size 

2013 2016-17 n/a 0 n/a n/a 

2014 2017-18 n/a 0 n/a n/a 

2015 2018-19 66.7% 63 60% 1,214 

EVALUATION 

Brooklyn Ascend met the measure. 

Goal 6: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will score at least 65 on 
the New York State Regents Global History exam by the completion of their fourth year in the 
cohort. 

METHOD 

This measure requires students in each Accountability Cohort to pass the Global History exam by 
the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. Students may have taken the exam multiple 
times, and had until the summer of their fourth year to pass it. Once students pass it, performance 
on subsequent administrations of the same exam do not affect their status as passing. 

RESULTS 

Thirty-nine-point-seven percent of Brooklyn Ascend students in the 2015 Cohort passed the 
Regents Global History exam by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 
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Global History Regents Passing Rate with a Score of 65 

by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort29 

Cohort 
Designation 

Fourth 
Year 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Passing with 
a score of 65 

2013 2016-17 0 n/a 

2014 2017-18 0 n/a 

2015 2018-19 63 39.7% 

EVALUATION 

Brooklyn Ascend fell short of meeting the measure. Ascend continues to strengthen its high school 
social studies program to ensure more students pass the Global History exam by the end their 
fourth year. A newly-strengthened high school humanities curriculum and instruction staff at both 
the network and school level continues to audit and refine the US History curriculum. We are also 
confident that staffing changes at the high school will contribute to stronger social studies 
instruction going forward. 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The 2016 and 2017 Cohorts have already attained higher achievement levels on the Global History 
exam, with the 2016 Cohort on track to meet the 75-percent threshold for passing the exam and 
the 2017 Cohort making progress towards the target with two years remaining. 

Global History Regents Passing Rate with a score of 65 by Cohort and Year 

Cohort 
Designation 

2018-19 

Number 
in Cohort 

Percent 
Passing 

2015 63 39.7% 

2016 54 70.4% 

2017 101 43.6% 

2018 135 0% 

Goal 6: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort passing the Regents Global 
History exam with a score of 65 or above will exceed that of the high school Total Cohort from the 
school district of comparison. 

METHOD 

The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school high 
school Total Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in the school district of comparison. 
Due to the availability of comparative data, this measure uses the school’s Total Cohort results and 

29 Based on the highest score for each student on a science Regents exam 
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not the Accountability Cohort results. Given that students may take Regents exam up through the 
summer of their fourth year, the school presents most recently available district results. 

RESULTS 

Brooklyn Ascend students in the 2015 Cohort passed the Global History Regents exam at a rate of 
39.7 percent, compared to the host district’s 57-percent passing rate. 

Global History Passing Rate 

of the High School Total Cohort by Charter School and School District 

Cohort Fourth 
Year 

Charter School School District 

Percent 
Passing 

Number 
in Cohort 

Percent 
Passing 

Number 
in Cohort 

2013 2016-17 n/a 0 n/a n/a 

2014 2017-18 n/a 0 n/a n/a 

2015 2018-19 39.7% 63 57% 1,214 

EVALUATION 

Brooklyn Ascend did not meet the measure. Ascend continues to strengthen its high school social 
studies program to ensure more students pass the Global History exam by the end their fourth year. 
A newly-strengthened high school humanities curriculum and instruction staff at both the network 
and school level continues to audit and refine the US History curriculum. We are also confident that 
staffing changes at the high school will contribute to stronger social studies instruction going 
forward. 

GOAL 7: ESSA 

Goal 7: ESSA 

To achieve an Accountability Status of good standing. 

Goal 7: Absolute Measure 

Under the state’s ESSA accountability system, the school is in good standing: the state has not 
identified the school for comprehensive or targeted improvement. 

METHOD 

Because all students are expected to meet the state's performance standards, the federal statute 
stipulates that various sub-populations and demographic categories of students among all tested 
students must meet the state standard in and of themselves aside from the overall school results. 
As New York State, like all states, is required to establish a specific system for making these 
determinations for its public schools, charter schools do not have latitude in establishing their own 
performance levels or criteria of success for meeting the ESSA accountability requirements.  Each 
year, the state issues School Report Cards that indicate a school’s status under the state 
accountability system. 
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RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The school was in good standing in SY 2018-19. 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The school has remained in good standing for the past three years. 

Accountability Status by Year 

Year Status 

2016-17 Good Standing 

2017-18 Good Standing 

2018-19 Good Standing 
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Entry 4 Expenditures per Child 
Created: 07/31/2019 • Last updated: 08/01/2019 

BROOKLYN ASCEND CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading 

Financial Information 

This information is required of ALL charter schools. Provide the following measures of fiscal 
performance of the charter school in Appendix B (Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures 

Per Child): 

1. Total Expenditures Per Child 

To calculate ‘Total Expenditures per Child’ take total expenditures (from the unaudited 2018-
19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the year end FTE student enrollment. 
(Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas). 

Note: The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the 

Audit Guide can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil 
calculations: Audit Guide available within the portal or on the NYSED website 

at: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/regentsoversightplan/otherdocuments/auditguide2018.pdf. 

Line 1: Total Expenditures 29333799 

Line 2: Year End FTE student enrollment 1514 

Line 3: Divide Line 1 by Line 2 19370 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

2. Administrative Expenditures per Child 

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' To calculate “Administrative Expenditures per 
Child” first add together the following: 

1. Take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ 
column (from the unaudited 2018 19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) 

2. Any contracted administrative/management fee paid to other organizations or corporations 

3. Take the total from above and divide it by the year end FTE enrollment. The relevant portion that must 
be included in this calculation is defined as follows: 

Administrative Expenditures: Administration and management of the charter school includes the 

activities and personnel of the offices of the chief school officer, the finance or business offices, school 
operations personnel, data management and reporting, human resources, technology, etc. It also 

includes those administrative and management services provided by other organizations or corporations 
on behalf of the charter school for which the charter school pays a fee or other compensation. Do not 
include the FTE of personnel whose role is to directly support the instructional program. 

Notes: 
The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the Audit Guide 

can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil calculations: 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html. 
Employee benefit costs or expenditures should not be reported in the above calculations. 

Line 1: Relevant Personnel Services 
Cost (Row) 

Line 2: Management and General Cost
(Column) 

Line 3: Sum of Line 1 and Line 2 

Line 5: Divide Line 3 by the Year End
FTE student enrollment 

Thank you. 

1725980 

2987719 

4713699 

3113 

2 / 2 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

Board of Trustees 
Ascend Charter Schools 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ascend Charter Schools (the 
“School”), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, 
and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then 
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant 
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP 
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528  I Tel: 914.381.8900  I Fax: 914.381.8910  I www.pkfod.com  

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility 
or liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms. 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
    

   
  

 

 
    

    
 

 

  
 

  
  

   
 

   

 
 

 

 
 
 

   
 

   
   

 
 
 
 
 

Board of Trustees 
Ascend Charter Schools 
Page 2 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the School as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in its net 
assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Change in Accounting Principle 

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, during the year ended June 30, 2019, 
Ascend Charter Schools adopted new accounting guidance resulting in a change in the manner 
in which it presents net assets and reports certain aspects of its financial statements. Our 
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Report on Supplementary Information 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as 
a whole. The schedules of activities and functional expenses by school, for the year ended June 
30, 2019 on pages 19 through 25 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not 
a required part of the financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards on page 26 as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards (“Uniform Guidance”), is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management 
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used 
to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.  

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 30, 2019, on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope 
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance. 

Harrison, New York 
October 30, 2019 



 
            
                  

          

              
          

                  

     

  
       

            
                                
              
               

            

          
        

          

             

     

Ascend Charter Schools 

Statements of Financial Position 

June 30, 
2019 2018 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,535,301 $ 9,309,933 
Grants and contracts receivable 1,242,978 4,013,967 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 262,154 251,548 

Total Current Assets 14,040,433 13,575,448 

Property and equipment, net 9,331,930 8,122,089 
Security deposits 326,305 323,055 
Restricted cash 250,199 225,229 

$ 23,948,867 $ 22,245,821 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 2,082,487 $ 1,990,824 
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 3,256,437 2,629,264 
Refundable advances 93,700 90,245 
Loan payable - related party - 400,000 
Deferred rent 2,600,375 3,490,995 
Due to related parties 676,740 2,302,253 

Total Current Liabilities 8,709,739 10,903,581 

Due to related party 947,317 947,317 
Deferred rent, net of current portion 15,689,949 11,308,334 

Total Liabilities 25,347,005 23,159,232 

Net assets (deficit), without donor restrictions (1,398,138) (913,411) 

$ 23,948,867 $ 22,245,821 

See notes to financial statements
 3 



  
                
                

           
                   

        

            
          

            

          

        

               

             
                      
                        
                                
                   

                    

                    

            

Ascend Charter Schools 

Statements of Activities 

Year Ended June 30, 
2019 2018 

OPERATING REVENUE 
State and local per pupil operating revenue 

General and special education $ 86,581,003 $ 73,076,058 
Facilities 9,620,148 6,807,861 

Federal grants 5,795,101 4,007,441 
Federal E-Rate and IDEA 1,068,649 677,796 
State and city grants 410,559 335,223 

Total Operating Revenue 103,475,460 84,904,379 

EXPENSES 
Program Services 

Regular education 64,169,383 52,901,912 
Special education 20,165,857 18,292,081 

Total Program Services 84,335,240 71,193,993 
Supporting Services 

Management and general 19,806,649 14,760,654 

Total Expenses 104,141,889 85,954,647 

Deficit from Operations (666,429) (1,050,268) 

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 
Contributions 18,115 51,163 
Rental income 135,000 135,000 
Interest and other revenue 28,587 121,249 
Gain on transfer of leases and loans to related party - 257,358 

Total Support and Other Revenue 181,702 564,770 

Change in Net Assets (484,727) (485,498) 

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) 
Beginning of year (913,411) (427,913) 

End of year $ (1,398,138) $ (913,411) 

See notes to financial statements
 4 



         
                                                      
                                                                                          

                                     

                                     
                                           
                                      
                                                                  
                                                                                            
                                                       
                                                                                        
                                                        
                                              
                                                 
                               
                                                        
                                                 
                                                          
                                                        
                                                      
                                             
                                                          
                                                        
                                           
                                                                                           
                                                                                      

     

Ascend Charter Schools 

Statement of Functional Expenses 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Program Services Management 
No. of Regular Special and 

Positions Education Education Total General Total 
Personnel Services Costs

 Administrative staff personnel 141 $ 5,417,819 $ 1,852,347 $ 7,270,166 $ 5,063,270 $ 12,333,436 

Instructional personnel 475 25,503,994 8,500,513 34,004,507 - 34,004,507

 Non-instructional personnel 33

 -
-

- 1,166,954 1,166,954

 Total Salaries and Staff 
649 30,921,813 10,352,860 41,274,673 6,230,224 47,504,897 

Employee benefits and payroll taxes 6,277,917 2,101,486 8,379,403 1,270,710 9,650,113 
Professional fees 1,198,532 337,993 1,536,525 721,866 2,258,391 
Management fees 4,101,429 669,764 4,771,193 7,462,634 12,233,827 
Consultants - education 91,722 245,755 337,477 - 337,477 
Legal fees - - - 93,604 93,604 
Curriculum and classroom supplies 1,956,938 315,487 2,272,425 - 2,272,425 
Office supplies - - - 400,748 400,748 
Non-capitalized furniture and equipment 187,843 60,550 248,393 36,567 284,960 
Leased equipment, furniture and fixtures 844,621 282,482 1,127,103 167,893 1,294,996 
Communications 667,177 224,148 891,325 132,214 1,023,539 
Occupancy 12,425,798 4,173,403 16,599,201 2,485,912 19,085,113 
Insurance 281,274 91,659 372,933 53,551 426,484 
Repairs and maintenance 736,351 243,410 979,761 151,741 1,131,502 
Security 91,059 27,425 118,484 16,531 135,015 
Marketing and recruiting 266,637 74,204 340,841 39,726 380,567 
Staff development 684,152 143,421 827,573 43,831 871,404 
Travel and meals 2,030,591 358,971 2,389,562 42,483 2,432,045 
Postage, printing and copying 97,981 29,192 127,173 18,105 145,278 
Dues and subscriptions 238,300 79,412 317,712 47,776 365,488 
Depreciation and amortization 1,069,144 354,202 1,423,346 216,818 1,640,164 
Interest 104 33 137 18 155 
Miscellaneous -

- -

173,697 173,697 

Total Expenses $ 64,169,383 $ 20,165,857 $ 84,335,240 $ 19,806,649 $ 104,141,889 

See notes to financial statements
 5 



        
                                                    
                                                                                               

                                     

                                      
                                         
                                    
                                                      
                                                                                      
                                                     
                                                                                      
                                                      
                                         
                                                    
                             
                                                      
                                                    
                                                        
                                                      
                                                    
                                           
                                                        
                                                      
                                            
                                                      
                                                                                        

     

Ascend Charter Schools 

Statement of Functional Expenses 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Program Services Management 
No. of Regular Special and 

Positions Education Education Total General Total 
Personnel Services Costs

 Administrative staff personnel 108 $ 4,587,365 $ 1,740,930 $ 6,328,295 $ 3,400,045 $ 9,728,340 

Instructional personnel 413 20,089,186 7,628,757 27,717,943 - 27,717,943

 Non-instructional personnel 31 -

-

- 873,720 873,720

 Total Salaries and Staff 
552 24,676,551 9,369,687 34,046,238 4,273,765 38,320,003 

Employee benefits and payroll taxes 5,237,952 1,990,982 7,228,934 909,512 8,138,446 
Professional fees 1,007,563 251,283 1,258,846 446,187 1,705,033 
Management fees 3,475,579 564,891 4,040,470 6,117,261 10,157,731 
Consultants - education 125,526 63,335 188,861 38,815 227,676 
Legal fees - - - 114,378 114,378 
Curriculum and classroom supplies 1,586,569 255,127 1,841,696 - 1,841,696 
Office supplies - - - 310,424 310,424 
Non-capitalized furniture and equipment 161,629 57,501 219,130 27,242 246,372 
Leased equipment, furniture and fixtures 1,317,332 484,699 1,802,031 226,543 2,028,574 
Communications 423,535 166,769 590,304 73,556 663,860 
Occupancy 10,378,965 3,862,677 14,241,642 1,752,980 15,994,622 
Insurance 249,346 90,702 340,048 40,653 380,701 
Repairs and maintenance 459,392 158,905 618,297 79,270 697,567 
Security 89,764 28,374 118,138 14,713 132,851 
Marketing and recruiting 233,216 76,021 309,237 28,707 337,944 
Staff development 615,334 127,304 742,638 30,729 773,367 
Travel and meals 1,593,721 284,891 1,878,612 24,125 1,902,737 
Postage, printing and copying 75,126 26,242 101,368 12,569 113,937 
Dues and subscriptions 180,106 69,086 249,192 31,086 280,278 
Depreciation and amortization 888,423 330,984 1,219,407 152,719 1,372,126 
Interest 126,283 32,621 158,904 18,912 177,816 
Miscellaneous -

- -

36,508 36,508 

Total Expenses $ 52,901,912 $ 18,292,081 $ 71,193,993 $ 14,760,654 $ 85,954,647 

See notes to financial statements
 6 



  

              
              
                               

                
                     
                      
                      
                    
                         
             
           

            
                           
                              
            

                               

                                 
                               
               

              

           

      

  

                           
                             

                           

Ascend Charter Schools 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Year Ended June 30, 
2019 2018 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Change in net assets $ (484,727) $ (485,498) 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets 

to net cash from operating activities 
Depreciation and amortization 1,640,164 1,372,126 
Deferred rent 3,490,995 3,687,619 
Gain on transfer of leases and loans to related party - (257,358) 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities 
Grants and contracts receivable 2,770,989 (892,111) 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (10,606) 268,344 
Security deposits (3,250) (208,562) 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 91,663 790,659 
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 627,173 376,586 
Refundable advances 3,455 (19,595) 
Due to related party (1,625,513) 675,604 

Net Cash from Operating Activities 6,500,343 5,307,814 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of property and equipment (2,850,005) (1,180,871) 
Restricted cash (24,970) (180) 
Release of loans payable held in escrow - 200,000 

Net Cash from Investing Activities (2,874,975) (981,051) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Payments of loan payable - related party (400,000) -

Payments of loan payable - landlord - (81,250) 
Payments of loans payable - (431,797) 

Net Cash from Financing Activities (400,000) (513,047) 

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,225,368 3,813,716 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Beginning of year 9,309,933 5,496,217 

End of year $ 12,535,301 $ 9,309,933 

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION 
Cash paid during the year for interest $ 155 $ 177,816 
Non-cash investing activities 

Leasehold improvements transferred to related party - 14,885,206 
Deferred rent transferred to related party - 2,017,824 

Non-cash financing activity 
Loans payable paid by related party resulting from transfer of leases - 13,124,740 

See notes to financial statements
 7 



 

 
 

 
  

 
    

  
  

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
  

  
 

  
 

 
   

 

 
 

 
 

 
  

     
 

  

 

    
 

 
 

   
   

 
 

 

Ascend Charter Schools 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 and 2018 

1. Organization and Tax Status 

Ascend Charter Schools (the “School”) is a New York State, not-for-profit educational 
corporation that was incorporated to operate a Charter School pursuant to Article 56 of the 
Education Law of the State of New York. The School’s mission is to equip their students with 
the knowledge, confidence and character to succeed in college and beyond.  

The accompanying financial statements include the following charter schools collectively 
forming the School: 

Brooklyn Ascend Charter School (“Brooklyn Ascend”) – Brooklyn Ascend was granted a 
provisional charter on January 15, 2008 valid for a term of five years and renewable 
upon expiration by the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York. 
Brooklyn Ascend obtained a renewal to its charter expiring on June 30, 2023. 

Brownsville Ascend Charter School (“Brownsville Ascend”) – Brownsville Ascend was 
granted a provisional charter on January 13, 2009 valid for a term of five years and 
renewable upon expiration by the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New 
York. Brownsville Ascend obtained a renewal to its charter expiring on June 30, 2022. 

Bushwick Ascend Charter School (“Bushwick Ascend”) – Bushwick Ascend was granted 
a provisional charter on February 9, 2010 valid for a term of five years and renewable 
upon expiration by the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York. 
Bushwick Ascend obtained a renewal to its charter expiring on June 30, 2023. 

Canarsie Ascend Charter School (“Canarsie Ascend”) – Canarsie Ascend was granted a 
provisional charter on September 13, 2011 valid for a term of five years and renewable 
upon expiration by the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York. 
Canarsie Ascend obtained a renewal to its charter expiring on July 31, 2023. 

Central Brooklyn Ascend Charter School (“Central Brooklyn Ascend”) – Central Brooklyn 
Ascend was granted a provisional charter on January 1, 2013 valid for a term  of  five  
years and renewable upon expiration by the Board of Regents of the University of the 
State of New York. Central Brooklyn Ascend obtained a renewal to its charter expiring 
on July 31, 2024. 

Cypress Hills Ascend Charter School (“Cypress Hills Ascend”) – Cypress Hills Ascend 
was granted a provisional charter on July 19, 2017 valid for a term of five years and 
renewable upon expiration by the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New 
York. This charter will expire on July 31, 2023 

On July 19, 2017, the School was granted a provisional charter to operate Central 
Brooklyn Ascend Charter School 3, valid for a term of five years and renewable upon 
expiration by the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York. Classes 
commenced at this school in September 2019. 
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Ascend Charter Schools 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 and 2018 

1. Organization and Tax Status (continued) 

On October 19, 2018, the School was granted a provisional charter to operate Central 
Brooklyn Ascend Charter School 4 and 5, valid for terms of five years and renewable 
upon expiration by the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York. 
Classes commenced at these schools in September 2019. 

On March 8, 2019, the School was granted a provisional charter to operate Brooklyn 
Ascend Charter School 6, valid for a term of five years and renewable upon expiration by 
the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York. Classes are scheduled 
to commence in September 2020. 

The School provided education to approximately 4,900 students in the kindergarten 
through twelfth grades during the 2018-2019 academic year. 

The School uses two outside vendors to serve breakfast and lunch to its students through 
Brownsville Ascend, who files for reimbursement of expenses through the New York State 
and Federal school food program. The School covers the cost of breakfast and lunch for 
families who experience hardship and who do not qualify for free or reduced meals. The 
Office of Pupil Transportation provides free transportation to some of the students. 

Except for taxes that may be due for unrelated business income, the School is exempt from 
federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and from state 
and local income taxes under comparable laws. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”), which requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period. Accordingly actual results could differ from those estimates.  

Change in Accounting Principle 

On July 1, 2018, the School adopted new guidance regarding the Presentation of Financial 
Statements for Not-for-Profit Entities. This guidance requires the School to collapse the 
three-category (unrestricted, temporarily restricted, and permanently restricted) classification 
of net assets into two categories: with donor restrictions and without donor restrictions. In 
addition, the new guidance requires the School to make certain expanded disclosures 
relating to the liquidity of financial assets, and expenses by both their natural and functional 
classification in one location in the financial statements. As a result of implementing this 
standard, prior year amounts for unrestricted net assets were reclassified as net assets 
without donor restrictions. 

9 



 

 
 

 
   

 
  

 
   

 
  

 
 

 
  

     
  

      
   

  
  

 
 
 
 
   

 

 
       

 
 

 
 

   

    
 

 
 

 
  

 
     

     
   

    
 

Ascend Charter Schools 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 and 2018 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Net Assets Presentation 

Resources for various purposes are classified for accounting and reporting purposes into 
net asset categories established according to nature and purpose as follows: 

Net assets without donor restrictions - consist of resources available for the general 
support of the School’s operations. Net assets without donor restrictions may be used at 
the discretion of the School’s management and/or the Board of Trustees. 

Net assets with donor restrictions – represents amounts restricted by donors for specific 
activities of the School or to be used at a future date. The School records contributions 
as net assets with donor restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit 
their use either through purpose or time restrictions. When a donor restriction expires, 
that is, when a time restriction ends or a purpose restriction is fulfilled, net assets with 
donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in 
the statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. The School had no 
net assets with donor restrictions at June 30, 2019 and 2018. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The School considers all highly liquid financial instruments purchased with a maturity of 
three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

Restricted Cash 

Under the provisions of its charter, the School established an escrow account to pay for 
legal and audit expenses that would be associated with a dissolution, should it occur. 

Property and Equipment  

The School follows the practice of capitalizing all expenditures for property and equipment 
with costs in excess of $2,500 and a useful life in excess of one year. Leasehold 
improvements are amortized over the shorter of the term of the lease, inclusive of all 
renewal periods, which are reasonably assured, or the estimated useful  life  of the asset.  
Purchased property and equipment are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition. Minor 
costs of maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. All property and equipment 
purchased with government funding is capitalized, unless the government agency retains 
legal title to such assets, in which case such assets are expensed as incurred.   

Depreciation and amortization is recognized on the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of such assets as follows:  

Computers and equipment 3 and 5 years 
Furniture  and  fixtures
Software
Website  development

   5  years  
     3  years  

   3  years  
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Ascend Charter Schools 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 and 2018 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Property and Equipment (continued) 

Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment if the use of the asset significantly 
changes or another indicator of possible impairment is identified. If the carrying amount of 
the asset is not recoverable, the asset is written down to its fair value. There were no asset 
impairments for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018. 

Refundable Advances 

The School records certain government grants and contracts as refundable advances until 
the related services are performed, at which time it is recognized as revenue. 

Deferred Rent 

The School records its rent in accordance with U.S. GAAP whereby all rental payments, 
including fixed rent increases, are recognized on a straight-line basis. The difference 
between the straight-line rent expense and the required lease payments, as well as any 
unamortized lease incentives, is reflected in deferred rent in the accompanying statements 
of financial position. 

Revenue and Support 

Revenue from state and local governments resulting from the School’s charter status and 
based on the number of students enrolled is recorded when services are performed in 
accordance with the charter agreement. Federal and other state and local funds are 
recorded when expenditures are incurred and billable to the government agency. 

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the School that is, 
in substance, unconditional. Grants and other contributions of cash are reported as net 
assets with donor restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations. Restricted 
contributions and grants that are made to support the School’s current year activities are 
recorded as net assets without donor restrictions. Contributions of assets other than cash 
are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation.  

Marketing and Recruiting 

Marketing and recruiting costs are expensed as incurred for staff and student recruitment. 
Marketing and recruiting expense for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 was 
$380,567 and $337,994. 

Functional Expense Allocation 

The majority of expenses can generally be directly identified with the program or supporting 
service to which they relate and are charged accordingly. Other expenses by function have 
been allocated among program and supporting services classifications on the basis of 
periodic time and expense studies and other basis as determined by management of the 
School to be appropriate. 
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Ascend Charter Schools 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 and 2018 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes 

The School recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more 
likely than not to be sustained. Management has determined that the School had no 
uncertain tax positions that would require financial statement recognition or disclosure. The 
School is no longer subject to examinations by the applicable taxing jurisdictions for years 
prior to June 30, 2016. 

Reclassifications 

Certain amounts in the 2018 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 
2019 presentation. 

Subsequent Events Evaluation by Management 

Management has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure and/or recognition in the 
financial statements through the date that the financial statements were available to be issued, 
which date is October 30, 2019.  

3. Grants and Contracts Receivable 

Grants and contracts receivable consist of federal, state and city entitlements and grants.  
The School expects to collect these receivables within one year, and has not provided an 
allowance for doubtful accounts. 

4. Related Party Transactions (not disclosed elsewhere) 

The School is an affiliate of Ascend Learning, Inc. (“Ascend”), a New York State not-for-
profit corporation, by common management. The School entered into an agreement with 
Ascend on July 1, 2018 which calls for Ascend to design, select and implement the School’s 
educational program as well as the professional development activities for all the School 
personnel; recruit, supervise and evaluate the School’s director; propose employment 
policies and practices relating to School personnel; and manage the School’s business 
administration. For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, each charter school paid 
Ascend an annual fee ranging from 12% to 15% of the School’s per pupil operating revenue, 
per pupil facilities revenue and federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act revenue.  
The management fee for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 amounted to 
$12,233,827 and $10,157,731. 

The School entered into a sublease agreement with Ascend on July 1, 2011. There are two 
amendments to the agreement. The terms of the agreement permit Ascend to use the 6th 
floor of one of the buildings that the School occupies. Ascend increased use of the floor 
over the term of the lease, and rent increased accordingly. Rental income amounted to 
$135,000 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.  
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Ascend Charter Schools 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 and 2018 

4. Related Party Transactions (not disclosed elsewhere) (continued) 

On September 30, 2013, the School received an interest-free loan of $400,000 from 
Ascend. The proceeds were used to finance the School’s operations. The outstanding 
principal balance of the loan was paid in full as of June 30, 2019. 

The School is an affiliate of Friends of Ascend Charter Schools,  Inc. (“FOA”), a New York  
State not-for-profit corporation, by common management. FOA’s purpose is to support the 
operation of the School by managing the School’s real estate and facilities-related needs, 
and by raising funds and resources that will enable FOA to provide support to the School 
and to enhance the experience of the School’s students. 

During fiscal 2018, the lease agreements of five facilities used by the School were 
transferred to FOA (see Note 10) and new sublease agreements were entered into between 
FOA (sublandlord) and the School (subtenant). As a result of these transfers, leasehold 
improvements pertaining to the transferred leases with net book value of $14,885,206 and 
unamortized deferred rent amounting to $2,017,824 were transferred to FOA. In addition, 
the balance of loans payable of $13,124,740 used to finance the leasehold improvements 
were transferred to and paid in full by FOA on June 28, 2018. The transfer of leases and 
loans to FOA resulted in a non-operating gain of $257,358 which is reported as gain on 
transfer of leases and loans to related party in the statements of activities. 

For operational efficiency and purchasing power, the School shares certain operating 
expenses with Ascend and FOA. The net balance due to the related parties at June 30, 
2019 and 2018 was $1,624,057 and $3,249,570. 

5. Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment consist of the following as of June 30: 

2019 2018 

Computers 
Equipment 
Furniture and fixtures 
Software 
Website development 
Leasehold improvements 
Construction in progress 

Accumulated deprecation and amortization 

$ 2,957,702 
1,051,676 
3,002,363 

55,314 
143,277 

9,442,407 
592,295 

17,245,034 
(7,913,104) 

$ 2,076,030 
975,321 

1,954,864 
38,124 

143,277 
8,792,053 

415,360 

14,395,029 
(6,272,940) 

$ 9,331,930 $ 8,122,089 

Construction-in-progress at June 30, 2019 and 2018 is comprised of costs related to the 
Pitkin Avenue facility. 
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Ascend Charter Schools 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 and 2018 

6. Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets 

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions 
limiting their use within one year of the statement of financial position date, are comprised of 
the following at June 30, 2019: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,535,301 
Grants and contracts receivable 1,242,978 

$ 13,778,279 

As part of the School’s liquidity management plan, the status of grants and contracts 
receivable is monitored regularly and any excess cash is held in savings accounts and other 
liquid instruments until it is required for operational use. 

7. Employee Benefit Plan 

The School maintains a pension plan qualified under Internal Revenue Code 403(b), for the 
benefit of its eligible employees. Under the plan, the School will match employee 
contributions ranging from 1% to 5% of annual compensation. Total employer match for the 
years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $378,080 and $244,400. 

8. Concentration of Credit Risk 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to concentrations of credit and 
market risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents on deposit with financial 
institutions, which from time to time may exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
(“FDIC”) limit. The School does not believe that a significant risk of loss due to the failure of 
a financial institution presently exists. As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, approximately 
$12,535,000 and $9,285,000 of cash was maintained with an institution in excess of FDIC 
limits. 

9. Concentration of Revenue and Support 

The School receives a substantial portion of its revenue and support from the New York City 
Department of Education. For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the School 
received approximately 93% and 94% of total revenue and support from the New York City 
Department of Education. If the charter school laws were modified, reducing or eliminating 
these revenues, the School’s finances could be materially adversely affected. 
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Ascend Charter Schools 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 and 2018 

10. Commitments 

School Facilities 

Brooklyn Ascend 

On March 19, 2008, Brooklyn Ascend entered into an agreement to lease property at 205 
Rockaway Parkway, Brooklyn, New York for a period of 15 years. The landlord has 
renovated the facility to conform to the School’s specifications in phases. As of June 30, 
2019, Brooklyn Ascend has reimbursed the landlord a total of $2,917,850 for these 
renovations which are classified as leasehold improvements under property and equipment 
in the statements of financial position. Pursuant to the fourth lease amendment, annual fixed 
rent will be reduced for years 8 through 15 due to deletion of certain projects. On July 28, 
2016, Brooklyn Ascend signed a fifth amendment to renew the lease for 10 years. The 
renewal period commences on September 1, 2023. 

On January 19, 2011, Brooklyn Ascend entered into an agreement to lease property at 123 
East 98th Street, Brooklyn, New York for a period of 20 years. This location became the 
home of Brooklyn Ascend Middle School starting with the 2012-2013 academic year.  

On July 2, 2012, Brooklyn Ascend entered into an agreement as a co-lessee with 
Brownsville Ascend to become a future tenant located at 1501 Pitkin Avenue, Brooklyn, New 
York. The occupancy period for the School is 17 years of the 20 year lease agreement. The 
facility became the home of Brooklyn Ascend High School, which began with the 2015-2016 
academic year. The space is shared with Brownsville Ascend.   

Pursuant to each facility lease agreement, the School will also reimburse the landlords for 
the proportionate share of the real estate taxes and any other costs associated with the 
leasing of the premises. 

Brownsville Ascend 

On June 22, 2010, Brownsville Ascend entered into an agreement to lease property at 1501 
Pitkin Avenue, Brooklyn, New York. As per the terms of the agreement, the lease is for 20 
years, renewable for up to 20 additional years. The construction of the facility will be 
completed in phases. There are six amendments to the agreement as well as an additional 
letter agreement related to roof play space. Effective as of the fourth amendment, Brooklyn 
Ascend entered into the agreement as a co-lessee, and effective as of the 2015-2016 
academic year, Brooklyn Ascend High School became a co-tenant of the building. Both 
schools will reimburse the landlord for their share of real estate taxes. Brownsville Ascend 
moved into the new permanent lease facility on August 20, 2012. 
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Ascend Charter Schools 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 and 2018 

10. Commitments (continued) 

School Facilities (continued) 

Bushwick Ascend 

On July 29, 2011, the School entered into an agreement to lease property at 741-757 
Knickerbocker Avenue, Brooklyn, New York for a period of 20 years, with a renewal option 
for an additional ten years. The lease provides for rent escalations and the School is 
responsible for utilities, real estate taxes and other operating expenses. As part of the 
agreement, the School has the right to mortgage its interest in the lease under a leasehold 
mortgage and assign the lease as collateral security for such leasehold mortgage. The 
facility is currently tax exempt, but the School will be responsible for any real estate taxes 
arising out of the School’s occupancy. 

On March 30, 2015, the School entered into an agreement to lease property at 2 Aberdeen 
Street, Brooklyn, New York. As per the terms of the agreement, the lease is for a period of 
30 years, commencing on June 1, 2015 and ending on June 30, 2045. This location became 
the home of Bushwick Ascend Middle School starting with the 2015-2016 academic year. 
The facility is currently tax exempt, but the School will be responsible for any real estate 
taxes arising out of the School’s occupancy.  

On May 18, 2018, the two Bushwick Ascend leases were transferred to FOA and a new 
sublease agreement between FOA (sublandlord) and the School (subtenant) was entered 
into for a period of 28 years ending on June 30, 2045 (see Note 4). 

Rent expense on all subleases with FOA are recorded on the straight-line basis in 
accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

Canarsie Ascend 

On April 1, 2013, Canarsie Ascend entered into an agreement to lease property at 9719 
Flatlands Avenue, Brooklyn, New York. As per the terms of the agreement, the lease is for 
20 years, renewable for up to 10 additional years. The facility is currently tax exempt, but 
Canarsie Ascend will be responsible for any real estate taxes arising out of the School’s 
occupancy. 

On August 30, 2017, Canarsie Ascend entered into an agreement to lease property at 744 
East 87th Street and 751 East 86th Street in Brooklyn, New York for a period of 30 years, 
commencing on June 15, 2017 and ending June 30, 2047. The property is currently exempt 
from real estate taxes, but the School will be responsible for any real estate taxes arising out 
of the School’s occupancy. On September 12, 2017, the lease agreement was transferred to 
FOA and a new sublease agreement between FOA (sublandlord) and the School 
(subtenant) was executed for a period of 30 years ending on June 30, 2047 (see Note 4). 
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Ascend Charter Schools 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 and 2018 

10. Commitments (continued) 

School Facilities (continued) 

Central Brooklyn Ascend 

On November 3, 2014, the School entered into an agreement to lease property at 465 East 
29th Street, Brooklyn, New York. As per the terms of the agreement, the lease is for 30 
years, commencing on June 1, 2015 and ending on June 30, 2045. The property is 
currently exempt from real estate taxes, but the School will be responsible for any real 
estate taxes arising out of the School’s occupancy. On September 12, 2017, the lease 
agreement was transferred to FOA and a new sublease agreement between FOA 
(sublandlord) and the School (subtenant) was executed for a period of 28 years ending on 
June 30, 2045 (see Note 4). 

On September 12, 2017, the School entered into an agreement with FOA to sublease 
property at 1886 Nostrand Avenue, Brooklyn, New York. As per the terms of the agreement, 
the lease is for 28 years, commencing on August 15, 2017 and ending on June 30, 2045. 
The property is currently exempt from real estate taxes, but the School will be responsible 
for any real estate taxes arising out of the School’s occupancy. 

Cypress Hills Ascend 

On February 22, 2018, the School entered into an agreement with FOA to sublease property 
at 396 Grant Avenue, Brooklyn, New York. As per the terms of the agreement, the lease is 
for 30 years, commencing on February 1, 2018 and ending on June 30, 2048. The property 
is currently exempt from real estate taxes, but the School will be responsible for any real 
estate taxes arising out of the School’s occupancy. 

Central Brooklyn Ascend Charter School 3 

On December 4, 2018, the School entered into an agreement with FOA to sublease property 
at 260 Shepherd Avenue, Brooklyn, New York. As per the terms of the agreement, the lease 
is for 29 years, commencing on July 1, 2019 and ending on June 30, 2048. The property is 
currently exempt from real estate taxes, but the School will be responsible for any real 
estate taxes arising out of the School’s occupancy. 

Central Brooklyn Ascend Charter School 5 

On March 11, 2019, the School entered into an agreement with FOA to sublease property at 
870 Albany Avenue, Brooklyn, New York. As per the terms of the agreement, the lease is for 
29 years, commencing on July 1, 2019 and ending on June 30, 2048. The property is 
currently exempt from real estate taxes, but the School will be responsible for any real 
estate taxes arising out of the School’s occupancy. 
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Ascend Charter Schools 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 and 2018 

10. Commitments (continued) 

School Facilities (continued) 

Future minimum lease payments under the facility leases (including the subleases with 
FOA) are as follows for the years ending June 30: 

2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
Thereafter 

$ 17,740,921 
18,709,493 
19,585,765 
20,182,244 
20,648,030 

394,205,991 

$ 491,072,444 

Rent expense is recognized on the straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The difference 
between cash payments under the lease agreements and the straight-line rent have been 
recognized as deferred rent in the accompanying statements of financial position from inception 
of the lease. The difference between rent cash payments and straight-line rent included in 
occupancy expense in the accompanying statements of functional expenses amounted to 
$3,490,995 and $3,687,620 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018. 

Leased Equipment 

The School entered into several furniture and equipment lease agreements expiring at 
various dates through the year ending June 30, 2022. 

Future minimum rental payments under the non-cancelable operating leases are as follows 
for the years ending June 30: 

2020 $ 532,608 
2021 55,237 
2022 18,412 

$ 606,257 

11. Contingency 

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by the funding sources. Such audits 
might result in disallowances of costs submitted for reimbursement. Management is of the 
opinion that such cost disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the 
accompanying financial statements. Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the 
accompanying financial statements for such potential claims. 

* * * * * 
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Ascend Charter Schools 

Schedule of Activities by School 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Brooklyn Brownsville Bushwick Canarsie Central Brooklyn Cypress Hills 
Ascend Ascend Ascend Ascend Ascend Ascend Total 

OPERATING REVENUE 
State and local per pupil operating revenue

 General and special education $ 26,777,728 $ 18,701,186 $ 15,117,782 $ 14,547,898 $ 9,295,840 $ 2,140,569 $ 86,581,003 
Facilities 2,102,382 1,616,125 1,210,464 2,131,544 1,989,258 570,375 9,620,148 

Federal grants 1,432,048 1,171,596 721,088 1,165,198 826,863 478,308 5,795,101 
Federal E-Rate and IDEA 328,485 162,959 233,436 158,058 145,534 40,177 1,068,649 
State and city grants 124,338 87,741 70,529 72,825 41,975 13,151 410,559 

Total Operating Revenue 30,764,981 21,739,607 17,353,299 18,075,523 12,299,470 3,242,580 103,475,460 

EXPENSES 
Program Services 

Regular education 18,817,060 12,529,925 10,898,161 11,954,371 6,899,617 3,070,249 64,169,383 
Special education 5,815,555 4,270,191 3,505,336 2,584,900 3,371,917 617,958 20,165,857 

Total Program Services 24,632,615 16,800,116 14,403,497 14,539,271 10,271,534 3,688,207 84,335,240 
Supporting Services 

Management and general 5,563,245 4,473,272 3,344,665 3,109,957 2,415,944 899,566 19,806,649 

Total Expenses 30,195,860 21,273,388 17,748,162 17,649,228 12,687,478 4,587,773 104,141,889 

Surplus (Deficit) from Operations 569,121 466,219 (394,863) 426,295 (388,008) (1,345,193) (666,429) 

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 
Contributions 785 8,333 6,531 - 2,466 - 18,115 
Rental income 135,000 - - - - - 135,000 
Interest and other revenue 21,687 2,335 1,712 1,522 1,052 279 28,587 

Total Support and Other Revenue 157,472 10,668 8,243 1,522 3,518 279 181,702 

Change in Net Assets 726,593 476,887 (386,620) 427,817 (384,490) (1,344,914) (484,727) 

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) 

Beginning of year (3,284,619) 2,585,789 917,880 (1,867,227) 734,766

 -

(913,411) 

End of year $ (2,558,026) $ 3,062,676 $ 531,260 $ (1,439,410) $ 350,276 $ (1,344,914) $ (1,398,138) 

See independent auditors' report
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Ascend Charter Schools 

Schedule of Functional Expenses 
Brooklyn Ascend Charter School 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Personnel Services Costs

 Administrative staff personnel 

Instructional personnel 
Non-instructional personnel 

Total Salaries and Staff 

No. of 
Positions 

39 
152 

6

197 

$ 

Program Services 
Regular Special 

Education Education 

1,585,502 $ 523,906 
8,369,476 2,765,574 

-

-

9,954,978 3,289,480 

Total 

$ 2,109,408 
11,135,050 

-

13,244,458 

Management 
and 

General 

$ 1,584,769 
-

346,723 

1,931,492 

Total 

$ 3,694,177 
11,135,050

346,723

15,175,950 

Employee benefits and payroll taxes 
Professional fees 
Management fees 
Consultants - education 
Legal fees 
Curriculum and classroom supplies 
Office supplies 
Non-capitalized furniture and equipment 
Leased equipment, furniture and fixtures 
Communications 
Occupancy 
Insurance 
Repairs and maintenance 
Security 
Marketing and recruiting 
Staff development 
Travel and meals 
Postage, printing and copying 
Dues and subscriptions 
Depreciation and amortization 
Interest 
Miscellaneous 

1,950,225 
532,888 

1,145,036 
11,479 

-
649,083 

-
58,162

292,872
177,022 

2,520,006 
84,894 

300,569 
60,360 
58,462 

198,619 
376,858 

18,212 
77,470 

349,863 
2 
-

644,424 
159,837 
180,196 

13,626 
-

102,147 
-

19,219 
96,775 

58,494 
832,700 

27,089 
99,319 
19,945 
16,996 
39,312 
68,771 

6,018 
25,599 

115,607 
1 
-

2,594,649 
692,725 

1,325,232 
25,105 

-
751,230 

-
77,381 

389,647 
235,516 

3,352,706 
111,983 
399,888 

80,305 
75,458 

237,931 
445,629 

24,230 
103,069 
465,470 

3 

-

378,532 
193,115 

2,072,799 
-

9,008 
-

127,905 
11,285 
56,824 
34,346 

488,938 
15,391 
58,320 
11,711 

8,740 
16,063 
10,611 

3,534 
15,031 
67,881 

-
51,719 

2,973,181 
885,840 

3,398,031 
25,105 
9,008 

751,230 
127,905 

88,666 
446,471 
269,862 

3,841,644 
127,374 
458,208 

92,016 
84,198 

253,994 
456,240 

27,764 
118,100 
533,351 

3 
51,719 

Total Expenses $ 18,817,060 $ 5,815,555 $ 24,632,615 $ 5,563,245 $ 30,195,860 

See independent auditors' report
 20 



               
                                                                 
                                                                                                   

                                              

                                              
                                                       
                                              
                                                                           
                                                                                               
                                                                     
                                                                                               
                                                                   
                                                           
                                                             
                                              
                                                               
                                                           
                                                                                              
                                                                   
                                                             
                                                             
                                                                     
                                                                 
                                                           
                                                                                     

     

Ascend Charter Schools 

Schedule of Functional Expenses 
Brownsville Ascend Charter School 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Personnel Services Costs

 Administrative staff personnel 

Instructional personnel 
Non-instructional personnel 

Total Salaries and Staff 

No. of 
Positions 

37 
95 
17 

149 

$ 

Program Services 
Regular Special 

Education Education 

1,156,168 $ 424,174 
5,112,979 1,875,843 

-

-

6,269,147 2,300,017 

Total 

$ 1,580,342 
6,988,822 

-

8,569,164 

Management 
and 

General 

$ 1,103,151 
-

451,040 

1,554,191 

Total 

$ 2,683,493 
6,988,822

451,040

10,123,355 

Employee benefits and payroll taxes 
Professional fees 
Management fees 
Consultants - education 
Legal fees 
Curriculum and classroom supplies 
Office supplies 
Non-capitalized furniture and equipment 
Leased equipment, furniture and fixtures 
Communications 
Occupancy 
Insurance 
Repairs and maintenance 
Security 
Marketing and recruiting 
Staff development 
Travel and meals 
Postage, printing and copying 
Dues and subscriptions 
Depreciation and amortization 
Miscellaneous 

1,406,791 
310,104 
858,715 

27,170 
-

379,611 
-

27,306 
150,414 

89,586 
1,746,879 

65,569 
244,998 

188 
32,353 

104,172 
517,543 

14,476 
48,616 

236,287 
-

516,121 
113,000 
152,642 

26,591 
-

67,479 
-

10,018 
55,184 
32,867 

640,893 
23,355 
89,884 

69 
10,352 
23,861 
98,022 

5,311 
17,836 
86,689 

-

1,922,912 
423,104 

1,011,357 
53,761 

-
447,090 

-
37,324 

205,598 
122,453 

2,387,772 
88,924 

334,882 
257 

42,705 
128,033 
615,565 

19,787 
66,452 

322,976 

-

348,759 
146,522 

1,581,867 
-

58,806 
-

74,447 
6,769 

37,289 
22,209 

433,071 
15,337 
60,738 

47 
6,031 
5,395 
7,898 
3,589 

12,052 
58,578 
39,677 

2,271,671 
569,626 

2,593,224 
53,761 
58,806 

447,090 
74,447 
44,093 

242,887 
144,662 

2,820,843 
104,261 
395,620 

304 
48,736 

133,428 
623,463 

23,376 
78,504 

381,554 
39,677 

Total Expenses $ 12,529,925 $ 4,270,191 $ 16,800,116 $ 4,473,272 $ 21,273,388 

See independent auditors' report
 21 



             
                                                                 
                                                                                                    

                                                

                                              
                                                                 
                                                 
                                                                           
                                                                                                   
                                                                     
                                                                                               
                                                                     
                                                           
                                                           
                                              
                                                                   
                                                                   
                                                                   
                                                             
                                                             
                                                                       
                                                                   
                                                           
                                                                                                        
                                                                                     

     

Ascend Charter Schools 

Schedule of Functional Expenses 
Bushwick Ascend Charter School 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Program Services Management 
No. of Regular Special and 

Positions Education Education Total General Total 
Personnel Services Costs

 Administrative staff personnel 26 $ 989,814 $ 326,448 $ 1,316,262 $ 963,818 $ 2,280,080 

Instructional personnel 90 4,674,757 1,541,771 6,216,528 - 6,216,528

 Non-instructional personnel 4

 -

- -

149,645 149,645

 Total Salaries and Staff 
120 5,664,571 1,868,219 7,532,790 1,113,463 8,646,253 

Employee benefits and payroll taxes 1,185,895 391,117 1,577,012 233,107 1,810,119 
Professional fees 10,880 2,170 13,050 88,687 101,737 
Management fees 651,419 129,902 781,321 1,222,065 2,003,386 
Consultants - education 13,757 61,615 75,372 - 75,372 
Legal fees - - - 8,929 8,929 
Curriculum and classroom supplies 237,489 47,359 284,848 - 284,848 
Office supplies - - - 75,645 75,645 
Non-capitalized furniture and equipment 19,086 6,295 25,381 3,752 29,133 
Leased equipment, furniture and fixtures 165,809 54,685 220,494 32,592 253,086 
Communications 144,315 47,596 191,911 28,367 220,278 
Occupancy 2,160,079 712,411 2,872,490 424,598 3,297,088 
Insurance 49,896 16,049 65,945 9,195 75,140 
Repairs and maintenance 41,607 13,722 55,329 8,179 63,508 
Marketing and recruiting 57,352 18,034 75,386 9,946 85,332 
Staff development 100,919 23,526 124,445 3,554 127,999 
Travel and meals 173,237 39,467 212,704 7,419 220,123 
Postage, printing and copying 7,839 2,586 10,425 1,541 11,966 
Dues and subscriptions 42,618 14,056 56,674 8,377 65,051 
Depreciation and amortization 171,372 56,520 227,892 33,686 261,578 
Interest 21 7 28 4 32 
Miscellaneous - -

-

31,559 31,559 

Total Expenses $ 10,898,161 $ 3,505,336 $ 14,403,497 $ 3,344,665 $ 17,748,162 

See independent auditors' report
 22 



               
                                                                    
                                                                                                    

                                                     

                                              
                                                         
                                                 
                                                                             
                                                                                                   
                                                                     
                                                                                               
                                                                   
                                                           
                                                           
                                              
                                                                   
                                                           
                                                                     
                                                                   
                                                           
                                                             
                                                                   
                                                                     
                                                           
                                                                                                       
                                                                                     

     

Ascend Charter Schools 

Schedule of Functional Expenses 
Canarsie Ascend Charter School 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Program Services Management 
No. of Regular Special and 

Positions Education Education Total General Total 
Personnel Services Costs

 Administrative staff personnel 17 $ 828,683 $ 186,264 $ 1,014,947 $ 686,730 $ 1,701,677 

Instructional personnel 76 4,402,771 989,618 5,392,389 - 5,392,389

 Non-instructional personnel 2

 -

- -

100,610 100,610

 Total Salaries and Staff 
95 5,231,454 1,175,882 6,407,336 787,340 7,194,676 

Employee benefits and payroll taxes 1,046,289 235,176 1,281,465 157,468 1,438,933 
Professional fees 239,813 46,547 286,360 102,080 388,440 
Management fees 789,709 102,842 892,551 1,396,041 2,288,592 
Consultants - education 3,737 71,767 75,504 - 75,504 
Legal fees - - - 9,024 9,024 
Curriculum and classroom supplies 357,699 46,582 404,281 - 404,281 
Office supplies - - - 76,606 76,606 
Non-capitalized furniture and equipment 52,161 11,724 63,885 7,850 71,735 
Leased equipment, furniture and fixtures 154,977 34,834 189,811 23,324 213,135 
Communications 134,114 30,145 164,259 20,184 184,443 
Occupancy 2,693,385 605,397 3,298,782 405,358 3,704,140 
Insurance 46,610 10,198 56,808 6,572 63,380 
Repairs and maintenance 120,418 27,066 147,484 18,123 165,607 
Security 27,982 6,290 34,272 4,211 38,483 
Marketing and recruiting 68,259 14,740 82,999 9,314 92,313 
Staff development 177,394 28,972 206,366 14,271 220,637 
Travel and meals 545,128 77,119 622,247 9,755 632,002 
Postage, printing and copying 46,344 10,417 56,761 6,975 63,736 
Dues and subscriptions 43,794 9,844 53,638 6,591 60,229 
Depreciation and amortization 175,046 39,345 214,391 26,345 240,736 
Interest 58 13 71 9 80 
Miscellaneous - -

-

22,516 22,516 

Total Expenses $ 11,954,371 $ 2,584,900 $ 14,539,271 $ 3,109,957 $ 17,649,228 

See independent auditors' report
 23 



               
                                                                 
                                                                                                        

                                                     

                                                       
                                                             
                                                      
                                                                           
                                                                                                   
                                                                     
                                                                                               
                                                                   
                                                             
                                                             
                                           
                                                                   
                                                         
                                                                                 
                                                                     
                                                               
                                                             
                                                                       
                                                                   
                                                             
                                                                                                       
                                                                                     

     

Ascend Charter Schools 

Schedule of Functional Expenses 
Central Brooklyn Ascend Charter School 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Program Services Management 
No. of Regular Special and 

Positions Education Education Total General Total 
Personnel Services Costs

 Administrative staff personnel 18 $ 631,842 $ 344,807 $ 976,649 $ 517,333 $ 1,493,982 

Instructional personnel 49 2,120,575 1,157,235 3,277,810 - 3,277,810

 Non-instructional personnel 3

 -

- -

92,766 92,766

 Total Salaries and Staff 
70 2,752,417 1,502,042 4,254,459 610,099 4,864,558 

Employee benefits and payroll taxes 508,030 277,241 785,271 112,610 897,881 
Professional fees 66,034 10,654 76,688 151,869 228,557 
Management fees 520,884 83,962 604,846 946,041 1,550,887 
Consultants - education 30,096 63,580 93,676 - 93,676 
Legal fees - - - 7,484 7,484 
Curriculum and classroom supplies 187,738 30,262 218,000 - 218,000 
Office supplies - - - 22,661 22,661 
Non-capitalized furniture and equipment 20,223 11,036 31,259 4,483 35,742 
Leased equipment, furniture and fixtures 71,830 39,199 111,029 15,922 126,951 
Communications 87,866 47,950 135,816 19,476 155,292 
Occupancy 2,059,954 1,124,153 3,184,107 456,608 3,640,715 
Insurance 25,554 13,188 38,742 5,228 43,970 
Repairs and maintenance 22,043 12,029 34,072 4,886 38,958 
Security 1,762 962 2,724 391 3,115 
Marketing and recruiting 23,148 9,419 32,567 3,278 35,845 
Staff development 80,920 24,205 105,125 3,301 108,426 
Travel and meals 331,670 62,308 393,978 5,099 399,077 
Postage, printing and copying 7,557 4,124 11,681 1,675 13,356 
Dues and subscriptions 19,885 10,852 30,737 4,408 35,145 
Depreciation and amortization 81,983 44,739 126,722 18,172 144,894 
Interest 23 12 35 5 40 
Miscellaneous - -

-

22,248 22,248 

Total Expenses $ 6,899,617 $ 3,371,917 $ 10,271,534 $ 2,415,944 $ 12,687,478 

See independent auditors' report
 24 



                 
                                                                             
                                                                                                        

                                                        

                                                           
                                                                   
                                                         
                                                                               
                                                                                                         
                                                                     
                                                                                               
                                                                     
                                                                       
                                                                     
                                              
                                                                       
                                                                           
                                                                                       
                                                                     
                                                                     
                                                                 
                                                                                 
                                                                           
                                                                 
                                                                                         

     

Ascend Charter Schools 

Schedule of Functional Expenses 
Cypress Hills Ascend Charter School 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Personnel Services Costs

 Administrative staff personnel 

Instructional personnel 
Non-instructional personnel 

Total Salaries and Staff 

No. of 
Positions 

4 
13 

1

18 

$ 

Program Services 
Regular Special 

Education Education 

225,810 $ 46,748 
823,436 170,472 

-

-

1,049,246 217,220 

$ 

Total 

272,558 
993,908 

-

1,266,466 

Management 
and 

General 

$ 207,469 
-

26,170 

233,639 

$ 

Total 

480,027 
993,908
26,170

1,500,105 

Employee benefits and payroll taxes 
Professional fees 
Management fees 
Consultants - education 
Legal fees 
Curriculum and classroom supplies 
Office supplies 
Non-capitalized furniture and equipment 
Leased equipment, furniture and fixtures 
Communications 
Occupancy 
Insurance 
Repairs and maintenance 
Security 
Marketing and recruiting 
Staff development 
Travel and meals 
Postage, printing and copying 
Dues and subscriptions 
Depreciation and amortization 
Miscellaneous 

180,687 
38,813 

135,666 
5,483 

-
145,318 

-
10,905 

8,719 
34,274 

1,245,495 
8,751 
6,716 

767 
27,063 
22,128 
86,155 

3,553 
5,917 

54,593 
-

37,407 
5,785 

20,220 
8,576 

-
21,658 

-
2,258 
1,805 
7,096 

257,849 
1,780 
1,390 

159 
4,663 
3,545 

13,284 
736 

1,225 
11,302 

-

218,094 
44,598 

155,886 
14,059 

-
166,976 

-
13,163 
10,524 
41,370 

1,503,344 
10,531 

8,106 
926 

31,726 
25,673 
99,439 

4,289 
7,142 

65,895 

-

40,234 
39,593 

243,821 
-

353 
-

23,484 
2,428 
1,942 
7,632 

277,339 
1,828 
1,495 

171 
2,417 
1,247 
1,701 

791 
1,317 

12,156 
5,978 

258,328 
84,191 

399,707 
14,059 

353 
166,976 

23,484 
15,591 
12,466 
49,002 

1,780,683 
12,359 

9,601 
1,097 

34,143 
26,920 

101,140 
5,080 
8,459 

78,051 
5,978 

Total Expenses $ 3,070,249 $ 617,958 $ 3,688,207 $ 899,566 $ 4,587,773 

See independent auditors' report
 25 
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Ascend Charter Schools 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/ 
Program or Cluster Title 

Federal CFDA 
Number 

Pass-through 
Entity Identifying 

Number 
Provided to 

Subrecipients 

Total 
Federal 

Expenditures 

U.S. Department of Education 
Direct Program:

 Ascend Learning: Expansion and Replication of High-Quality

 Charter Schools in Brooklyn, NY 
84.282M $ - $ 1,828,712 

Pass-through the New York State Education Department:

 Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 

Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 

Improving Teacher Quality State Grants

84.010 
84.010 
84.010 
84.010 
84.010 
84.010 

0021-19-4395 
0021-19-4585 
0021-19-4780 
0021-19-4965 
0021-19-5170 
0021-19-5430 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

488,983
385,535
331,739
237,957
156,559

45,142 
1,645,915

 (Formerly Improving Teacher Quality State Grants) 
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants

 (Formerly Improving Teacher Quality State Grants) 
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants

 (Formerly Improving Teacher Quality State Grants) 
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants

 (Formerly Improving Teacher Quality State Grants) 
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants

 (Formerly Improving Teacher Quality State Grants) 
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants

 (Formerly Improving Teacher Quality State Grants) 

84.367 

84.367 

84.367 

84.367 

84.367 

84.367 

0147-19-4395 

0147-19-4585 

0147-19-4780 

0147-19-4965 

0147-19-5170 

0147-19-5430 

-

-

-

-

-

-
-

54,647

34,771

31,673

22,127

19,516

28,352 
191,086

 Student Support and Academic Enrichment Program 

Student Support and Academic Enrichment Program 
Student Support and Academic Enrichment Program 
Student Support and Academic Enrichment Program 
Student Support and Academic Enrichment Program 

84.424 
84.424 
84.424 
84.424 
84.424 

0204-19-4395 
0204-19-4585 
0204-19-4780 
0204-19-4965 
0204-19-5170 

-
-
-
-
-
-

39,077
30,810
26,511
14,847
11,018 

122,263 

Total U.S. Department of Education - 3,787,976 

U.S. Department of Agriculture 
Pass-through the New York State Education Department:

 Child Nutrition Cluster

 School Breakfast Program National School Lunch Program (Lunch) 
National School Lunch Program (Snack) 

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 

10.553 
10.555 
10.555 

-
-
-
-

451,324 
1,338,927 

216,874 
2,007,125 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ - $ 5,795,101 

See independent auditors' report and notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
 26 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 
    

 
 

   
 

 
 

 
  

  

 

 
     

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 Ascend Charter Schools 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

1. Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the “Schedule”) includes 
the federal award activity of Ascend Charter Schools (the “School”) under programs of the 
federal government for the year ended June 30, 2019. The information in this Schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations 
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance”). Because the Schedule presents only a selected 
portion of the operations of the School, it is not intended to and does not present the 
financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the School.  

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. 
Such expenditures are recognized following cost principles contained in the Uniform 
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to 
reimbursement. 

3. Indirect Cost Rate 

The School has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed 
under the Uniform Guidance. 

27 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 

 
 

 

 

      
 

  

 
   

   

  
 

   
  

     
  

  
  

  
   

 

  
  

   
  

 
 
 
 

   

 
 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other  
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards 

Independent Auditors’ Report 

Board of Trustees 
Ascend Charter Schools 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of Ascend Charter Schools (the “School”), which comprise the statement of financial 
position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and 
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have 
issued our report thereon dated October 30, 2019. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is  a  
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the School’s financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP 
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528  I Tel: 914.381.8900  I Fax: 914.381.8910  I www.pkfod.com  

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility 
or liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms. 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
  

      
   

 

 
 

 
   

   

 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of Trustees 
Ascend Charter Schools 
Page 2 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances 
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

Harrison, New York 
October 30, 2019 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
  

   
 

  
  

 

 
   

 

 
   

      
 

 
 

  
  

 
  

    

 
 

  
 

 
 
 

   

 
 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal Control 
Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 

Independent Auditors’ Report 

Board of Trustees 
Ascend Charter Schools 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Ascend Charter Schools’ (the “School”) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a 
direct and material effect on each of the School’s major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2019. The School’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ 
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the School’s major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(“Uniform Guidance”). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types 
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a 
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about 
the School’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the 
School’s compliance. 

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP 
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528  I Tel: 914.381.8900  I Fax: 914.381.8910  I www.pkfod.com  

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility 
or liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms. 



 

 

 

  
   

  
 

    
   

  
 

  
 

 
     

  
  

  
    

 
   

  
    

    

 
  

 

 
   

   

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Board of Trustees 
Ascend Charter Schools 
Page 2 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the School complied, in all material respects, with the types of  compliance  
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the School is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the School’s internal control 
over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on 
each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the 
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the School’s internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is  a  
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

Harrison, New York 
October 30, 2019 



 
 

 
 

 

 
   
   
 
               
                
              
 

 
               
                
 
  
 
            
 
 

  
 

  

             
 

 

 

 
   

  
 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

Ascend Charter Schools 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Section I - Summary of Auditors’ Results 

Financial Statements  
Type of report the auditor issued on whether the  

financial statements audited were prepared in 
accordance with U.S. GAAP: Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weakness(es) identified? 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted? 

yes  
yes  
yes  

X
X
X

 no 
  none reported 
no 

Federal Awards 
Internal control over major federal programs: 

Material weakness(es) identified? 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance 
for major federal programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required  
to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? 

yes  
yes  

Unmodified 

yes 

X
X

 X

 no 
  none reported 

no 

Identification of major federal programs: 

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

84.282M Ascend Learning: Expansion and Replication of 

High-Quality Charter Schools in Brooklyn, NY 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type 
A and type B programs: $750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no 

Section II – Financial Statement Findings 

During our audit, we noted no material findings for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

During our audit, we noted no material instances of noncompliance and none of the costs 
reported in the federal financially assisted programs are questioned or recommended to be 
disallowed. 

Section IV – Prior Year Findings 

There were no prior year audit findings. 
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Board of Trustees 
Ascend Charter Schools 

Auditors’ Communication on Internal Control 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Ascend Charter Schools (the “School”) 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America, we considered the School’s internal control over financial reporting 
(“internal control”) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for 
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be deficiencies, significant 
deficiencies, or material weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that all such deficiencies 
have been identified. 

We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses, as 
defined above. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the audit committee, 
the Board of Trustees, the Charter Schools Institute of the State University of New York, the State 
Education Department of the State University of New York, and others within the School and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Harrison, New York 
October 30, 2019 

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP 
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528  I Tel: 914.381.8900  I Fax: 914.381.8910  I www.pkfod.com  

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility or liability 
for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms. 



  
  

     

 
 

    
   

    
   
   

      
    
   
   

      

 
  

      

         

  

 

  

      
 

 
                  

   

  
   

       
 

  

   

            
     

                
  

            
               

                    
           

     

    
     

  
      

Transm ttal Form 
Annual F nanc al Statement Aud t Report 

for SU Y Authorized Charter Schools 

Charter School Name: Brookly  Asce d Charter School 

Aud t Per od: 2018-19 
Pr or Per od: 2017-18 

Report Due Date: Friday, November 01, 2019 
Date Subm tted: Friday, November 01, 2019 

School F scal Contact Name: A drew Epstei  
School F scal Contact Ema l: 
School F scal Contact Phone: 

School Aud t F rm Name: PKF O'Co  or Davies, LLP 
School Aud t Contact Name: Gus Saliba 
School Aud t Contact Ema l: 
School Aud t Contact Phone: 

SUNY CHARTER SCHOOLS INSTITUTE - Report ng Requ rements: 

O li e Portal: 
Requ red 8 Items: 
1) The i depe de t auditor’s report o  f a cial stateme ts a d  otes; 
2) 

3)Reports o  i ter al co trols over f a cial reporti g a d o  complia ce. 

And,  f appl cable: 

4)Ma ageme t Letter 

5)Ma ageme t Letter Respo se 

6) 

7) 

8)Corrective Actio  Pla  

NEW YORK STATE EDUCATION DEPARTMENT - Report ng Requ rements: 
O li e Portal: 

Requ red Items: 
1) This tra smital form (a copy of the Excel fle co tai i g the four schedules Does NOT  eed to be i cluded) 
2)Audited Fi a cial Report; 

And,  f appl cable: 
3)Ma ageme t Letter a d Respo se; 
4) 

Please subm t the Annual F nanc al Statement and other assoc ated documents 
to BOTH 

SUNY Charter Schools Inst tute 
AND 

New York State Educat on Department 

https:// y.epicenternow.org/ho e.aspx 

Excel template fle with appropriate sheets completed: Fi a cial Positio , Stateme t of Activities, Cash 
Flow a d Fu ctio al Expe ses worksheets; a d 

The additio al items listed below should be i cluded if applicable. Please explai  the reaso (s) if the 
items are  ot i cluded. 
Examples might i clude: a writte  ma ageme t letter was  ot issued; the school did  ot expe d federal 
fu ds i  excess of the Si gle Audit Threshold of $750,000; the ma ageme t letter respo se will be 
submitted by the followi g date (should be  o later tha  30 days from the submissio  of the report); etc  

If not included, state the reaso (s) below. Or, if not applicable fll 
i "N/ ")  

Form 990; or Exte sio  Form 
8868 
Federal Si gle Audit/ U iform 
Guida ce i  2 CFR Part 200, 
Subpart F 

https://nysed-cso-reports. yreviewroo .co / 

Federal Si gle Audit/
U iform Guida ce i  2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F. 



 

 

    
   
   

 

   
 

 

 

 

   
 
 

    
      

  
 

 

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

BROOKLYN ASCEND CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statement of F nanc al Pos t on 

as of June 30, 2019 DO NOT  NT R BALANC  SH  T DATA ON THIS T MPLAT  
Balance sheet data should for the  d Corp:

Ascend Charter Schools (Combined)
should be entered on the template for
Canarsie Ascend Charter School. 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash a d cash equivale ts
Gra ts a d co tracts receivable
Accou ts receivables
Prepaid expe ses

Co tributio s a d other receivables

2018-19 

TOTAL CURRENT 
ASSETS 

PROPERTY, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT, net

OTHER ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accou ts payable a d accrued expe ses
Accrued payroll a d be efts
Deferred Reve ue
Curre t maturities of lo g-term debt
Short Term Debt - Bo ds, Notes Payable

Other

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Deferred Re t

TOTAL CURRENT 
LIABILITIES 

All other lo g-term debt a d  otes payable,  et curre t maturitiesTOTAL LONG-TERM 
LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS 
U restricted

Temporarily restricted

 $ -

-

$ -



 

 

                                  

 

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
NET ASSETS -

CK - Should be zero -



 

 

   
  
  

  

  

   
     

 

      

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BROOKLYN ASCEND CHARTE 
Statement of F nanc al Po 

as of June 30, 2019 DO NOT  NT R BALANC  SH  T DATA ON THIS T MPLAT  
Balance sheet data should for the  d Corp:

Ascend Charter Schools (Combined)
should be entered on the template for
Canarsie Ascend Charter School. 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash a d cash equivale ts 
Gra ts a d co tracts receivable 
Accou ts receivables 
Prepaid expe ses 

Co tributio s a d other receivables 

PROPERTY, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT, net 

OTHER ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accou ts payable a d accrued expe ses 
Accrued payroll a d be efts 
Deferred Reve ue 
Curre t maturities of lo g-term debt 
Short Term Debt - Bo ds, Notes Payable 

Other 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Deferred Re t 

2017-18

TOTAL CURRENT 
ASSETS 

$ -

-

$ -

TOTAL CURRENT 
LIABILITIES 

All other lo g-term debt a d  otes payable,  et curre t maturities TOTAL LONG-TERM 
LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 
U restricted 

Temporarily restricted 



   

   

 

 

                                  

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
NET ASSETS

 

-

CK - Should be zero -



  

  

    

   

 
    
                                                              
                                                                            

    
                                                                                    
                                                                                     
                                                                                      
                                                                                              

                                                                           

                                                                                      

                                                           

   
                                                          
                                                                           
                                                                                                                      

                                                              
                                                                            

                                                                                            
                                                          

                                                                         

 
  
                                                                                     
                                                                                                                     
                                                                                                            

                                                                                                       
                                                                                               
                                                                                   

                                                                                                                         
                                                                          

                                                                         

                                                                      

                                                                                                                       

                                                

  
 

- -

- -

- -

BROOKLYN ASCEND CHARTER SCHOOL 

Statement of Act v t es 

as of June 30, 2019 

2018-19 2017-18
Temporar ly

 Unrestr cted Restr cted  Total  Total

 REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 
Public School District 
Reside t Stude t E rollme t $ 23,863,948 $ - $ 23,863,948 $ 20,671,479 
Stude ts with disabilities 2,913,780 - 2,913,780 2,601,278 

Gra ts a d Co tracts 
State a d local 124,337 - 124,337 102,147 
Federal - Title a d IDEA 731,716 - 731,716 892,513 
Federal - Other 179,476 - 179,476 89,308 
Other 454,459 - 454,459 -

NYC DoE Re tal Assista ce 2,102,382 - 2,102,382 1,511,462 

Food Service/Child Nutritio  Program 394,883 - 394,883 363,024

 TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 30,764,981 - 30,764,981 26,231,211

 EXPENSES 
Program Services 
Regular Educatio  $ 18,817,060 -

-
-

$ $ 18,817,060 $ 16,007,599 
Special Educatio  5,815,555 5,815,555 5,579,261 
Other Programs -

Total Program Services 24,632,615 - 24,632,615 21,586,860 
Ma ageme t a d ge eral 5,563,245 - 5,563,245 4,260,340 

Fu draisi g - - -
 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 30,195,860 - 30,195,860 25,847,200 

RPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM SCHOOL OPERATIONS 569,121 - 569,121 384,011

 SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 
Co tributio s 
Fou datio s $ 1,000 -

-
-
-
-
-

-

$ $ 1,000 $ 49,553 
I dividuals -
Corporatio s 197 197 -

Fu draisi g (412) (412) -
I terest i come 2,641 2,641 2,687 
Miscella eous i come 154,046 154,046 149,456 

Net assets released from restrictio  -
 TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 157,472 - 157,472 201,696

 CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 726,593 - 726,593 585,707 

NET ASSETS BEGINNING OF YEAR (3,284,619) - (3,284,619) (3,870,326) 

PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS - - - -

 NET ASSETS END OF YEAR $ (2,558,026) $ - $ (2,558,026) $ (3,284,619) 



                                                                                   
                                                                                        
                                                                                     

                                                                                       
                                                                                    

                                                                                     
                                                                                      
                                                                                     
                                                                                     
                                                                                     
                                                                                     
                                                                                     

                                                                                       
                                                                                     

                                                                                     
                                                                                     

                                                                                    
                                                                                    
                                                                                

                                                                                      
                                                                                    
                                                                                

                                                                                        
                                                                                    
                                                                                

                                                                                
                                                                                        

                                                                                

 

 

BROOKLYN ASCEND CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statement of Cash Flows 

as of June 30, 2019 

2018-19 2017-18 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
I crease (decrease) i   et assets $ - $ -
Reve ues from School Districts - -
Accou ts Receivable - -
Due from School Districts - -
Depreciatio  - -
Gra ts Receivable - -
Due from NYS - -
Gra t reve ues - -
Prepaid Expe ses - -
Accou ts Payable - -
Accrued Expe ses - -
Accrued Liabilities - -
Co tributio s a d fu d-raisi g activities - -
Miscella eous sources - -
Deferred Reve ue - -
I terest payme ts - -
Other - -
Other - -

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ - $ -

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of equipme t - -
Other - -

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES $ - $ -

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Pri cipal payme ts o  lo g-term debt - -
Other - -

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES $ - $ -

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ - $ -
Cash at begi  i g of year - -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ - $ -

DO NOT  NT R CASH FLOW DATA ON THIS T MPLAT  
Cash flow data should for the  d Corp:
Ascend Charter Schools (Combined)
should be entered on the template for
Canarsie Ascend Charter School. 



 

  
           

                                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                                    
                                                                                                                      

                                                                                                                                        
                                                                                                             

                                                                                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                                                      

                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                                                          
                                                                                                                                   

                                                                                                                                   
                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                                  

                                                                                                                                  
                                                                                                                                              

                                                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                                                              
                                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                                      

                                                                    

      
  

BROOKLYN ASCEND CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statement of Funct onal Expenses 

as of June 30, 2019 

2018-19 2017-18 
Program Services Supporti g Services 

No. of Regular Special Other Ma ageme t
Positio s Educatio  Educatio  Educatio  Total Fu d-raisi g a d Ge eral Total Total 

Perso  el Services Costs $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Admi istrative Staf Perso  el 39.00 1,585,502 523,906 - 2,109,408 - 1,584,769 1,584,769 3,694,177 3,029,242 
I structio al Perso  el 152.00 8,369,476 2,765,574 - 11,135,050 - - - 11,135,050 8,986,636 
No -I structio al Perso  el 6.00 - - - - - 346,723 346,723 346,723 214,093 
Total Salaries a d Staf 197.00 9,954,978 3,289,480 - 13,244,458 - 1,931,492 1,931,492 15,175,950 12,229,971 

Fri ge Be efts & Payroll Taxes 1,872,216 618,647 - 2,490,863 - 363,391 363,391 2,854,254 2,464,068 
Retireme t 78,009 25,777 - 103,786 - 15,141 15,141 118,927 81,751 
Ma ageme t Compa y Fees 1,145,036 180,196 - 1,325,232 - 2,072,799 2,072,799 3,398,031 2,807,691 
Legal Service - - - - - 9,008 9,008 9,008 33,379 
Accou ti g / Audit Services 18,517 5,554 - 24,071 - 6,683 6,683 30,754 27,115 
Other Purchased / Professio al / Co sulti g Servic 525,849 167,909 - 693,758 - 185,632 185,632 879,390 650,013 
Buildi g a d La d Re t / Lease / Facility Fi a ce I  2,520,006 832,700 - 3,352,706 - 488,938 488,938 3,841,644 3,732,387 
Repairs & Mai te a ce 300,570 99,320 - 399,890 - 58,318 58,318 458,208 270,184 
I sura ce 84,894 27,089 - 111,983 - 15,391 15,391 127,374 111,381 
Utilities 156,212 51,618 - 207,830 - 30,308 30,308 238,138 333,176 
Supplies / Materials 649,083 102,147 - 751,230 - - - 751,230 613,503 
Equipme t / Fur ishi gs 351,034 115,994 - 467,028 - 68,108 68,108 535,136 824,582 
Staf Developme t 198,619 39,312 - 237,931 - 16,063 16,063 253,994 191,286 
Marketi g / Recruitme t 58,462 16,996 - 75,458 - 8,740 8,740 84,198 145,959 
Tech ology 20,810 6,876 - 27,686 - 4,038 4,038 31,724 236,559 
Food Service 307,995 56,205 - 364,200 - 8,672 8,672 372,872 417,291 
Stude t Services 68,863 12,566 - 81,429 - 1,939 1,939 83,368 47,182 
Ofce Expe se 95,683 31,617 - 127,300 - 146,470 146,470 273,770 106,508 
Depreciatio  349,863 115,607 - 465,470 - 67,881 67,881 533,351 524,330 
OTHER 60,362 19,946 - 80,308 - 64,230 64,230 144,538 (1,116) 

Total Expe ses $ 18,817,061 $ 5,815,556 $ - $ 24,632,617 $ - $ 5,563,242 $ 5,563,242 $ 30,195,859 $ 25,847,200 







      
          

Charter Funding Alphabetical By NYS School District 
* (Sum of Charter School Basic Tuition and Supplemental Basic Tuition) 
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ANNUAL BUDGET & QUARTERLY REPORT TEMPLATE 

Brooklyn Ascend Charter School 

SCHOOL 
Name: Brooklyn Ascend Charter School 

CONTACT INFORMATION 
Contact Name: Andrew Epstein 
Contact Title: Chief Financial Officer 
Contact Email: 
Contact Phone: 

REPORT PERIOD 
Current Academic Year: 2019-20 
Prior Academic Year: 2018-19 

Page 4 of 64 





      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      

  
     

 

PRIOR YEAR ANNUAL BUDGET 
2018-19 QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2  QUARTER 3 QUAR  

PRIMARY/OTHER DISTRICT NAME(S) 
Actual 

Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 
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8 9 10 11 12 
112 150 119 87 50 

ACTUAL QUARTERLY 
TOTAL DISTRICTS/ENROLLMENT 

QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4 
Revised Actual Actual Actual Actual 

0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 

ACTUAL ENROLLMENT BY QUARTER 
QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

TER 4 

D' Column(s) 
s for the 

TER 4 

Page 



   
     TER 4 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

ACTUAL ENROLLMENT BY QUARTER 
QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 
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ALANCE SHEET 
   

 

 

        

 
   

   
 

 
   

  

    

 

 

   

 
    

   
 

    
      
 

  

       

 

 

 
  

    

- - - -

- - - -

- - - -

- - - -

- - - -

- - - -

BROOKLYN ASCEND CHARTER SCHOOL 

DO NOT ENTER BALANCE SHEET DATA ON THIS 
TEMPLATE 2019-20 

Balance sheet data should forthe Ed Corp: 
Ascend Charter Schools (Combined) Prior Year 
should be entered on the template for 

Canarsie Ascend Charter School. 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

2018-19 As of 9/30 As of 12/31 As of 3/31 As of 6/30 
ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Accounts receivables 
Prepaid Expenses 

Contributions and other receivables 
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS -

-PROPERTY, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT, net - - - -

-OTHER ASSETS - - - -

TOTAL ASSETS -

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued payroll and benefits 
Deferred Revenue 
Current maturities of long-term debt 
Short Term Debt - Bonds, Notes Payable 

Other 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES -

-LONG-TERM DEBT and NOTES PAYABLE, net current maturities - - - -

TOTAL LIABILITIES -

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 

Temporarily restricted 

-
-

TOTAL NET ASSETS -

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS -

-
-
-
-
-

- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -

- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -

- - - -
- - - -
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Annual Report Requirement 
for SUNY Authorized Charter Schools 

BROOKLYN ASCEND CHARTER SCHOOL 

2019-20 

Administrative $0.00expenditures per pupil: 

Per NYS Statute Administrative expenditures per pupil: the sum of all 
general administration salaries and other general 
administration expenditures divided by the total 
number of enrolled students. Employee benefit 
costs or expenditures should not be reported here. 

*NOTE: THIS TAB ONLY NEEDS TO BE COMPLETED FOR Q4 

Page 64 of 64 























 
  

 
  

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
  

 

     
 

 

     
   

 
     

 
  

           
   

  
 
     

  
 

  
 

      
   

            
   

  

 
  

   
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
    

 
 

 

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School 
Education Corporation Trustee 

Trustee Name: 

_Christine Schlendorf ____________________________________________ 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

__Ascend Charter Schools______________________________ 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 

2. Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation?  
____Yes __X__No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3. Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes _X__No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your house 
have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month period 
prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or transaction, write 
None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 above, you need not 
disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 
(e.g., did not vote, 
did not participate in 

discussion) 

Name of person
holding interest or

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 
yourself 

N o n e  



 

    
   

  
      

           
           

  
   

    
  

   
 

 
 
 

   
 

   
    

  

 

 

 

 
 

 
  

 
 

  
  

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

   

 

5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in which 
such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate 
family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest or other 
relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an organization 
formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the school(s) 
through a management or services agreement, please identify only the name of the 
organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship between such 
organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write None. 

Organization 
conducting 
business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 
conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 
business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or
immediate family member 
of household holding an 
interest in the organization 
conducting business with
the school(s) and the
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken 
to Avoid 
Conflict of 
Interest 

N o n e  

Signature Date 7/31/18 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 







  
  

 
  

 
 

 
      

   
 

 
 

           
  

 

             
   

 
           

     
  

           
         

  
 
           

     
 

          
            

       
            

           
           

       

 
   

 
  

   
    
  

 

  
   

  
  
 

    
 
 
 

 

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School 
Education Corporation Trustee 

Trustee Name: 

Oral Walcott 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

Ascend Charter Schools 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 

2. Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 
____Yes _X_No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3. Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes _X_No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your house 
have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month period 
prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or transaction, write 
None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 above, you need not 
disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 

(e.g., did not vote,
did not participate in 

discussion) 

Name of person
holding interest or 

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

yourself 

N O N E 



          
        

         
          

              
           

        
        

       
      

        
 

 
 

    
    

 
     

     
   

 
 

 
  

  
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
   

   
    

   

 

  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

   

 

5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in which 
such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate 
family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest or other 
relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an organization 
formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the school(s) 
through a management or services agreement, please identify only the name of the 
organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship between such 
organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write None. 

Organization 
conducting

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate 
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
immediate family member 
of household holding an 

interest in the organization 
conducting business with

the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken 
to Avoid 

Conflict of 
Interest 

N O N E 

 ___________ July 31, 2019 
Signature Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law.  Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 



	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	

	

	

Entry 8 BOT Table 
Last updated: 08/01/2019 

1. SUNY AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information for VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide 

information for all VOTING and NON VOTING trustees. 

1. Current Board Member Information (Enter info for each BOT member) 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

Trustee 
Name 
and 
Email 
Address 

Stephani 
e 
Mauterst 
ock 

Kathleen 
Quirk 

Amanda 
Craft 

Shelly
Cleary

Kwaku 
Andoh 

Christine 

Position 
on the 
Board 

Chair 

Vice 
Chair 

Secretary 

Treasurer 

Trustee/M
ember 

Committ 
ee 
Affiliation 
s 

Executive 
, Finance, 
Nominati 
ng 

Executive 
, 
Educatio 
n, 
Finance, 
Hiring 

Executive 
, 
Educatio 
n, Hiring 

Executive 
, Finance, 
Real 
Estate 
(subcom
mittee) 

Educatio 
n, 
Finance 

Voting
Member 
Per By
Laws 
(Y/N) 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Number 
of Terms 
Served 

4 

4 

4 

3 

4 

Start End Date 
Date of of 
Current Current 
Term Term 
(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

07/01/20
19 

06/30/20
20 

07/01/20
19 

06/30/20
20 

07/01/20
19 

06/30/20
20 

07/01/20
19 

06/30/20
20 

07/01/20
19 

06/30/20
20 

Board 
Meetings
Attended 
During
2018 19 

11 

9 

11 

9 

10 
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6 

7 

8 

9 

Schlendo 
rf 

Nadine 
Sylvester

Oral 
Walcott 

Trustee/M Real 
ember Estate 

(subcom
mittee) 

Yes 4 
07/01/20
19 

06/30/20
20 

7 

Educ
Trustee/M n, 
ember Nom

ng 

atio 

Yes inati 2 
07/01/20
19 

06/30/20
20 

12 

Exec
Trustee/M , Hiri
ember Nom

utive 
ng, Yes inati 4 

07/01/20
19 

06/30/20
20 

10 

1a. Are there more than 9 

members of the Board of 
Trustees? 

Finance, 

ng 

No 

2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response 

relative to all trustees. 

a. Total Number of BOT Members on 
June 30, 2019 

b.Total Number of Members Added 
During 2018 19 

c. Total Number of Members who 
Departed during 2018 19 

d.Total Number of members in 2018 19, 
as set by in Bylaws, Resolution or
Minutes 

8 

0 

0 

9 

3. Number of Board meetings 13 

held during 2018-19 

2 / 3 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	

4. Number of Board meetings 12 

scheduled for 2019-20 

Thank you. 
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Entry 10 Enrollment and Retention of Special 
Populations 
Created: 07/19/2019 • Last updated: 08/01/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Enrollment and Retention Strategies 

Describe the efforts the charter school has made in 2018 19 toward meeting targets to attract and retain 

enrollment of students with disabilities, English language learners/Multilingual learners, and students who 

are economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or making progress 

toward meeting its enrollment and retention targets in 2019 20. 

BROOKLYN ASCEND CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading 

Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Recruitment Efforts in 2018 19 

"Ascend Public Charter Schools is committed 
to serving all students, regardless of
disabilities, English language learner (ELL)
status, or economic disadvantage.
Communication with potential applicants and
with current families remains an important
priority for recruitment and retention.
Ascend maintains an engaging website
recently fully redesigned where families can
learn about its mission and core values, and 
gain more information about curriculum and
school culture. Beyond the website, Ascend
uses several digital tools and social media
channels to inform and engage families, and
participates in the recruitment activities
described below. 

Additionally, Ascend employs various
traditional paid advertising methods,
including MTA bus and subway ads,
billboards, print advertisements in local
publications, direct mail pieces, and flyers.
These materials are often translated into 
Spanish and French to increase accessibility
for non English speaking families. These 

Describe Recruitment Plans in 2019 20 

" 
In 2019 2020, we will continue to implement
our current recruitment strategies and
enhance them, to ensure that these 
populations make up a significant portion of
our applications.
Ascend Public Charter Schools is committed 
to serving all students, regardless of
disabilities, English language learner (ELL)
status, or economic disadvantage.
Communication with potential applicants and
with current families remains an important
priority for recruitment and retention. Ascend
maintains an engaging website recently
fully redesigned where families can learn
about its mission and core values, and gain
more information about curriculum and 
school culture. Beyond the website, Ascend
uses several digital tools and social media
channels to inform and engage families, and
participates in the recruitment activities
described below. 

Additionally, Ascend employs various
traditional paid advertising methods,
including MTA bus and subway ads,
billboards, print advertisements in local
publications, direct mail pieces, and flyers.
These materials are often translated into 

1 / 8 



	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	

various communications strategies are
helpful for spreading the news of Ascend to
potential applicants and increasing
engagement through word of mouth, existing
families, online engagement, and community
outreach. 

Staff attend neighborhood events and
conduct tabling sessions at feeder schools
(pre schools, including Head Start facilities,

Econom and elementary schools) that serve high
ically populations of students who are learning
Disadva English as a second language and who have
ntaged special education needs. The network

recruitment team and staff also recruit 
students by reaching out to doctors’ offices,
churches, grocery stores, restaurants, early
intervention service providers and agencies,
public housing units, and diverse community
organizations, including those that serve
children with disabilities and English
language learners. Ascend now employs a
robust community outreach team (which
includes multiple Spanish speakers) which
attends local events and fairs, assist with 
direct outreach efforts, and develops
partnerships with local community
organizations and businesses who spread the
word about Ascend within the community. 

Economically disadvantaged residents
constitute the highest population
concentration in the neighborhoods
surrounding Ascend schools; we expect that
through the efforts outlined above we will
continue reaching and recruiting from this
population. 

At risk students are knowledgeable about
Ascend’s philosophy of inclusion and
individualized programs for special
populations. We maintain a positive rapport
with the Committee on Special Education
(CSE) which commends our overall
philosophy and strategies towards
integration of special populations; the CSE
speaks highly of our special education
programming and services when interacting
with families. 
" 

Spanish and French to increase accessibility
for non English speaking families. These
various communications strategies are
helpful for spreading the news of Ascend to
potential applicants and increasing
engagement through word of mouth, existing
families, online engagement, and community
outreach. 

Staff attend neighborhood events and
conduct tabling sessions at feeder schools
(pre schools, including Head Start facilities,
and elementary schools) that serve high
populations of students who are learning
English as a second language and who have
special education needs. The network
recruitment team and staff also recruit 
students by reaching out to doctors’ offices,
churches, grocery stores, restaurants, early
intervention service providers and agencies,
public housing units, and diverse community
organizations, including those that serve
children with disabilities and English
language learners. Ascend now employs a
robust community outreach team (which
includes multiple Spanish speakers) which
attends local events and fairs, assist with 
direct outreach efforts, and develops
partnerships with local community
organizations and businesses who spread the
word about Ascend within the community. 

Economically disadvantaged residents
constitute the highest population
concentration in the neighborhoods
surrounding Ascend schools; we expect that
through the efforts outlined above we will
continue reaching and recruiting from this
population. 

At risk students are knowledgeable about
Ascend’s philosophy of inclusion and
individualized programs for special
populations. We maintain a positive rapport
with the Committee on Special Education
(CSE) which commends our overall
philosophy and strategies towards
integration of special populations; the CSE
speaks highly of our special education
programming and services when interacting
with families. 

" 
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"Ascend Public Charter Schools is committed 
to serving all students, regardless of
disabilities, English language learner (ELL)
status, or economic disadvantage.
Communication with potential applicants and
with current families remains an important
priority for recruitment and retention.
Ascend maintains an engaging website
recently fully redesigned where families can
learn about its mission and core values, and 
gain more information about curriculum and
school culture. Beyond the website, Ascend
uses several digital tools and social media
channels to inform and engage families, and
participates in the recruitment activities
described below. 

Additionally, Ascend employs various
traditional paid advertising methods,
including MTA bus and subway ads,
billboards, print advertisements in local
publications, direct mail pieces, and flyers.
These materials are often translated into 
Spanish and French to increase accessibility
for non English speaking families. These
various communications strategies are
helpful for spreading the news of Ascend to
potential applicants and increasing
engagement through word of mouth, existing
families, online engagement, and community
outreach. 

Staff attend neighborhood events and
conduct tabling sessions at feeder schools

English (pre schools, including Head Start facilities,
Langua and elementary schools) that serve high
ge populations of students who are learning
Learner English as a second language and who have
s/Multili special education needs. The network
ngual recruitment team and staff also recruit 
Learner students by reaching out to doctors’ offices,
s churches, grocery stores, restaurants, early

intervention service providers and agencies,
public housing units, and diverse community
organizations, including those that serve
children with disabilities and English
language learners. Ascend now employs a
robust community outreach team (which
includes multiple Spanish speakers) which 
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In 2019 2020, we will continue to implement
our current recruitment strategies and
enhance them, to ensure that these 
populations make up a significant portion of
our applications.
Ascend Public Charter Schools is committed 
to serving all students, regardless of
disabilities, English language learner (ELL)
status, or economic disadvantage.
Communication with potential applicants and
with current families remains an important
priority for recruitment and retention. Ascend
maintains an engaging website recently
fully redesigned where families can learn
about its mission and core values, and gain
more information about curriculum and 
school culture. Beyond the website, Ascend
uses several digital tools and social media
channels to inform and engage families, and
participates in the recruitment activities
described below. 

Additionally, Ascend employs various
traditional paid advertising methods,
including MTA bus and subway ads,
billboards, print advertisements in local
publications, direct mail pieces, and flyers.
These materials are often translated into 
Spanish and French to increase accessibility
for non English speaking families. These
various communications strategies are
helpful for spreading the news of Ascend to
potential applicants and increasing
engagement through word of mouth, existing
families, online engagement, and community
outreach. 

Staff attend neighborhood events and
conduct tabling sessions at feeder schools
(pre schools, including Head Start facilities,
and elementary schools) that serve high
populations of students who are learning
English as a second language and who have
special education needs. The network
recruitment team and staff also recruit 
students by reaching out to doctors’ offices,
churches, grocery stores, restaurants, early
intervention service providers and agencies,
public housing units, and diverse community
organizations, including those that serve
children with disabilities and English 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

attends local events and fairs, assist with 
direct outreach efforts, and develops
partnerships with local community
organizations and businesses who spread the
word about Ascend within the community. 

Economically disadvantaged residents
constitute the highest population
concentration in the neighborhoods
surrounding Ascend schools; we expect that
through the efforts outlined above we will
continue reaching and recruiting from this
population. 

At risk students are knowledgeable about
Ascend’s philosophy of inclusion and
individualized programs for special
populations. We maintain a positive rapport
with the Committee on Special Education
(CSE) which commends our overall
philosophy and strategies towards
integration of special populations; the CSE
speaks highly of our special education
programming and services when interacting
with families. 
" 

"Ascend Public Charter Schools is committed 
to serving all students, regardless of
disabilities, English language learner (ELL)
status, or economic disadvantage.
Communication with potential applicants and
with current families remains an important
priority for recruitment and retention.
Ascend maintains an engaging website
recently fully redesigned where families can
learn about its mission and core values, and 
gain more information about curriculum and
school culture. Beyond the website, Ascend
uses several digital tools and social media
channels to inform and engage families, and
participates in the recruitment activities
described below. 

Additionally, Ascend employs various
traditional paid advertising methods, 

language learners. Ascend now employs a
robust community outreach team (which
includes multiple Spanish speakers) which
attends local events and fairs, assist with 
direct outreach efforts, and develops
partnerships with local community
organizations and businesses who spread the
word about Ascend within the community. 

Economically disadvantaged residents
constitute the highest population
concentration in the neighborhoods
surrounding Ascend schools; we expect that
through the efforts outlined above we will
continue reaching and recruiting from this
population. 

At risk students are knowledgeable about
Ascend’s philosophy of inclusion and
individualized programs for special
populations. We maintain a positive rapport
with the Committee on Special Education
(CSE) which commends our overall
philosophy and strategies towards
integration of special populations; the CSE
speaks highly of our special education
programming and services when interacting
with families. 

" 

" 
In 2019 2020, we will continue to implement
our current recruitment strategies and
enhance them, to ensure that these 
populations make up a significant portion of
our applications.
Ascend Public Charter Schools is committed 
to serving all students, regardless of
disabilities, English language learner (ELL)
status, or economic disadvantage.
Communication with potential applicants and
with current families remains an important
priority for recruitment and retention. Ascend
maintains an engaging website recently
fully redesigned where families can learn
about its mission and core values, and gain
more information about curriculum and 
school culture. Beyond the website, Ascend
uses several digital tools and social media
channels to inform and engage families, and
participates in the recruitment activities
described below. 
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including MTA bus and subway ads,
billboards, print advertisements in local
publications, direct mail pieces, and flyers.
These materials are often translated into 
Spanish and French to increase accessibility
for non English speaking families. These
various communications strategies are
helpful for spreading the news of Ascend to
potential applicants and increasing
engagement through word of mouth, existing
families, online engagement, and community
outreach. 

Staff attend neighborhood events and
conduct tabling sessions at feeder schools
(pre schools, including Head Start facilities,
and elementary schools) that serve highStudent 
populations of students who are learnings with 
English as a second language and who haveDisabilit 
special education needs. The networkies 
recruitment team and staff also recruit 
students by reaching out to doctors’ offices,
churches, grocery stores, restaurants, early
intervention service providers and agencies,
public housing units, and diverse community
organizations, including those that serve
children with disabilities and English
language learners. Ascend now employs a
robust community outreach team (which
includes multiple Spanish speakers) which
attends local events and fairs, assist with 
direct outreach efforts, and develops
partnerships with local community
organizations and businesses who spread the
word about Ascend within the community. 

Economically disadvantaged residents
constitute the highest population
concentration in the neighborhoods
surrounding Ascend schools; we expect that
through the efforts outlined above we will
continue reaching and recruiting from this
population. 

At risk students are knowledgeable about
Ascend’s philosophy of inclusion and
individualized programs for special
populations. We maintain a positive rapport
with the Committee on Special Education
(CSE) which commends our overall
philosophy and strategies towards
integration of special populations; the CSE
speaks highly of our special education 

Additionally, Ascend employs various
traditional paid advertising methods,
including MTA bus and subway ads,
billboards, print advertisements in local
publications, direct mail pieces, and flyers.
These materials are often translated into 
Spanish and French to increase accessibility
for non English speaking families. These
various communications strategies are
helpful for spreading the news of Ascend to
potential applicants and increasing
engagement through word of mouth, existing
families, online engagement, and community
outreach. 

Staff attend neighborhood events and
conduct tabling sessions at feeder schools
(pre schools, including Head Start facilities,
and elementary schools) that serve high
populations of students who are learning
English as a second language and who have
special education needs. The network
recruitment team and staff also recruit 
students by reaching out to doctors’ offices,
churches, grocery stores, restaurants, early
intervention service providers and agencies,
public housing units, and diverse community
organizations, including those that serve
children with disabilities and English
language learners. Ascend now employs a
robust community outreach team (which
includes multiple Spanish speakers) which
attends local events and fairs, assist with 
direct outreach efforts, and develops
partnerships with local community
organizations and businesses who spread the
word about Ascend within the community. 

Economically disadvantaged residents
constitute the highest population
concentration in the neighborhoods
surrounding Ascend schools; we expect that
through the efforts outlined above we will
continue reaching and recruiting from this
population. 

At risk students are knowledgeable about
Ascend’s philosophy of inclusion and
individualized programs for special
populations. We maintain a positive rapport
with the Committee on Special Education
(CSE) which commends our overall 
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programming and services when interacting
with families. 
" 

philosophy and strategies towards
integration of special populations; the CSE
speaks highly of our special education
programming and services when interacting
with families. 

" 

Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Retention Efforts in 2018 19 Describe Retention Plans in 2019 20 

"Ascend’s most important assets for
retaining students from special populations
are the continued use of robust programs for
at risk populations, the capable staff that
support these programs, and the school’s
strong reputation among families and
stakeholders. Ascend is committed to 
creating an inclusive and integrated space
for all students, and we have developed
systems and procedures that target and
support students with academic, emotional,
and behavioral challenges. Our goal is to
ensure that students with challenges are
educated alongside their typically developingEconom peers. Through our interventionically programming, students who might otherwiseDisadva be identified as requiring an Individualizedntaged Education Plan (IEP) are able to have their
needs met without one. Families served by
these student services programs at Ascend
are satisfied and choose to keep their
children enrolled in the school. In school year
2018 19, over 95 percent of families with
children who have IEPs reported satisfaction
with the education planning and the IEP
development process at Ascend, and more
than 90 percent agree that the school works
to achieve their children’s IEP goals. 

" 

"Ascend’s most important assets for
retaining students from special populations
are the continued use of robust programs for
at risk populations, the capable staff that 

"In 2019 2020, we will continue to implement
our current retention strategies and enhance
them, to ensure that these populations make
up a significant portion of our applications. 

Ascend’s most important assets for retaining
students from special populations are the
continued use of robust programs for at risk
populations, the capable staff that support
these programs, and the school’s strong
reputation among families and stakeholders.
Ascend is committed to creating an inclusive
and integrated space for all students, and we
have developed systems and procedures that
target and support students with academic,
emotional, and behavioral challenges. Our
goal is to ensure that students with
challenges are educated alongside their
typically developing peers. Through our
intervention programming, students who
might otherwise be identified as requiring an
Individualized Education Plan (IEP) are able
to have their needs met without one. 
Families served by these student services
programs at Ascend are satisfied and choose
to keep their children enrolled in the school.
In school year 2018 19, over 95 percent of
families with children who have IEPs reported
satisfaction with the education planning and
the IEP development process at Ascend, and
more than 90 percent agree that the school
works to achieve their children’s IEP goals. 

" 

"In 2019 2020, we will continue to implement
our current retention strategies and enhance
them, to ensure that these populations make
up a significant portion of our applications. 

Ascend’s most important assets for retaining 
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support these programs, and the school’s
strong reputation among families and
stakeholders. Ascend is committed to 
creating an inclusive and integrated space
for all students, and we have developed
systems and procedures that target and
support students with academic, emotional,English and behavioral challenges. Our goal is toLangua ensure that students with challenges arege educated alongside their typically developingLearner peers. Through our interventions/Multili programming, students who might otherwisengual be identified as requiring an IndividualizedLearner Education Plan (IEP) are able to have theirs needs met without one. Families served by
these student services programs at Ascend
are satisfied and choose to keep their
children enrolled in the school. In school year
2018 19, over 95 percent of families with
children who have IEPs reported satisfaction
with the education planning and the IEP
development process at Ascend, and more
than 90 percent agree that the school works
to achieve their children’s IEP goals. 

" 

"Ascend’s most important assets for
retaining students from special populations
are the continued use of robust programs for
at risk populations, the capable staff that
support these programs, and the school’s
strong reputation among families and
stakeholders. Ascend is committed to 
creating an inclusive and integrated space
for all students, and we have developed
systems and procedures that target and
support students with academic, emotional,
and behavioral challenges. Our goal is to
ensure that students with challenges are
educated alongside their typically developingStudent peers. Through our interventions with programming, students who might otherwiseDisabilit be identified as requiring an Individualizedies Education Plan (IEP) are able to have their
needs met without one. Families served by
these student services programs at Ascend
are satisfied and choose to keep their
children enrolled in the school. In school year 

students from special populations are the
continued use of robust programs for at risk
populations, the capable staff that support
these programs, and the school’s strong
reputation among families and stakeholders.
Ascend is committed to creating an inclusive
and integrated space for all students, and we
have developed systems and procedures that
target and support students with academic,
emotional, and behavioral challenges. Our
goal is to ensure that students with
challenges are educated alongside their
typically developing peers. Through our
intervention programming, students who
might otherwise be identified as requiring an
Individualized Education Plan (IEP) are able
to have their needs met without one. 
Families served by these student services
programs at Ascend are satisfied and choose
to keep their children enrolled in the school.
In school year 2018 19, over 95 percent of
families with children who have IEPs reported
satisfaction with the education planning and
the IEP development process at Ascend, and
more than 90 percent agree that the school
works to achieve their children’s IEP goals. 

" 

"In 2019 2020, we will continue to implement
our current retention strategies and enhance
them, to ensure that these populations make
up a significant portion of our applications. 

Ascend’s most important assets for retaining
students from special populations are the
continued use of robust programs for at risk
populations, the capable staff that support
these programs, and the school’s strong
reputation among families and stakeholders.
Ascend is committed to creating an inclusive
and integrated space for all students, and we
have developed systems and procedures that
target and support students with academic,
emotional, and behavioral challenges. Our
goal is to ensure that students with
challenges are educated alongside their
typically developing peers. Through our
intervention programming, students who
might otherwise be identified as requiring an
Individualized Education Plan (IEP) are able
to have their needs met without one. 
Families served by these student services 
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2018 19, over 95 percent of families with
children who have IEPs reported satisfaction
with the education planning and the IEP
development process at Ascend, and more
than 90 percent agree that the school works
to achieve their children’s IEP goals. 

" 

programs at Ascend are satisfied and choose
to keep their children enrolled in the school.
In school year 2018 19, over 95 percent of
families with children who have IEPs reported
satisfaction with the education planning and
the IEP development process at Ascend, and
more than 90 percent agree that the school
works to achieve their children’s IEP goals. 

" 

8 / 8 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	
	

	

	
	

	
	

	
	 	

	
	

	 	
	 	

	

	

	 	 	 	

	 	
	

	
	

	

	 	
	

	

	

Entry 11 Classroom Teacher and Administrator 

Attrition 
Created: 07/19/2019 • Last updated: 07/31/2019 

Report changes in teacher and administrator staffing. 

Instructions for completing the Classroom Teacher and Administrator Attrition Tables 

Charter schools must complete the tables titled 2018-2019 Classroom Teacher and 

Administrator Attrition to report changes in teacher and administrator staffing 

during the 2018-2019 school year. Please provide the full time equivalent (FTE) of 

staff on June 30, 2018; the FTE for any departed staff from July 1, 2018 through June 

30, 2019; the FTE for added staff from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; and the 

FTE of staff added in newly created positions from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 

using the tables provided. 

1. Classroom Teacher Attrition Table 

FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE Classroom 
Teachers on 
6/30/18 

Teachers 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

Teachers Filling
Vacant Positions 
7/1/18  6/30/19 

123 46 47 

2. Administrator Position Attrition Table 

FTE 
Administrative 
Positions on 
6/30/18 

18 

FTE 
Administrators 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

13 

FTE 
Administrators 
Filling Vacant
Positions 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

9 

FTE Classroom FTE of 
Teachers Added Classroom 
in New Positions Teachers on 
7/1/18 6/30/19 6/3019 

17 19 

FTE FTE 
Administrators Administrative 
Added in New Positions on 
Positions 7/1/18
6/30/19 

6/30/19 

8 19 
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3. Tell your school's story 

Charter schools may provide additional information in this section of the Annual 
Report about their respective teacher and administrator attrition rates as some 

teacher or administrator departures do not reflect advancement or movement within 

the charter school networks. Schools may provide additional detail to reflect a 

teacher’s advancement up the ladder to a leadership position within the network or 

an administrator’s movement to lead a new network charter school. 

(No response) 

4. Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees receive clearance 

through the NYSED Office of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA) 

prior to employment. After an employee has been cleared, schools are required to 

maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all 
students, charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of 

individuals who have been denied clearance. Once the employees have been 

terminated, the school must terminate the request for clearance in the TEACH 

system. 

Have all employees have been cleared through the NYSED TEACH system? 

Yes 

5. For perspective or current employees whose clearance has been denied, have you 

terminated their employment and removed them from the TEACH system? 

Not Applicable 

Thank you 
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